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2014 WAS A YEAR OF  
MOVING FORWARD.  

FROM A GROWING NUMBER  
OF ONSITE CONTRACTS IN  

HEAVY OIL TO NEW SATELLITE 
LOCATIONS IN WESTERN CANADA 

AND THE U.S., OUR PEOPLE 
FOUND SOLUTIONS THAT 

DELIVERED VALUE FOR OUR 
CUSTOMERS.

 BECAUSE AT NEWALTA,  
THE BOTTOM LINE ISN’T ALWAYS 

ABOUT THE BOTTOM LINE.  
IT’S ABOUT CREATING VALUE IN 

EVERYTHING WE DO.  
IT’S ABOUT INNOVATION.  
AND IT’S ABOUT RESULTS.  

BUT ABOVE ALL, IT’S ABOUT 
DOING BUSINESS THAT CAN ONLY 

BE DESCRIBED AS  
A NEWALTA WAY OF THINKING.

Newalta is a leading provider of 
innovative engineered environmental 
solutions that enable customers  
to reduce disposal, enhance recycling, 
and recover valuable resources 
from oil and gas exploration and 
production waste streams.  

We serve customers onsite directly  
at their operations and through a network  
of more than 50 locations in Canada 
and the U.S. Our proven processes and 
excellent record of safety make us the first-
choice provider of sustainability-enhancing 
services for oil and gas customers. With a 
skilled team of more than 1,200 people,  

a two-decade track record of profitable 
expansion and a commitment to 
commercializing new solutions, Newalta 
is positioned for sustained future growth 
and improvement. Newalta trades on the 
TSX as NAL. For more information,  
visit newalta.com.
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Newalta entered into an agreement to sell our Industrial Division to Revolution  
Acquisition LP, a Birch Hill Equity Partners company, on December 23, 2014. As such, we 
define Newalta's remaining operations as "Continuing Operations" and often refer to 
them as our energy services business. On February 27, 2015, subsequent to the date of 
the attached MD&A and financial statements, we completed the sale of Industrial.

WE HAVE  
CREATED VALUE  

FOR OUR 
CUSTOMERS, OUR 
SHAREHOLDERS 
AND OUR MOST 

IMPORTANT ASSETS, 
THE PEOPLE  

WHO LIVE BY OUR 
CORPORATE VALUES

 

Newalta provides innovative 
engineered environmental solutions 
to the oil and gas industry. Through 
safe and proven processes designed 
to recover resources, we help  
our customers increase production, 
reduce environmental impacts,  
and minimize transportation and 
disposal costs. 

As a pure environmental energy 
services company, we operate a 
network of strategically located 
facilities and satellites that serves a 
broad range of customers in many 
of North America’s prime energy-
producing regions. 

Approximately 75 percent of our 
business is active in upstream 
production. Exploration services, or 
drilling activity, both horizontal and 
vertical, accounts for the balance of 
our revenue. 

We have made substantial 
investments over the past five years 
to expand the waste streams that 
we can manage, the solutions that 
we can offer, and the geographic 
territories that we can serve in 
Canada and the U.S. One of those 
solutions is embodied in our onsite 
services model, where we work 
directly on customer sites, at the 
source of production, to further 
minimize waste streams and costs 
associated with disposal. Almost a 
quarter of our revenue is generated 
from onsite contracts today.

We lead our industry in developing 
and commercializing new approaches 
and have built both first-mover 
advantage and an innovation pipeline 
by searching worldwide for processes 
that we can adapt to the oil and  
gas industry. 

The results of our approach, business 
model and passion for success are 
displayed in Newalta’s financial 
performance over the past year, five 
years and 20 years. During these 
periods, we have created value for 
our customers, our shareholders and 
our most important assets, the people 
who live by our corporate values.

These values create improved 
alignment and cohesion across the 
organization, facilitate increased 
delegation of authority and improve 
the agility of the business to respond 
to changing circumstances.

In a rapidly changing energy services 
industry, Newalta is poised to lead.

COMPANY 
PROFILE

  

2014 HIGHLIGHTS

Newalta was ranked 
one of Canada’s 
Future 40 Responsible 
Corporate Leaders 
by Corporate Knights 
magazine.

Our diversity  
initiatives were 
recognized  
by the editors of 
Canada’s Top  
100 Employers.

We were named 
a top employer  
in Alberta by 
the editors  
of Canada’s Top  
100 Employers.

Newalta received an 
Award of Excellence for 
corporate reporting at the 
Chartered Professional 
Accountants of Canada’s 
annual awards.

AWARDS & RECOGNITION

CONTINUING OPERATIONS 2013 2014

REVENUE 
($ millions)

$412.2

$495.3

ADJUSTED EBITDA 
($ millions)

$103.5

$128.9

FUNDS FROM OPERATIONS 
($ millions)

$75.0

$88.3

14%
DIVIDEND  

INCREASE TO  
$0.50 PER SHARE,  

ANNUALIZED

14%
INCREASE IN  

ONSITE CONTRACT 
REVENUE

SECURED  
THREE NEW  

MATURE FINE 
TAILINGS 

CONTRACTS  
ON OIL  

SANDS SITES

HEAVY OIL WASTE PROCESSING FACILITY
HUGHENDEN, ALBERTA

SATELLITES ADDED 
IN FOX CREEK 

AND GOLD CREEK, 
ALBERTA AND IN 

ALEXANDER,  
NORTH DAKOTA

BEGAN 
CONSTRUCTING  
A FULL-SCALE  
FACILITY IN  

FORT McMURRAY, 
ALBERTA
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Newalta achieved this track record 
by becoming an exceptionally 
well-resourced company with great 
talent at all levels, outstanding 
customer relationships with leading 
energy companies, and a strong and 
innovative culture. 

As a result of plans put in place prior 
to my arrival, Newalta’s first act in 
creating value during my tenure was 
the sale of the Industrial Division 
for $300 million in proceeds. While 
Industrial was a fine business, it had 
different core capabilities, capital 
needs and return parameters than our 
ongoing energy services operations. 
The divestiture enables Newalta to 
concentrate all of its considerable 
resources and capital on the exciting 
core growth opportunities available 
to us as a pure play environmental 
energy services company. 

The proceeds of this divestiture 
strengthen an already well-capitalized 
balance sheet and create a timely 
advantage: the capacity to acquire 
quality companies in our space where 
we can add meaningful value to the 
operations. I will have more to say 
about the energy market cycle and 
our response in this letter, but first, 
some thoughts on our strategy. 

A REFRESHED STRATEGY 

As this is a new era for a proven 
company, we have the opportunity 
to refresh our strategy and a 
responsibility to build on what works. 

While I write this letter, our Executive 
Leadership Team is developing a 
five-year strategic business plan. It 
will respect our past but also leverage 
our strengths in new ways, with the 
emphasis squarely on increasing  
the pace of business activity and 
growing profitable revenue streams 
organically and with assistance from 
accretive acquisitions. 

Following plan approval by Newalta’s 
Board of Directors, we will profile  
the key aspects of our way forward in  
May 2015 at the Annual General 
Meeting and Investor Day presentation.

In developing our plan, we recognize 
that Newalta has many advantages 
that we can use to create the next 
exciting chapter in our history of 
success. Let me share three key points 
of distinction:

› Customer Relationships:  
Newalta has an intimate understanding 
of our customers’ processes and 
challenges and knows how to harness 
this knowledge to engineer valuable 
environmental solutions to meet our 
customers’ objectives.

› Innovative Solutions:  
We are differentiated from competitors 
because of this knowledge and 
what we have done with it, which is 
to collaborate with customers and 
develop inside-the-fence relationships 
with them where Newalta serves – 
creatively, efficiently and  
cost-effectively – as an integral 
innovation partner.

› Safe and Reliable Operations: 
Newalta has gotten ever closer to 
its customers, both literally and 
figuratively, on the now proven belief 
that the closer we are, the more 
value we create. We’ve earned this 
opportunity by how we operate on our 
customers’ sites with an absolute focus 
on safety and reliable performance.

A MESSAGE FROM 
JOHN BARKHOUSE

  
President and Chief Executive Officer

FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS

I JOINED NEWALTA  
IN NOVEMBER  
2014 WITH A  

CLEAR MANDATE  
TO LEAD THE 

COMPANY THROUGH 
THE NEXT PHASE  

OF GROWTH,  
TO CHALLENGE 

THE STATUS QUO, 
AND TO CREATE 

VALUE FOR  
OUR CUSTOMERS 

AND OUR 
SHAREHOLDERS.

 I ACCEPTED THIS 
MISSION KNOWING 

FULL WELL THAT  
I WAS FOLLOWING  

THE MAN WHO BUILT 
THIS COMPANY. 

UNDER THE 
INSPIRED 

TWO-DECADE 
LEADERSHIP OF MY 

PREDECESSOR,  
AL CADOTTE, 

NEWALTA DELIVERED 
TOTAL SHAREHOLDER 

RETURNS OF OVER 
2,500 PERCENT, 

INCLUDING SOME 
$460 MILLION IN 

DIVIDENDS.
ONSITE PROJECT WITH HEAVY OIL CUSTOMER 
FORT MCMURRAY, ALBERTA
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Centrifugation has also emerged 
as a critical technology in the  
treatment of mature fine tailings  
(MFT). Newalta is the only company  
providing this solution to Canadian  
oil sands mining producers. Similarly,  
Newalta possesses the know-how to  
centrifuge slop oil, which is a significant 
waste stream from oil sands in situ 
extraction. Using our approach, 
customers receive pipeline-quality 
crude oil from our onsite processing 
activity and experience reduced 
transportation costs and minimized 
risk due to less trucks being on the 
road. This is a valuable alternative  
to disposal. 

Our dominant position in treating 
waste streams from heavy oil, oil 
sands in situ, and mining in Alberta 
and Saskatchewan gives us a 
very solid platform for the future, 
especially considering that the 
oil sands represent 97 percent of 
Canada’s oil reserves. Ever-increasing 
environmental regulations, underway 
in Alberta right now, serve as the 
accelerant for the application of  
our solutions.

Another emerging strength and 
opportunity is provided by our U.S. 
platform. America’s energy waste 
services market is highly fragmented 
and therefore ripe for consolidation. 
Today, our revenue streams in the 
U.S. are primarily driven by drill 
site services, such as solids control 
and drill cuttings management. 
Through satellite facilities and onsite 
contracts, we have made excellent 
inroads, primarily in the Bakken, 
Eagle Ford and Marcellus regions. 

As I enumerate Newalta’s advantages, 
I see a company with the right assets, 
including the talent and technologies, 
to go to the next level. The pure focus 
afforded by the divestiture of Industrial 
puts us in a great position to achieve 
bold goals. I also see a company  
with great intangible assets, including 
a passion for innovation, deeply 
held core values and an enduring 
commitment to corporate sustainability. 

 

COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGE 

The company has made two 
significant competitive advancements 
to effect what I will call our proximity 
advantage – the creation of an onsite 
services model and the development 
of a satellite system of facilities.

Our onsite services model leverages 
our processing, engineering and 
design-build-operate capabilities 
by embedding our people and 
technologies directly with our 
customers. With onsite capabilities, 
we eliminate significant costs 
associated with transporting and 
disposal of waste by recovering 
valuable products at the source  
of production. 

What generally begins as an onsite 
project often turns into a long-term 
contract when we demonstrate that 
we can hit our operating targets 
and operate safely. Today, almost a 
quarter of revenue from Continuing 
Operations is earned under fee-
for-service contracts that are not 
tied directly to commodity price 
changes or drilling activity. This brings 
continuity to business activities and 
some earnings stability. 

What is also great about onsite is that 
in many markets, we have limited 
competition by creating niche market 
opportunities due to our first-mover 
advantage and unique package of 
skills, capabilities and technologies 
that are difficult and costly to replicate. 

The development of a satellite facility 
concept conveys a very significant 
and similar advantage to Newalta – 
the flexibility to deploy solutions right 
in our customers’ backyards, quickly 
and at low costs. Once permitted,  
we bring our pre-engineered modular 
satellite facilities online in three to 
four months. For a North American 
energy industry that faces significant 
logistical challenges, proximity of 
solutions matters and the supplier 
that is closest to the action wins. 

We design and build each satellite 
facility to be scalable and adaptable. 
This enables us to best serve unique 
customer challenges and allows 
us to collect and begin processing 
waste streams closer to drilling and 
production locations. 

Our satellites can be supported by 
very capable large facilities that are 
strategically located in concentrated 
geographic areas of customer  
activity. These facilities provide 
a broader range of value-added 
services, including wastewater 
management, clean oil terminalling  
and landfilling.

INNOVATIVE PROCESSES 

These are only a few points of 
distinction. Newalta has a track 
record of innovating new processing 
techniques and, through ongoing 
investments, has developed a strong 
innovation pipeline for the future. 
During 2014, we advanced several 
aspects of this pipeline by:

› Commercializing the next 
generation of our drill cuttings 
thermal treatment technology

› Successfully field testing an oil 
sands water treatment technology 

› Evaluating four new 
technologies that treat water from 
drilling and completions activities

› Constructing a commercial 
demonstration plant for water 
treatment using membranes

We are excited about these 
developments. For example, the 
introduction of our next-generation 
thermal treatment unit enables us 
to divert base oil from landfills by 
recovering it from drill cuttings and 
cost-effectively remanufacturing it 
into drilling mud. This engineered 
solution provides a positive outcome 
for customers that complements 
our other value-added drill site 
capabilities, which include processing 
equipment that provides solids 
control and recycling. 

Since pioneering the use of 
centrifugation almost two decades 
ago to treat oilfield waste and recover 
oil for reuse or resale, Newalta has 
done a great job of keeping pace with 
developments in drilling techniques, 
both vertical and horizontal. 

“I SEE A COMPANY 
WITH THE  
RIGHT ASSETS, 
INCLUDING THE 
TALENT AND 
TECHNOLOGIES, 
TO GO TO  
THE NEXT LEVEL."

 John Barkhouse 
President and Chief Executive Officer

$130
MILLION INVESTED 

TO DRIVE 
GROWTH AND
IMPROVEMENT 

IN OUR 
ENERGY SERVICES

OPERATIONS

 ALMOST A 
QUARTER OF 

REVENUE FROM 
CONTINUING 
OPERATIONS  

IS EARNED UNDER 
FEE-FOR-SERVICE 
CONTRACTS THAT 

ARE NOT TIED 
DIRECTLY TO 

COMMODITY PRICE 
CHANGES  

OR DRILLING 
ACTIVITY  NEWALTA HAS  

A TRACK RECORD 
OF INNOVATING 

NEW PROCESSING 
TECHNIQUES 

AND, THROUGH 
ONGOING 

INVESTMENTS, 
HAS DEVELOPED 

A STRONG 
INNOVATION 

PIPELINE FOR THE 
FUTURE
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RECENT MARKET DEVELOPMENTS

Driven by a variety factors, oil prices 
dropped about 50 percent between 
November 2014 and early February 
2015. As a company that is highly 
tuned to oil prices and drilling activity, 
this sudden turn of events demanded 
a thorough yet rapid response. The 
pending sale of our Industrial Division’s 
assets, our focus on driving improved 
bottom line performance, plus the 
need for overall speed and agility all 
factored into our thinking. 

Starting in December 2014, we took 
action to reduce our cost structure.  
We started by suspending new 
hires and cutting discretionary 
spending, both good starting points. 
As we entered January 2015,  
we implemented a wage freeze for  
the year, announced the suspension  
of company-matching payments  
on our employee savings’ programs 
and began to consolidate office space. 
In early February, we eliminated  
180 positions, or about 15 percent  
of our workforce. 

These were tough measures,  
done well by a company that cares 
about its people, but necessary,  
given the external environment,  
our responsibility to remain 
competitive for customers who are 
themselves reducing costs, and our 
desire to safeguard our balance sheet. 
We expect to realize in excess of  
$25 million in annualized cost savings 
from these measures, including  
$20 million in 2015. 

In light of current market conditions, 
we also reduced our 2015 capital 
budget from $190 million as previously 
reported to $105 million, with  
$90 million earmarked for growth.  
We will, however, continue to monitor 
market opportunities and will leverage 
our financial flexibility to invest in 
additional opportunities as they arise. 
In the near term, our priority will be to 
complete our 2014 carryover projects, 
including the new full-scale Heavy 
Oil facility in Fort McMurray, Alberta, 
satellite facilities in Canada and the 
U.S., and to support various contract 
opportunities. All carryover projects 
are expected to be commissioned  
and contributing cash flow in 2015. 
Funds for our program will be 
provided from operations and from 
some of the proceeds of the Industrial 
Division divestiture.

Unquestionably, the price of oil 
complicates the market environment 
and may require additional responses, 
but these actions will not deter us from 
our priorities. On the contrary, external 
pressures create new prospects 
for us to work constructively with 
customers to offer additional value 
in exchange for more work. As I said 
earlier, it may also surface candidates 
for our acquisition program in the  
form of quality companies that do 
not possess Newalta’s balance  
sheet strength but that may offer 
us access to new customers,  
waste streams or technologies.  
The ability to be opportunistic has 
never been more important and 
valuable. We have this ability.

FOCUS ON SUSTAINABILITY 

Newalta’s solutions contribute directly 
to the sustainability objectives of our 
customers. For that reason, it is often 
said that we are in the sustainability 
business. We also practice what  
we preach, entrenching sustainability 
best practices in our culture,  
in our corporate values and in our 
management processes. 

Customers now recognize these 
practices as part of our differentiated 
value proposition and they pay close 
attention to many of our sustainability 
metrics, particularly safety. In fact, the 
price of admission on customer sites 
is having safe operating practices, 
so I count our commitment to safety 
excellence as a key strength.

Our Safety

I am proud to say that safety is a way 
of life here. We strive to eliminate  
all injuries and environmental  
incidents by constantly challenging 
ourselves to be better, by investing 
in training to identify risks, and by 
correcting potential operational 
and equipment hazards before they 
become a problem.

Two traditional measures of safety  
are Total Recordable Injury  
Frequency (TRIF) and Lost-time  
Injury Frequency (LTIF). 

› TRIF measures the number of 
people for every 100 employees 
who have been injured to the 
extent that they cannot perform 
their regular work duties. In 2014, 
TRIF across our energy services 
operations was 1.4, compared to 
1.7 in 2013.

› LTIF refers to the number of 
people for every 100 employees 
who have been injured to an extent 
that they cannot perform any work 
for a minimum of one day, post-
injury. In 2014, LTIF across our 
energy services operations was 0.1, 
compared to 0.2 in 2013.

While both metrics improved 
markedly, reflecting deep 
engagement by our people, and 
both are well ahead of relevant safety 
benchmarks in our industry, the fact 
is that injuries still occurred in 2014, 
meaning we must make further 
improvements. We will.

Our Environment 

By the very nature of our business, 
Newalta is guided by responsible 
environmental stewardship. We 
use sophisticated technologies 
and techniques to reduce the 
environmental footprint of our 
customers and are particularly proud 
that in 2014, we recovered 2.5 million 
barrels of crude oil from oil and gas 
exploration and production wastes, 
up from 2.3 million barrels in 2013. 
For customers, this is tangible proof 
that our solutions work.

Internally, as part of continuous 
improvement efforts, we track key 
consumption metrics, and identify 
opportunities to reduce waste and 
increase recycling. In this regard, the 
divestiture of Industrial includes us 
now setting relevant new targets for 
water usage, energy consumption, 
carbon impact and diversion of waste 
from disposal to beneficial reuse. The 
revised targets and metrics will be 
part of our way forward, and we plan 
to share those with our stakeholders 
in the coming year. 

Our Communities 

Given the type of work we do and 
where we do it, earning the trust of 
communities is an important Newalta 
strength. Simply put, our neighbours 
must feel confident in our approach 
and we must earn that confidence by 
acting in a responsible manner. We do. 

We take the time to meet with 
community members, explain 
our business and our plans, and 
most importantly, understand their 
concerns and objectives. For many 
years, we have engaged personally, 
professionally and financially in the 
well-being of the communities where 
we live and work. While there is a cost 
to this engagement – and to making 
community investments, such as the 
more than $1 million we donated  
in 2014 – we see it as an investment  
in our future and our social licence  
to operate. 

Program Summary  

Based on sustainability indicators and 
our safety performance, Newalta has 
been recognized again in 2015 as one 
of Canada’s Future 40 Responsible 
Corporate Leaders by Corporate 
Knights magazine. 

These many strengths around 
sustainability support us as we plot 
the next stage of our corporate 
strategy. Our task and challenge  
is how to use our advantages  
to create additional value now and 
over the next five years. We look 
forward to sharing our progress and 
achievements with you. 

 UNQUESTIONABLY, 
THE PRICE OF  

OIL COMPLICATES 
THE MARKET 

ENVIRONMENT 
AND MAY REQUIRE 

ADDITIONAL 
RESPONSES,  

BUT THESE ACTIONS 
WILL NOT  

DETER US FROM  
OUR PRIORITIES 

New Markets 
Heavy Oil 41%

New Markets  
U.S. 17%

Oilfield 42%

25%
ADJUSTED  

EBITDA GROWTH

2014 DIVISIONAL REVENUE 

NEWALTA HAS  
A RESILIENT  

BUSINESS MODEL, 
A STRONG BALANCE 

SHEET AND A 
BROAD SPECTRUM 

OF ENERGY SERVICE 
SOLUTIONS FOR 

BOTH EXPLORATION 
AND PRODUCTION 

APPLICATIONS
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2014 FINANCIAL RESULTS 

For our Continuing Operations (that 
is, excluding the Industrial Division), 
2014 revenue grew 20 percent to 
$495.3 million, Adjusted EBITDA 
was up 25 percent to $128.9 million 
and, on the strength of good cash 
flow, our Board increased the 
quarterly dividend by 14 percent 
to an annualized rate of $0.50 per 
share. We invested $130 million in 
our energy services operations to 
drive future growth and improvement. 
We put new leadership in place to 
manage and shape our innovation 
plans and to ensure that we continue 
to move ahead quickly and effectively. 
At a divisional level, good progress 
was made on planned initiatives and 
financial results were positive.

The New Markets Division operates 
through two business units: Heavy  
Oil and U.S. The division’s revenue 
grew 27 percent to $289.0 million  
in 2014 while gross profit expanded 
14 percent to $83.5 million.

The Heavy Oil unit serves producers 
operating in the heavy oil and 
oil sands regions in Alberta and 
Saskatchewan. Heavy Oil’s revenue 
grew 21 percent to $203.3 million 
in 2014 from $167.9 million the year 
before. In oil sands mining in 2014, 
we continued operating on Shell  
and Syncrude sites, and were 
successful in securing three new 
MFT contracts: one for an additional 
centrifuge installation at Shell’s 
Jackpine mine, one for the continued 
operation of centrifuges at Shell’s 
Jackpine mine, and another to 
commission Syncrude’s $2 billion 
centrifuge facility at Mildred Lake. 

To better serve oil sands in situ 
producers, we began construction of 
a full-scale facility in Fort McMurray, 
Alberta in 2014. This facility will be 
operational in 2015 and will provide 
waste management solutions for 
customers, including oil recovery and 
wastewater management. 

The U.S. unit serves producers 
operating in conventional and 
unconventional oil and gas plays 
in U.S. markets, primarily in the 
Bakken, Eagle Ford and Marcellus 
regions. During the year, we made 
great progress, which is illustrated by 
annual revenue growth of 44 percent 
to $85.7 million in 2014. 

The Oilfield Division serves 
conventional and unconventional 
producers in the Western Canadian 
Sedimentary Basin from an 
integrated network of 30 locations. 
Oilfield’s revenue grew 12 percent  
to $206.3 million in 2014, 
commissioned two new satellite 
facilities, and improved drill site 
utilization significantly to 43 percent.

To Al Cadotte, I offer my gratitude for 
generously offering his time and wisdom 
to help me assume the leadership of this 
great company. Al brought the discipline, 
focus on safety, innovative mindset and 
core values upon which this company has 
built a sustainable leadership position. 

I would also like to recognize three long-
time Directors also retiring with Al in 
May 2015. Barry Stewart, Bob McDonald 
and Dick Pinder have all served 
Newalta with distinction for many years. 
Their knowledge, vision and leadership 
have been instrumental to our success. 
We thank them for their service.

I’m also pleased to note that we 
welcomed two new Board members in 
2014: Harvey Doerr and Robert Gemmell. 
Their broad expertise is accretive to a 
Board of Directors that is fully engaged in 
all things Newalta. 

With an enriched balance sheet, a resilient 
business model, recent initiatives to bring 
our cost structure in line with current 
conditions – and the willingness to take 
further actions as warranted – as well as 
the benefit of recent capital investments, 
we are ready to manage through a 
weakened commodity price environment, 
to capitalize on accretive acquisition 
opportunities, and to realize stronger 
results as our markets recover. Very shortly, 
we will also be ready to launch a new and 
bold plan with the priorities to guide us to 
the next level of growth and performance.

Newalta is a North American energy 
services leader with a strong team aligned 
to value creation. I believe that when our 
markets stabilize, we will emerge in an 
even better competitive position. We are 
prepared to face adversity and embrace 
the new possibilities that our strategic 
business plan will create.

Yours sincerely,

John Barkhouse 
President and Chief Executive Officer

REVENUE 
FROM  

CONTINUING 
OPERATIONS IN  

2014 GREW 

20%

CONCLUSION 

2014 WAS  
A YEAR OF GROWTH 
AND IMPROVEMENT 

AT NEWALTA. 

IT WAS ALSO  
A YEAR OF 

SUBSTANTIAL 
CHANGE IN  

OUR BUSINESS 
AND IN THE WORLD 

AROUND US. 
MANAGING THIS 

CHANGE HAS  
TAKEN THE 

EXTRAORDINARY 
EFFORTS OF MANY 

PEOPLE AT ALL  
LEVELS OF  

OUR COMPANY.

I SINCERELY  
THANK THEM FOR 

ALL THAT THEY  
HAVE DONE AND 

ALL THAT THEY WILL  
DO IN 2015. 

U.S. SATELLITE FACILITY 
JOHNSONS CORNER, NORTH DAKOTA
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MD&A
  

OUR STRATEGY WILL INCLUDE 
DETAILED PLANS FOR ORGANIC 

GROWTH COMPLEMENTED  
BY ACCRETIVE ACQUISITIONS  

IN THE ENERGY SERVICES  
SECTOR TO DRIVE PERFORMANCE  

AT A RAPID PACE NOW  
AND OVER THE LONGER HAUL.

OILFIELD WASTE PROCESSING FACILITY 
RICHMOUND, SASKATCHEWAN

Certain statements contained in this document constitute "forward-looking information" as defined under applicable 
securities laws. When used in this document, the words "may", "would", "could", "will", "intend", "plan", "anticipate", 

"believe", "estimate", "expect", “potential”, “strategy”, “target”, and similar expressions, as they relate to Newalta 
Corporation and the subsidiaries of Newalta Corporation, or their management, are intended to identify forward-
looking information. In particular, forward-looking information included or incorporated by reference in this document 
includes statements with respect to:

• Completion of the sale of the Industrial Division in an 
efficient manner;

• Realization of anticipated benefits from the sale of the 
Industrial Division, including the ability to reinvest net 
proceeds of disposition in a timely and   
efficient manner;

• Future operating and financial results;

• Business prospects and strategy including  
related timelines; 

• Capital expenditure programs and other expenditures;

• Realization of anticipated benefits of growth capital 
investments, potential divestitures and acquisitions and 
our technical development initiatives;

• Realization of anticipated benefits from the 
implementation of cost initiatives, including the 
anticipated value and sustainability of the cash  
savings from such initiatives; 

• Anticipated industry activity levels;

• Expected commodity prices;

• Expected demand for our services;

• The amount of dividends declared or payable  
in the future;

• Our projected cost structure; and

• Expectations and implications of changes  
in legislation. 

Expected future financial and operating performance and related assumptions are set out under “Outlook” on  
page 24. Our capital budget and divisional allocation is set out under “Capital Expenditures” on page 36.

Such information reflects our current views with respect to future events and is subject to certain risks, uncertainties 
and assumptions, including, without limitation:

• General market conditions of the industries  
we service;

• Strength of the oil and gas industry, including  
drilling activity;

• Fluctuations in commodity prices for oil and the price we 
received for our recovered oil;

• Fluctuations in commodity prices for lead, including the 
price differential we pay for lead feedstock and the price 
we receive for our lead products;

• Fluctuations in base oil prices, including the price 
differential we pay for used oil and the price we receive 
for our finished lube oil products;

• Fluctuations in interest rates and exchange rates;

• Supply of waste lead acid batteries as feedstock to 
support direct lead sales;

• Demand for our finished lead products by the battery 
manufacturing industry;

• Our ability to secure future capital to support and 
develop our business, including the issuance of 
additional common shares (Shares);

• The highly regulated nature of the environmental services 
and waste management business in which we operate;

• Dependence on our senior management team and  
other operations management personnel with waste 
industry experience;

NEWALTA CORPORATION  
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
  
Year ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

INDUSTRIAL SALE

On December 23, 2014, we entered into an agreement with Revolution Acquisition LP (Revolution), a Birch Hill Equity 
Partners company, to sell our Industrial Division for cash proceeds of $300 million plus the assumption of certain 
decommissioning liabilities. The sale proceeds are subject to customary purchase price adjustments related to 
closing balance sheet working capital and capital expenditure targets. The transaction is expected to close in the first 
quarter of 2015, upon the satisfaction of customary closing conditions and receipt of regulatory approvals. As a result 
of this agreement, we have defined our Industrial Division as “Discontinued Operations”, the remaining operations 
as “Continuing Operations” and the total Discontinued Operations and Continuing Operations as “Combined 
Operations”. In accordance with the requirements of IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued 
Operations, income and expenses and cash flow provided and used associated with the business to be sold have 
been classified as Discontinued Operations in our Consolidated Statements of Operations and Consolidated 
Statements of Cash Flows, respectively, for 2014 and 2013. Associated assets and liabilities have been classified as held 
for sale in our Consolidated Statements of Financial Position as at December 31, 2014 and the comparative information 
has not been restated. Unless otherwise noted, commentary and the financial results will refer to Continuing Operations.
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RECONCILIATION OF NON-GAAP MEASURES

EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA from Continuing Operations are calculated as follows:

Year ended December 31,

($000s except per share data) 2014 2013

Net (loss) earnings from Continuing Operations (12,372) 24,286

Add back:

Income tax expense 2,968 5,285

Net financing charges expense 48,095 22,654

Amortization(1) 57,409 43,449

Impairment 19,402 –

EBITDA 115,502 95,674

Add back:

Stock-based compensation expense(2)

Restructuring and other related costs 6,975 –

6,453 7,790

Adjusted EBITDA 128,930 103,464

Weighted average number of Shares 55,802 54,938

EBITDA per share 2.07 1.74

Adjusted EBITDA per share 2.31 1.88

(1) Includes non-cash gains or losses on asset disposal and other non-cash charges.
(2) Stock-based compensation expense includes $1,003 for 2014 and $2,546 for 2013 in non-cash stock-based compensation.

“Combined Adjusted EBITDA” provides an indication of the results generated by both our Continuing Operations 
and Discontinued Operations prior to how these operations are financed, assets are amortized or impaired, stock-
based compensation is recognized or how the results are taxed in various jurisdictions. Combined Adjusted EBITDA is 
derived from the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income as follows:

Year ended December 31,

($000s except per share data) 2014 2013

Net (loss) earnings (142,673) 21,940

Add back:

Income tax expense from Continuing Operations 2,968 5,285

Income tax (recovery) expense from Discontinued Operations (39,814) 669

Net financing charges expense from Continuing Operations 48,095 22,654

Net financing charges expense from Discontinued Operations 1,757 1,827

Impairment from Continuing Operations 19,402 –

Impairment from Discontinued Operations 185,812 21,198

Amortization from Continuing Operations(1) 57,409 43,449

Amortization from Discontinued Operations(1) 20,872 23,548

Combined EBITDA 153,828 140,570

Add back:

Stock-based compensation expense from Continuing Operations(2)

Stock-based compensation expense from Discontinued Operations(3) 1,210 1,704

Restructuring and other related costs from Continuing Operations 6,975 –

Restructuring and other related costs from Discontinued Operations 8,556 –

6,453 7,790

Combined Adjusted EBITDA 177,022 150,064

Weighted average number of Shares 55,802 54,938

Combined EBITDA per share 2.76 2.56

Combined Adjusted EBITDA per share 3.17 2.73

(1) Includes non-cash gains or losses on asset disposal and other non-cash charges.
(2) Stock-based compensation expense includes $1,003 for 2014 and $2,546 for 2013 in non-cash stock-based compensation.
(3) Stock-based compensation expense for Discontinued Operations includes $198 for 2014 and $604 for 2013 in non-cash stock-based compensation.

• The competitive environment of our industry  
in Canada and the U.S.;

• Success of our growth, acquisition and technical 
development strategies, including integration of 
businesses and processes into our operations,  
and potential liabilities from acquisitions;

• Potential operational and safety risks and hazards, 
obtaining insurance for such risks and hazards on 
reasonable financial terms, and potential failure  
of meeting customer safety standards;

• The seasonal nature of our operations;

• Costs associated with operating our landfills  
and reliance on third-party waste volumes;

• Risk of pending and future legal proceedings; 

• Risk to our reputation; 

• Our ability to attract, retain, and integrate  
skilled employees and maintain positive labour  
union relationships;

• Open access for new industry entrants and the general 
unprotected nature of technology used in  
the waste industry;

• Possible volatility of the price of, and the market for,  
our Shares, and potential dilution for shareholders in  
the event of a sale of additional Shares; 

• Financial covenants in our debt agreements that may 
restrict our ability to engage in transactions or to obtain 
additional financing; and 

• Such other risks or factors described from time  
to time in reports we file with securities  
regulatory authorities.

During the fourth quarter, we reached an agreement to sell our Industrial Division. This agreement was the result 
of the comprehensive review of the Industrial Division announced in December 2013 (Rationalization Plan) and the 
strategic review initiated in the second quarter of 2014 (Strategic Review). As such, forward-looking information in this 
document is made subject to any changes upon closing of the transaction. 

By its nature, forward-looking information involves numerous assumptions, known and unknown risks and uncertainties, 
both general and specific, that contribute to the possibility that the predictions, forecasts, projections and other 
forward-looking information will not occur. Many other factors could also cause actual results, performance or 
achievements to be materially different from any future results, performance or achievements that may be expressed 
or implied by such forward-looking information and readers are cautioned that the foregoing list of factors is not 
exhaustive. Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or should assumptions underlying the 
forward-looking information prove incorrect, actual results may vary materially from those described herein as 
intended, planned, anticipated, believed, estimated or expected. Furthermore, the forward-looking information 
contained in this document is made as of the date of this document and, in each case, is expressly qualified by this 
cautionary statement. Unless otherwise required by law, we do not intend, or assume any obligation, to update  
any such forward-looking information.

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) contains references to certain financial measures, including some 
that do not have any standardized meaning prescribed by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS or GAAP) 
and may not be comparable to similar measures presented by other corporations or entities. These financial measures 
are identified and defined below.

“EBITDA”, “EBITDA per share”, “Adjusted EBITDA”, and “Adjusted EBITDA per share” are measures of our operating 
profitability. EBITDA provides an indication of the results generated by our principal business activities prior to how 
these activities are financed, assets are amortized or impaired, or how the results are taxed in various jurisdictions.  
In addition, Adjusted EBITDA provides an indication of the results generated by our principal business activities 
prior to recognizing stock-based compensation and restructuring and other related costs. Adjusted EBITDA provides 
improved continuity with respect to the comparison of our operating results over a period of time. Stock-based 
compensation, a component of employee remuneration, can vary significantly with changes in the price of our 
Shares, while restructuring and other related costs are outside of our normal course of business. Restructuring and 
other related costs are charges primarily attributable to the Rationalization Plan and the Strategic Review. EBITDA 
and Adjusted EBITDA are derived from the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income. 
EBITDA per share and Adjusted EBITDA per share are derived by dividing EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA by the basic 
weighted average number of Shares.
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“Divisional EBITDA” provides an indication of the results generated by the division’s principal business activities  
prior to how the assets are amortized, and before allocation of Selling, general and administrative costs (SG&A). 
Divisional EBITDA is the sum of gross profit and amortization for the respective division. Divisional EBITDA is derived 
from gross profit as follows:

Year ended December 31,

($000s except per share data) 2014 2013

Gross profit 162,186 144,879

Add back:

Amortization included in cost of sales 40,772 30,609

Divisional EBITDA 202,958 175,488

New Markets(1) 108,906 91,715

 Oilfield(1) 94,052 83,773

Deduct:

SG&A(2) 80,481 79,814

Restructuring and other related costs 6,975 –

EBITDA 115,502 95,674

(1) New Markets and Oilfield Divisional EBITDA for the year ended December 31, 2013 has been restated to reflect a change in reporting structure.  
New Markets was reduced and Oilfield was increased by $1,651.

(2) SG&A excludes amortization of $16,637 for 2014 and $12,840 for 2013.

“Adjusted net earnings” and “Adjusted net earnings per share” are measures of our profitability from Continuing 
Operations. Adjusted net earnings from Continuing Operations (Adjusted net earnings) provides an indication  
of the results generated by our principal business activities prior to recognizing stock-based compensation recovery 
or expense, the gain or loss on embedded derivatives, impairment and restructuring and other related charges. 
Stock-based compensation expense, a component of employee remuneration, can vary significantly with changes in 
the price of our Shares. The loss (gain) on the embedded derivative is a result of the change in the trading price of the 
debentures and the volatility of the applicable bond market. Impairment and restructuring and other related costs 
are related to initiatives outside of our normal course of business. As such, Adjusted net earnings provides improved 
continuity with respect to the comparison of our results over a period of time. Adjusted net earnings per share is 
derived by dividing Adjusted net earnings by the basic weighted average number of Shares.

Year ended December 31,

($000s except per share data) 2014 2013

Net (loss) earnings from Continuing Operations (12,372) 24,286

Add back (deduct):

Stock-based compensation expense 6,453 7,790

Embedded derivative loss (gain) 14,691 (3,036)

Impairment 19,402 –

Restructuring and other related costs 6,975 –

Adjusted net earnings 35,149 29,040

Weighted average number of Shares 55,802 54,938

Adjusted net earnings per share 0.63 0.53

“Book value per share” is used to assist management and investors in evaluating the book value compared to the market value.

Year ended December 31,

($000s except per share data) 2014 2013

Total Equity 522,906 675,162

Shares outstanding 56,026 55,336

Book value per share 9.33 12.20

“Cash Basis Return on Capital” (ROC - Cash) is used to assist management and investors in measuring the returns 
realized at the consolidated level from capital employed. ROC - Cash is derived from Adjusted EBITDA less cash 
stock-based compensation, cash taxes and maintenance capital divided by the average of the beginning and ending 
balances of our total assets less current liabilities for the period (Net Assets). 

“Divisional Return on Capital” is used to assist management and investors in measuring the returns realized at the 
Divisional level from capital employed. It is derived from Divisional EBITDA divided by the average of the beginning 
and ending balances of assets employed for the period. 

“Net Debt” is defined as sum of amount drawn on the Credit Facility, Letters of Credit and Senior Unsecured 
Debentures less Cash on hand.

“Funds from operations” is used to assist management and investors in analyzing cash flow and leverage from 
Continuing Operations. Funds from operations as presented is not intended to represent operating funds from 
operations or operating profits for the period, nor should it be viewed as an alternative to cash flow from operating 
activities, net earnings or other measures of financial performance calculated in accordance with IFRS. Funds from 
operations is derived from the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows and is calculated as follows:

Year ended December 31,

($000s except per share data) 2014 2013

Cash from Continuing Operations 85,943 90,817

Add back (deduct):

Decrease in non-cash working capital (505) (18,586)

Decommissioning obligations incurred 2,854 2,797

Funds from operations 88,292 75,028

Weighted average number of Shares 55,802 54,938

Funds from operations per share 1.58 1.37

References to EBITDA, EBITDA per share, Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA per share, Divisional EBITDA, 
Adjusted net earnings, Adjusted net earnings per share, ROC - Cash, Divisional Return on Capital, Net Debt, 
Funds from operations and Funds from operations per share throughout this document have the meanings set 
out above. Adjusted SG&A has the meaning described in the section titled “Corporate and Other” and in section 

“Discontinued Operations”. 

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with (i) the audited consolidated financial 
statements of Newalta, and the notes thereto (Financial Statements), for the year ended December 31, 2014  
and 2013, (ii) the Financial Statements of Newalta and notes thereto and MD&A of Newalta for the year ended  
December 31, 2013 and 2012, (iii) the most recently filed Annual Information Form of Newalta and (iv) the unaudited 
condensed consolidated interim financial statements of Newalta and the notes thereto and MD&A for the quarters 
ended March 31, 2014, June 30, 2014, and September 30, 2014. This information is available at SEDAR (www.sedar.com). 
Information for the year ended December 31, 2014, along with comparative information for 2013, is provided. 

This MD&A is dated February 19, 2015, and takes into consideration information available up to that date.  
Throughout this document, unless otherwise stated, all currency is stated in Canadian dollars, MT is defined as 
“tonnes” or “metric tons”, and n/m indicates the percentage change is not meaningful. 
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NEWALTA – WHO WE ARESELECTED ANNUAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION(1)

STRATEGY

($000s except per share data) 2014 2013 2012(2)

Combined Operations(2)   

Revenue 858,413 783,396 726,209

Gross profit 206,225 188,538 169,758

% of Revenue 24% 24% 23%

Net (loss) earnings(3) (142,673) 21,940 42,804

per share ($) - basic (2.56) 0.40 0.86

per share ($) - diluted (2.52) 0.40 0.85

Combined Adjusted EBITDA(4) 177,022 150,064 142,136

per share(4) 3.17 2.73 2.86

Cash from operating activities 124,466 123,574 97,443

per share ($) 2.23 2.25 1.96

Total Assets 1,365,085 1,408,241 1,318,758

Maintenance capital expenditures(4) 37,465 29,679 34,952

Growth capital expenditures(4) 154,935 141,461 137,388

Dividends declared 27,100 23,671 18,918

per share ($)(4) 0.48 0.43 0.38

Dividends paid 20,536 17,799 17,382

Senior long-term debt - net of issue costs 183,104 117,136 76,500

Senior Unsecured Debentures(5) - principle amount 275,000 250,000 250,000

Weighted average Shares outstanding 55,802 54,938 49,690

Shares outstanding, December 31(6) 56,026 55,336 54,263

Continuing Operations(2)(7)   

Revenue 495,331 412,179 369,904

Gross profit 162,186 144,879 116,900

% of Revenue 33% 35% 32%

Net (loss) earnings from Continuing Operations (12,372) 24,286 32,455

per share ($) - basic (0.22) 0.44 0.65

per share ($) - diluted (0.22) 0.43 0.64

Adjusted net earnings(4) 35,149 29,040 28,571

per share ($) basic adjusted(4) 0.63 0.53 0.57

Adjusted EBITDA(4) 128,930 103,464 96,950

per share(4) 2.31 1.88 1.95

Cash from Continuing Operations 85,943 90,817 45,096

per share ($) 1.54 1.65 0.91

Funds from operations(4) 88,292 75,028 72,599

per share ($)(4) 1.58 1.37 1.46

Maintenance capital expenditures(4) 25,569 21,699 10,938

Growth capital expenditures(4) 146,215 126,160 122,087

(1) Management’s Discussion and Analysis and Newalta’s Consolidated Financial Statements and notes are attached. References to Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles (GAAP) are synonymous with IFRS and references to Consolidated Financial Statements and notes are synonymous with 
Financial Statements. 

(2) In December 2014, we entered into an agreement with Revolution to sell our Industrial Division. As a result of this agreement, we have defined our Industrial 
Division as “Discontinued Operations”, the remaining operations as “Continuing Operations” and the total Discontinued Operations and Continuing 
Operations as “Combined Operations”. In accordance with the requirements of IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, 
income and expenses and cash flow provided and used associated with the business to be sold have been classified as Discontinued Operations in our 
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. Associated assets and liabilities have been classified as held for sale  
in our Consolidated Statements of Financial Position as at December 31, 2014 and the comparative information has not been restated. 

(3) Recognized approximately $205.2 million and $21.2 million in impairment in 2014 and 2013, respectively. See “Critical Accounting Estimates” on  
page 42 for further details.

(4) These financial measures do not have any standardized meaning prescribed by GAAP and are therefore unlikely to be comparable to similar measures 
presented by other issuers. Non-GAAP financial measures are identified and defined throughout this Management’s Discussion and Analysis.

(5) 2012 and 2013 includes Series 1 and Series 2 senior unsecured debentures and 2014 includes Series 2 and Series 3 senior unsecured debentures.  
Series 1, Series 2 and Series 3 senior unsecured debentures are collectively referred to as “Senior Unsecured Debentures”.

(6) Newalta has 56,193,117 Shares outstanding as at February 19, 2015.
(7) 2012 financial information for Continuing Operations is unaudited.

2014 was a year of change and growth for Newalta. 

• We executed the rationalization plan associated with the comprehensive review announced in December 2013 
focused primarily on our Industrial Division and SG&A (Rationalization Plan). As a result, we realized approximately 
$9.4 million in cash savings.

• We completed a strategic review of a full range of potential alternatives for our Industrial Division (Strategic Review), 
including a potential sale, IPO or spinoff of the division, in whole or in parts. As a result, we entered into an agreement 
to sell our Industrial Division. 

• We completed the CEO succession with transition of leadership to John Barkhouse as our new CEO and President. 

• We added two new members to our Board of Directors to prepare for board member retirements in 2015. 

As we enter 2015, we will continue to assess our current business model and streamline our organizational structure 
to align with a more cohesive service offering. We will refresh our five-year strategy for the business and will 
communicate the complete strategy in May of this year.  

2014 IN REVIEW

Division  Progress in 2014

NEW MARKETS

Revenue and Divisional 
EBITDA growth of 27% and 
19%, respectively.

Maintained pacesetter 
Divisional ROC.

Heavy Oil and onsite contract 
expansion

Extend and grow existing 
contracts

• Increased New Markets’ contract revenue 14% over 2013, 
representing 42% of total New Markets revenue (2013: 46%). 

• Secured three new Mature Fine Tailings (MFT) contracts:

 – A contract with Shell Canada Limited (Shell) for the 
construction of the second MFT plant at its Jackpine Mine;

 – A contract with Shell to extend operations at the first MFT 
plant and to operate the second MFT plant at its Jackpine 
Mine; and 

 – A commissioning contract with Syncrude Canada Ltd. 
(Syncrude) for its full-scale centrifugation facility that will 
process MFT at Syncrude’s Mildred Lake operations.

• Began construction of our Fort McMurray full-scale facility 
to serve the oil sands. This facility will bring us closer to our 
Heavy Oil customers and will complement our onsite services. 
This facility will be commissioned in 2015.

• Successfully field tested an oil sands water treatment 
technology in collaboration with DuPont.

Expand our presence in U.S. 
markets

• Recovered drill site utilization rates to historical levels.

• Established one new satellite facility in the Bakken to 
contribute to first half of 2015. Our plan to develop three new 
operating locations shifted as a result of regulatory and site 
development delays. Development of these sites is influenced 
by numerous factors, including the regulatory environment, 
the micro and macroeconomics in the respective regions,  
and availability of resources.

• Commenced operations at two satellite facilities in the Bakken, 
which were established in 2013.

Newalta is North America's leading provider of innovative, engineered environmental solutions that enable customers 
to reduce disposal, enhance recycling and recover valuable resources from industrial residues. We serve customers 
onsite directly at their operations and through a network of locations in Canada and the U.S. Our proven processes 
and excellent record of safety make us the first choice provider of sustainability enhancing services to oil, natural gas, 
petrochemical, refining, lead, manufacturing and mining markets. With a skilled team of people, a two decade track 
record of profitable expansion and commitment to commercializing new solutions, Newalta is positioned for sustained 
future growth and improvement.
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Division  Progress in 2014

OILFIELD

Revenue and Divisional 
EBITDA growth of 12%

Expand facility network • Established two new satellite facilities to be commissioned  
in the first half of 2015. 

• Commenced operations at our satellite facilities in Shaunavon, 
Saskatchewan, and Waskada, Manitoba, which were 
established in 2013. 

• Developed the next generation of our drill cuttings treatment 
technology for future installation.

Drive incremental cash flow 
from existing assets

• Oilfield Divisional EBITDA as a percent of revenue improved 
from 45% in 2013 to 46% driven by returns on growth 
capital investments that resulted in ongoing productivity 
improvements.

• Implemented automation initiatives at several facilities that 
helped drive incremental cash flow. 

• Began construction on a landfill near our Gold Creek satellite 
facility to provide expanded services and network efficiencies. 
This landfill is expected to be completed in the third quarter 
of 2015.

Increase market share in 
onsite services

• Recovered drill site utilization rates to historical levels.

INDUSTRIAL

Drive incremental cash flow 
from existing assets

• Executed Rationalization Plan announced in late 2013. We 
closed four facilities, reduced overheads and redirected lines 
of business and realized approximately $9.4 million in savings.

• Initiated and completed Strategic Review in 2014. 

• Entered into agreement with Revolution to sell the Industrial 
Division as a result of the Strategic Review. The sale is subject 
to customary conditions and approvals and is expected to 
close in Q1 2015.

Increase market share and 
contributions in onsite 
services in multiple industry 
segments

• Increased Industrial onsite contributions by more than 40% 
over 2013, driven by an increased market presence in both the 
mining and refinery markets. 

RISKS TO OUR STRATEGY 

While we remain optimistic about our long-term outlook, we are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties in 
carrying out our activities. For further discussion on our Risk Management program, refer to the “Risk Management” 
section. A complete list of our risk factors is disclosed in our most recently filed Annual Information Form.

Risks Mit igation

MARKET ACTIVIT Y IS LOWER THAN ANTIC IPATED

Lower market activity can translate into reduced waste volumes 
and weaker commodity prices, impacting returns on existing 
assets and our capacity to invest in organic growth capital.

• Improve productivity.

• Develop new technologies that make our processes more 
effective and cost-efficient.

• Develop satellites that are less capital-intensive and have the 
capacity to be relocated.

• Grow onsite contract revenue to mitigate exposure to 
commodity prices.

• Maintain debt leverage to provide adequate financial flexibility. 
Maintain long-term debt in capital structure to support 
financial stability.

• Utilize, as needed, proven defensive toolkit to manage costs 
and capital expenditures.

Risks Mit igation

SAFET Y RECORD

Failure to meet customer safety standards while working on 
customer sites or at our facilities could result in limitations in 
our ability to maintain and secure new contracts.

• Since 1993, safety has been established as one of our  
core values.

• Long standing history of safety excellence.

• Our Environmental, Health and Safety (EH&S) team works with 
operators, customers and regulators to foster a  
culture of safety and prevention to ensure we maintain  
our strong record.

• Designs for facilities and onsite equipment are subject to strict 
hazards and operability studies and engineering practices.

COMPETITION

Competition can come from generators of waste processing 
streams internally or from new third-party waste processors 
entering the market.

• We are well established in the industry, with an excellent safety 
record and employee training. 

• We have a strong customer-focused approach and service 
differentiation to secure Newalta brand loyalty across all 
business lines.

• Barriers to entry include facility network and infrastructure as 
well as regulatory requirements, including permits.

• Our facilities are optimally located near the point of waste 
generation and our network provides our customers with a 
backstop for process guarantees to better serve their needs.

• Our onsite services are targeted to facilitate customers 
managing their waste onsite.

ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATIONS

Changes in environmental regulations also impact our business. • Generally, we have a positive bias to changes in environmental 
regulations, as they provide opportunities for service expansion.

• We are actively engaged in the review of forthcoming legislation 
to ensure that our operations can adapt as needed and to 
ensure that we are prepared to capitalize on opportunities as 
they arise.

COMMERCIALIZE TECHNOLOGIES 

Failure to commercialize new technologies could reduce  
our competitiveness. 

• We have a staged approach for developing technologies, 
which differentiates between proven and unproven 
technologies, and ensures that resources can be redeployed 
efficiently to other initiatives.

• Other initiatives include expansion of services and 
business development.

• Performance from our current assets employed 
is not contingent on the commercialization of the 
identified technologies.

ORGANIZATIONAL C APABILITIES

Failure to effectively recruit, retain and integrate top talent 
could negatively impact our ability to meet our long-term 
targets.

• Develop our people through talent development 
programs that include customized leadership training and 
comprehensive on-boarding.

• Engage new employees in EH&S training programs and 
Safety Leadership programs.

• Use of cross-functional training and teams to 
promote integration.

2120



CORPORATE OVERVIEW

2014 was a year of change and growth for Newalta. We delivered on our plans to grow our energy services business and 
to rationalize and divest the Industrial Division. During the fourth quarter, we entered into an agreement with Revolution 
to sell our Industrial Division for cash proceeds of $300 million. This agreement is the result of the Rationalization Plan 
initiated in December 2013 and the Strategic Review initiated in April 2014. We intend to use the proceeds to capitalize 
on our strong market position and further strengthen the balance sheet. Proceeds from the sale will immediately be 
used to pay down debt. We continue to actively pursue acquisitions where we can add meaningful value and further 
advance our business strategy. 

COMBINED OPERATIONS

Year ended December 31,

($000s) 2014 2013 % change

Adjusted EBITDA from Continuing Operations(1) 128,930 103,464 25

Adjusted EBITDA from Discontinued Operations(1) 48,092 46,600 3

Combined Adjusted EBITDA(1) 177,022 150,064 18

(1) These financial measures do not have any standardized meaning prescribed by GAAP and are therefore unlikely to be comparable to similar measures 
presented by other issuers. Non-GAAP financial measures are identified and defined throughout this Management’s Discussion and Analysis.
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2014 Combined Adjusted EBITDA grew 18% to $177.0 million over the prior year. Growth in Continuing Operations 
and savings realized from the Rationalization Plan were offset by weaker performance in Discontinued Operations. 
Combined results for 2014 were below guidance due to weaker than expected performance from our Discontinued 
Operations and the sharp decline in crude oil prices in the fourth quarter. Net loss from Combined Operations 
decreased from earnings of $21.9 million in 2013 to a net loss of $142.7 million due primarily to the Net loss from 
Discontinued Operations of $130.3 million. Restructuring and other related costs from Combined Operations for the 
year were $15.5 million, above guidance due to the recognition of onerous leases for Industrial properties retained  
by Newalta that will no longer be in use.

RESTRUCTURING AND OTHER RELATED COSTS 
Year ended December 31,

($000s) 2014 2013 % change

Restructuring and other related costs from Continuing Operations(1) 6,975 – –

Restructuring and other related costs from Discontinued Operations(1) 8,556 – –

Restructuring and other related costs from Combined Operations 15,531 – –

(1) For further information, see Note 4 and Note 5 to the Financial Statements. 

ADJUSTED SG&A BEFORE NON-RECURRING ITEMS
Year ended December 31,

($000s) 2014 2013 % change

Adjusted SG&A before non-recurring from Continuing Operations(1) 74,028 67,446 10

Adjusted SG&A before non-recurring from Discontinued Operations(1) 14,892 17,626 (16)

Combined Operations Adjusted SG&A before non-recurring(1) 88,920 85,072 5

(1) These financial measures do not have any standardized meaning prescribed by GAAP and are therefore unlikely to be comparable to similar measures 
presented by other issuers. Refer to the “Corporate and Other” and to “Discontinued Operations” sections for further information. 

Combined Operations Adjusted SG&A before non-recurring items was $88.9 million or 10.4% of revenue compared to 
$85.1 million or 10.9% of revenue in 2013. Increased costs to support U.S. expansion along with executive recruitment and 
associated charges in Continuing Operations were partially offset by the savings realized from the Rationalization Plan.

Capital expenditures from Combined Operations for the year ended December 31, 2014 were $192.4 million, focused 
primarily on growth projects in New Markets and Oilfield. 

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

2014 Adjusted EBITDA was $128.9 million, up 25% over 2013. 2014 results reflect growth in both our New Markets  
and Oilfield divisions, partially offset by higher Adjusted SG&A. As a percentage of revenue, Adjusted SG&A before 
non-recurring items decreased from 16.4% in 2013 to 14.9% in 2014 as a result of cost management. Contracts 
generated 24% of the revenue from Continuing Operations. Net loss from Continuing Operations for the year was 
$12.4 million compared to net earnings of $24.3 million in the prior year. The decrease reflected higher Adjusted 
EBITDA offset by higher net finance charges, restructuring and other related charges, and impairment. 2014 Adjusted 
net earnings, which excludes stock-based compensation, embedded derivative loss, impairment and restructuring 
and other related costs, was up 21% over 2013. For further information on the impairment charge, see “Critical 
Accounting Estimates” on page 42.
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2014 New Markets revenue and gross profit increased by 27% and 14%, respectively, to $289.0 million and  
$83.5 million compared to 2013. Performance was driven primarily by returns from our growth capital investments, 
specifically our MFT contracts and U.S. expansion, increased drill site utilization in the U.S. and increased activity at 
our Heavy Oil facilities. 

2014 Oilfield revenue and gross profit increased 12% and 10%, respectively, to $206.3 million and $78.7 million 
compared to 2013. Performance was driven by returns from growth capital investments which resulted in ongoing 
productivity improvements as well as increased demand at our facilities and for our drill site services. 

Capital expenditures from Continuing Operations for the year ended December 31, 2014 were $171.8 million, focused 
primarily on growth projects in New Markets and Oilfield.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

2014 Discontinued Operations revenue and gross profit were $363.1 million and $44.0 million, flat to the prior year. 
Savings realized from the Rationalization Plan, gains from favourable commodity prices and increased demand for our 
eastern onsite services were offset by lower waste receipts at Stoney Creek Landfill (SCL), and reduced contributions 
from both our eastern processing facilities and our oil recycling services (ORS). Net loss from Discontinued Operations 
for the year was $130.3 million. The net loss was primarily impacted by the $185.8 million impairment loss recognized 
in the fourth quarter based on the expected sale proceeds and estimated transaction costs (Net Sale Proceeds). 

In 2014, we realized approximately $9.4 million in savings associated with the Rationalization Plan. Including costs 
associated with the Strategic Review, we incurred approximately $8.6 million in one-time restructuring and other 
related costs in Discontinued Operations. 

In December 2014, we entered into an agreement to sell our Industrial Division. As a result of this agreement, we have 
defined the Industrial Division as “Discontinued Operations”, the remaining operations as “Continuing Operations” 
and the total Discontinued Operations and Continuing Operations as “Combined Operations.” Unless otherwise 
noted, commentary and the financial results will refer to Continuing Operations.
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OUTLOOK

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS

RATIONALIZATION INITIATIVES

In February 2015, we announced a number of cost reduction and rationalization initiatives to maximize business 
efficiencies and drive improved margins. These actions are the result of a comprehensive review of our organization 
post the planned divestiture of our Industrial Division and current market conditions. The objective of this review was 
to drive improved bottom line performance, overall speed and agility and to align the business with market conditions 
in 2015. 

• We reduced our headcount by approximately 180 people across SG&A and operations, representing 15 percent  
of the workforce. We are consolidating corporate and regional office space and have implemented general reductions 
in all expense items across the board and tightened controls over discretionary expenditures. 

• In addition to the overhead reductions, we suspended matching contributions to the Employee Savings Plan in 
Canada and the 401k Plan in the U.S. and implemented a hiring and salary freeze.

We expect to realize in excess of $25 million in annualized ongoing savings and more than $20 million in 2015. 
Approximately 70% of the savings will be realized in corporate overhead, with the balance in operations. We expect 
to incur approximately $10 million in one-time restructuring and other related costs associated with these initiatives in 
the first quarter of 2015, excluding any non-cash charges associated with office space consolidation. We continue to 
review initiatives for cost reduction and margin efficiencies across the organization.

CAPITAL BUDGET

In light of current market conditions, we have reduced our capital budget for 2015 to $105 million, with $90 million in 
growth capital. Our priority will be to complete our 2014 carryover projects, which are expected to contribute in the 
second half of 2015. We will remain disciplined and measured in assessing investment opportunities and deployment 
of capital in the quarters ahead. We will continue to fund contract opportunities, and have the financial flexibility to 
increase our capital spending as market conditions improve. 

OTHER ITEMS 

On February 19, 2015, the Board of Directors elected to suspend the Dividend Reinvestment Plan (DRIP), effective 
with the dividends payable on April 15, 2015, to eliminate the dilution associated with the issuance of Shares through 
the DRIP, and to reflect our improved liquidity following the completion of the Industrial divestiture. 

• The severity of the drop in oil prices may drive actions by our customers beyond what we would typically see with 
normal crude oil price swings. As a result, our customers may seek price reductions from their suppliers, defer capital 
spending, and reduce production and ancillary activities in certain basins. 

 – These factors may have an impact on our performance through the year, and cannot be quantified on any 
linear sensitivity. Our ability to work with our customers to bundle opportunities, partner through contractual 
relationships and collaborate with our suppliers will help mitigate such impacts through the year.

 – The factors noted above may have a negative impact on the returns we would typically expect to see from 2014 
growth capital investments. In 2014, growth capital of $130.0 million was directed to our New Markets and  
Oilfield Divisions. 

• We expect the cost reduction and rationalization initiatives, announced earlier this year, will drive in excess of $25 
million in annualized ongoing savings and more than $20 million in 2015. We continue to review initiatives for 
cost reduction and margin efficiencies across the organization, and anticipate incremental cost efficiencies to be 
announced with our Q1 results in May 2015. 

• In light of current market conditions, we have reduced our 2015 capital budget from $190 million as previously 
reported to $105 million with $90 million allocated directly to growth projects. We will, however, continue to monitor 
market opportunities and will leverage our financial flexibility to invest in additional opportunities as they arise. In the 
near term, we will focus on completing our 2014 carryover projects, including our new full-scale Heavy Oil facility in 
Fort McMurray, Alberta and satellite facilities in both Canada and the U.S., on supporting contract opportunities, and 
on securing permits for satellite expansion. We are developing an inventory of locations and permits for expansion in 
the U.S. and in western Canada. We have refined our satellite execution model and have a pool of equipment ready 
to be deployed as conditions improve. Once permits are secured for a location, a satellite can be fully operational 
within 90 to 120 days. By building an inventory of permits, we can capitalize on our modular processing model and 
drive returns into 2016. 

• We will seek out accretive acquisition opportunities in the energy services sector that will allow us to add meaningful 
value, accelerate growth, and provide access to waste streams where we can apply our technologies, people and 
processes to reduce waste, enhance recycling, and recover value for our customers. Our objective is to incorporate 
acquisition growth alongside our proven organic growth strategy to drive overall revenue and Adjusted EBITDA 
expansion at an accelerated pace. 

We have a resilient business model and a strong balance sheet to weather the current volatile market. Management 
of our debt leverage and optimal use of our cash and capital are of the highest priority. We will remain well within 
our debt covenants throughout 2015. With the sale of Industrial to be completed in Q1 2015, and our business model 
making the final transition to a pure play, lean and agile energy services company, we believe we are well positioned 
to deliver strong returns. In a normalized US$70 to US$75 WTI oil price environment, supported by actions taken to 
date to drive margin efficiencies across the organization, and reflecting full returns from our 2014 growth capital, our 
business model would be expected to generate in excess of $170 million Adjusted EBITDA with an Adjusted EBITDA 
margin in excess of 30%.

We enter 2015 well positioned to confront challenging market conditions, with approximately $130 million in Adjusted 
EBITDA from Continuing Operations in the prior year to set the foundation. A number of factors are expected to have 
direct and indirect impacts on our performance through the year and are outlined below.

• We remain on track to close the sale of our Industrial Division in Q1 2015. Proceeds from the sale will further 
strengthen our balance sheet and financial flexibility, driving our Net Debt leverage under 2.0 at the close of  
the transaction.

• Lower crude oil prices and activity levels will directly impact the value and amount of products we recover  
from waste.

 – For every $10 change in Canadian oil price benchmarks (Canadian Light Sweet and Western Canadian Select), 
we expect to realize an approximate $8 million impact to both revenue and Adjusted EBITDA. Certain analyst 
estimates peg the decline in US$ WTI oil pricing at $40/bbl year over year. 

 – For every 10% change in drilling activity levels, we expect to realize a $5 million impact to Adjusted EBITDA. 
Certain analyst estimates peg the decline in drilling activity in Canada and the U.S. at approximately 30%. 
Approximately 75% of our waste volumes across our markets is driven by production volumes, therefore providing 
a greater degree of stability in these markets. 

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS – NEW MARKETS

OVERVIEW

New Markets includes a network of more than 15 locations with over 400 employees in western Canada and the U.S. 
New Markets’ services involve the mobilization of equipment and our people to manage waste on our customers’ 
sites, the processing of oilfield-generated wastes and the sale of recovered crude oil to our account at our locations. 
New Markets is organized into the Heavy Oil and U.S. business units.

We operate onsite services in both Heavy Oil and the U.S. Our onsite services, excluding drill site, generally follow 
a similar sales cycle. We establish our market position through the execution of short-term projects that ideally lead 
to longer term contracts, providing a more stable cash flow. The cycle to establish longer term contracts can be 
between 18 months and three years. Characteristics of projects and contracts are:

• Projects:  non-recurring and/or seasonal services completed in less than one year, primarily completed between 
March and November and will vary from period to period, and

• Contracts:  generally are year-round arrangements based on fee-for-service solutions with terms longer than one year, 
no direct commodity price exposure and may evolve from projects.

The business units contributed the following to division revenue:

Year ended December 31,

2014 2013

Heavy Oil 70% 74%

U.S. 30% 26%

The following section contains forward-looking information as it outlines our Outlook for 2015. Our Outlook is based 
on several key assumptions including growth capital contributions, commodity prices and activity levels of the 
industries we serve. Changes to these assumptions could cause our actual results to differ materially. Please refer to 
the "Sensitivities" section for a summary of the key metrics on page 41. 
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 The following table compares New Markets’ results for the periods indicated:

Year ended December 31, 

($000s) 2014 2013 % change 

Revenue 289,008 227,572 27

Cost of sales(1) 205,480 154,057 33

Gross profit 83,528 73,515 14

Gross profit as % of revenue 29% 32% (9)

Amortization (included in cost of sales) 25,378 18,200 39

Divisional EBITDA(2) 108,906 91,715 19

Divisional EBITDA as % of revenue 38% 40% (5)

Maintenance capital 9,741 10,312 (6)

Growth capital 84,682 68,390 24

Assets employed(3) 362,316 286,913 26

Assets contributing(4) 304,867 230,313 32

(1) For comparative purposes, cost of sales for the year ended December 31, 2013 has been restated for a reclassification of $1,651 from Oilfield  
to New Markets reflecting a change in reporting structure.

(2) Divisional EBITDA does not have any standardized meaning prescribed by GAAP.
(3) Assets employed is provided to assist management and investors in determining the effectiveness of the use of the assets at a divisional level. Assets 

employed is the sum of capital assets, intangible assets and goodwill allocated to each division. Assets employed as defined does not include capital 
assets held by corporate. Corporate assets include information technology, leasehold improvements and technical development. 

(4) Assets contributing is provided to assist management and investors to understand how our capital spending contributes to our growth. It excludes assets 
related to growth capital projects not yet operational. 

New Markets 2014 revenue and gross profit increased by 27% and 14%, respectively, to $289.0 million and  
$83.5 million, compared to 2013. Performance was driven primarily by returns from our growth capital investments, 
specifically our MFT contracts and U.S. expansion, increased drill site utilization and increased activity at our Heavy 
Oil facilities. U.S. revenue increased 44%. Compared to the prior year, contract revenue increased 14%, generating 
42% of divisional revenue (2013: 46%). 2014 gross profit as a percentage of revenue was 29%, down from 32%  
in the prior year, due to the timing of MFT contracts and a shift in waste mix at our facilities.

In 2014, we made substantial progress on our New Markets growth plans, specifically:

• Recovered drill site utilization rates to historical levels.

• Commenced operations at two satellite facilities in the Bakken, which were established in 2013. 

• Established a third location in the Bakken, which will begin contributing in 2015. 

• Secured a construction contract with Shell for a second MFT plant at Shell’s Jackpine Mine.

• Secured an operating contract with Shell to extend operations at the first MFT plant and to operate the second MFT 
plant at its Jackpine Mine. 

• Secured a commissioning contract with Syncrude for its full-scale centrifugation facility that will process MFT at 
Syncrude’s Mildred Lake operations near Fort McMurray, Alberta. 

• Began construction on the Fort McMurray full-scale facility to serve the oil sands. This facility will be commissioned  
in 2015. This facility will bring us closer to our Heavy Oil customers and will complement our onsite services.

HEAVY OIL

Heavy Oil is dedicated to serving both the oil sands in Alberta and the heavy oil region in Alberta and Saskatchewan. 
We began working in the heavy oil industry 19 years ago when we introduced centrifugation as a solution to treat 
waste oil emulsions. This business has expanded from processing heavy oil waste at facilities in our network to  
long-term contracts to process waste on our customers’ site. Leveraging our facilities as staging areas, we deliver a 
broad range of specialized services at numerous customer sites.

Heavy Oil revenue is primarily generated from:

Revenue Stream Descript ion
% of Annual  
Revenue Factors Impacting Results

Onsite Provides specialized onsite 
services using centrifugation 
for heavy oil producers involved 
in heavy oil mining and in 
situ production. 

60 to 70 • Number and scope of projects and contracts 
directly impacted by our ability to attract and retain 
customers as new heavy oil operations come  
on stream.

• Timing of project and contracts since the onsite 
services we provide typically cannot be performed 
during the winter months.

Facilities Processes oilfield-generated 
wastes including treatment, 
water disposal and landfilling, 
as well as the sale of recovered 
crude oil to our account.

30 to 40 • Production activity drives the amount and makeup 
of waste generated by customers.

• Crude oil prices impact the price we receive for 
the crude oil recovered to our account from waste 
volumes and can impact future production activity. 
Western Canadian Select (WCS) is our heavy crude 
oil industry benchmark. 

2014 revenue increased by 21% compared to 2013, driven by returns from growth capital invested, specifically the 
MFT contracts and increased contributions from our facilities. Recovered crude oil sales increased by 21% due to 
increased volumes and higher crude oil prices. 

HEAVY OIL FACILITIES METRICS AND INDUSTRY DRIVERS
Year ended December 31,

2014 2013 % change

Recovered crude oil (‘000 bbl)(1) 297 269 10

Average crude oil price received (CDN$/bbl) 73.05 67.06 9

Recovered crude oil sales ($ millions) 21.7 18.0 21

Western Canadian Select (CDN$/bbl)(2) 81.15 74.98 8

(1) Represents the total crude oil recovered and sold for our account. 
(2) Western Canadian Select (WCS) is a readily available industry benchmark for heavy crude oil. 
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS – OILFIELD DIVISION

OVERVIEW

Oilfield includes an integrated network of over 30 locations with more than 450 employees to service key markets in 
British Columbia, Alberta, Saskatchewan and Manitoba. 

Oilfield generates revenue from:

Revenue Stream Descript ion
% of Annual 
Revenue Factors Impacting Results

Facilities 
including 
our satellite 
and mobile 
processing 
locations

Processes oilfield-generated 
wastes, including: treatment, 
water disposal, clean oil 
terminalling, custom treating 
and landfilling, as well as the 
sale of recovered crude oil to 
our account.

80 to 90 • Crude oil prices impact the price we receive for 
the crude oil recovered to our account from waste 
volumes. 

• Drilling activity, including metres drilled and 
drilling techniques, will impact the volume and 
makeup of waste received. Ongoing production 
accounts for approximately 55% of our waste 
volume.

Onsite and 
drill site

Provides the supply and 
operation of drill site processing 
equipment, including: 
equipment for solids control and 
drill cuttings management, site 
remediation and centrifugation.

10 to 20 • Drill site utilization is impacted by the number of 
active drilling rigs in the markets we serve in the 
Western Canadian Sedimentary Basin (WCSB). 

U.S.

We entered the U.S. market in 2006 with our drill site services. We have since leveraged our drill site relationships  
to expand our offerings to include onsite work for our customers and establish satellite facilities. 

U.S. revenue is primarily generated from:

Revenue Stream Descript ion
% of Annual 
Revenue Factors Impacting Results

Drill site Provides the supply and 
operation of drill site processing 
equipment, including equipment 
for solids control and drill 
cuttings management.

65 to 75 • Drill site utilization is impacted by the number of 
active drilling rigs in the markets we serve.

Onsite, 
satellites and 
partnerships

Provides centrifugation, water 
management solutions and site 
remediation.

25 to 35 • Price of crude oil impacts the oil and gas industry 
and the type of drilling activity. 

• Drilling activity will impact the volume of waste 
received, with the makeup of that waste being 
affected by specific drilling techniques employed.

• Competition in the areas we service. U.S. onsite 
remains in the early stage of development and we are 
engaged primarily in short-term or project-based work, 
which will vary from quarter to quarter.

2014 revenue increased 44% compared to 2013. This significant improvement was driven by contributions from  
our new satellites coupled with higher drill site revenue. Our two Bakken satellite facilities, established in late 2013, 
are fully contributing, in line with our expectations. 

Year ended December 31,

2014 2013 % change

Drill site utilization 58% 55% 6
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The following table compares Oilfield’s results for the periods indicated:

Year ended December 31,

($000s) 2014 2013 % change 

Revenue 206,323 184,607 12

Cost of sales(1) 127,665 113,243 13

Gross profit 78,658 71,364 10

Gross profit as % of revenue 38% 39% (3)

Amortization (included in cost of sales) 15,394 12,409 24

Divisional EBITDA(2) 94,052 83,773 12

Divisional EBITDA as % of revenue 46% 45% 2

Maintenance capital 11,552 8,297 39

Growth capital 45,149 38,255 18

Assets employed(3) 406,709 384,673 6

Assets contributing(4) 370,015 357,873 3

(1) For comparative purposes, cost of sales for the year ended December 31, 2013 has been restated for a reclassification of $1,651 from Oilfield to New 
Markets, reflecting a change in reporting structure.

(2) Divisional EBITDA does not have any standardized meaning prescribed by GAAP. 
(3) Assets employed is provided to assist management and investors in determining the effectiveness of the use of the assets at a divisional level. Assets 

employed is the sum of capital assets, intangible assets and goodwill allocated to each division. Assets employed as defined does not include capital 
assets held by corporate. Corporate assets include information technology, leasehold improvements and technical development.

(4) Assets contributing is provided to assist management and investors to understand how our capital spending contributes to our growth. It excludes assets 
related to growth capital projects not yet operational. 

2014 Oilfield revenue and gross profit increased by 12% and 10%, respectively, to $206.3 million and $78.7 million, 
compared to 2013. Performance was driven by returns from growth capital investments that resulted in ongoing 
productivity improvements as well as increased demand at our facilities and for our drill site services. Drilling activity 
in the areas we serve increased year over year resulting in increased activity at our facilities. Drill site utilization 
increased to 43%, up from 24% in the prior year. 2014 revenue growth of 12% was slightly below our target of 15% 
due to weaker than expected crude oil prices and activity in the fourth quarter. 

In 2014, we made progress on our Oilfield growth plans, specifically:

• Recovered drill site utilization rates to historical levels. 

• Completed commissioning of our satellite facilities in Shaunavon, Saskatchewan and Waskada, Manitoba during the 
second quarter. Operations at these satellites continue to ramp up. 

• Established two new satellites, at Gold Creek and Fox Creek, Alberta. These satellites are expected to be 
commissioned in the first half of 2015. 

OILFIELD FACILITIES METRICS AND INDUSTRY DRIVERS
Year ended December 31,

2014 2013 % change

Recovered crude oil (‘000 bbl)(1) 279 289 (3)

Average crude oil price received (CDN$/bbl) 87.02 85.19 2

Recovered crude oil sales ($ millions) 24.3 24.6 (1)

Canadian Light Sweet par price (CDN$/bbl)(2) 94.13 93.01 1

(1) Represents the total crude oil recovered and sold for our account. 
(2) Canadian Light Sweet is a readily available industry benchmark for conventional crude oil.
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CORPORATE AND OTHER

Year ended December 31,

($000s) 2014 2013 % change

Selling, general and administrative expenses (SG&A) 97,118 92,654 5

Deduct:

Stock-based compensation expense 6,453 7,790 (17)

Amortization 16,637 12,840 30

Adjusted SG&A(1) 74,028 72,024 3

Adjusted SG&A as a % of revenue 14.9% 17.5% (14)

Adjusted for:

Non-recurring items(2) – 4,578 –

Adjusted SG&A before non-recurring items(1) 74,028 67,446 10

Adjusted SG&A before non-recurring items as a % of revenue 14.9% 16.4% (9)

(1) Adjusted SG&A, and Adjusted SG&A before non-recurring items are Non-GAAP measures and may not be comparable to similar measures presented  
by other issuers.

(2) Non-recurring items include charges for positions eliminated during the period, and the settlement of an out-of-period disputed account. 

The above table removes all stock-based compensation, amortization and non-recurring items from SG&A to provide 
improved transparency with respect to the comparison of our results. In addition, SG&A includes research and 
development expenses related to our Technical Development group. 

Adjusted SG&A before non-recurring items improved to 14.9% of revenue in 2014 from 16.4% in 2013. The 
improvements reflect cost control initiatives, partially offset by executive recruitment and associated charges. 

Stock-based compensation fluctuates based on the effects of vesting, volatility in our share price and dividend rate changes.

Year ended December 31,

($000s) 2014 2013 % change

Bank fees and interest 5,384 4,351 24

Debenture interest, accretion of issue costs, and other 26,608 19,978 33

Finance charges before unwinding of the discount(1) 31,992 24,329 32

Unwinding of the discount(2) 1,412 1,361 4

Finance charges 33,404 25,690 30

Non-cash loss (gain) on embedded derivatives(3) 14,691 (3,036) n/m

Net financing charges 48,095 22,654 112

(1) Reflects capitalized interest of $2,698 in 2014 and $2,798 in 2013.
(2) Relates to decommissioning liability.
(3) Relates to the early redemption feature for the Series 1 and 2 Senior Unsecured Debentures. 

2014 finance charges increased due to the early redemption of the Series 1 Senior Unsecured Debentures. In Q2, we 
used the net proceeds from the issuance of the Series 3 Senior Unsecured Debentures to redeem all of the outstanding 
Series 1 Senior Unsecured Debentures. As a result, we expensed $1.5 million in unamortized financing charges and 
$4.8 million for the call premium related to the Series 1 Senior Unsecured Debentures. Finance charges associated with 
the Senior Unsecured Debentures include the annual coupon rates as well as the accretion of issue costs.

The non-cash loss on the embedded derivatives is associated with the early redemption feature for the Series 1 and 
Series 2 Senior Unsecured Debentures. In 2014, the increase in the non-cash loss on embedded derivatives was driven 
by the redemption of the Series 1 Senior Unsecured Debentures. Upon redemption, the fair value of the embedded 
derivative related to these debentures was extinguished and a non-recurring loss of $17.5 million was recognized. 
Gains or losses on the embedded derivatives have no impact on current or future cash flows and are primarily 
impacted by the risk-free rate, market volatility, and our credit spread. See Note 20 to the Financial Statements for 
further information. 

Year ended December 31,

($000s) 2014 2013 % change

Deferred taxes 2,968 5,285 (44)

Effective tax rate (31.6%) 17.9% n/m

Statutory tax rate 25.74% 25.75% –

2014 deferred tax expense was $3.0 million, down 44% from 2013. The 2014 effective rate was (31.6%) compared 
to 17.9% in 2013. The change in the effective tax rate was driven primarily by the non-deductible loss on embedded 
derivatives. The effective rate is impacted by several other factors including: non-deductible items such as  
stock-based compensation, changes in statutory and other rates, and changes in estimates in respect of prior year  
tax pools. Loss carry forwards were approximately $147 million at December 31, 2014. We do not anticipate paying 
any significant income tax until 2017. 

RESTRUCTURING AND OTHER RELATED COSTS
Year ended December 31,

($000s) 2014 2013 % change

Onerous leases(1) 5,864 – –

Other related costs(2) 1,111 – –

Restructuring and other related costs 6,975 – –
(1) For further information, see Note 5 and Note 24 to the Financial Statements.  
(2)  Other related costs include professional and other fees including audit, legal, tax and environmental consulting fees. These charges relate to initiatives 

outside of our normal course of business, and are not indicative of future results.

Restructuring and other related costs of $7.0 million were primarily driven by the recognition of onerous leases for 
Industrial properties retained by Newalta that will no longer be in use.
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OVERVIEW

On December 23, 2014, we entered into an agreement with Revolution, to sell our Industrial Division for cash proceeds of 
$300 million plus the assumption of certain decommissioning liabilities. We will retain the land at Ville Ste-Catherine (VSC) 
and the associated decommissioning liability. The present value of the obligation is $12.1 million. The sale proceeds are 
subject to customary purchase price adjustments related to closing balance sheet working capital and capital expenditure 
targets. The transaction is expected to close in the first quarter of 2015, upon the satisfaction of customary closing 
conditions and receipt of regulatory approvals. Based on the estimated Net Sale Proceeds, an impairment loss of $185.8 
million was recorded within Discontinued Operations in our Consolidated Statements of Operations.

The Industrial Division includes an integrated network of more than 30 locations with over 900 employees to service  
key market areas across Canada. This division features Canada’s largest lead-acid battery recycling facility located at  
Ville Ste-Catherine, Québec, an engineered non-hazardous solid waste landfill located at Stoney Creek, Ontario, and a 
used oil re-refining facility in North Vancouver. The Division also provides onsite services, engaged primarily in short-term 
or event-based projects, which will vary from quarter to quarter. 

Industrial is organized into Western Industrial and Eastern Industrial business units. The business units contributed the 
following to division revenue:

Year ended December 31,

2014 2013

Western Industrial 24% 24%

Eastern Industrial 76% 76%

VSC as a % of Industrial Division 35% 32%

The following table compares results from Discontinued Operations for the periods indicated:

Year ended December 31,

($000s) 2014 2013 % change 

Revenue 363,082 371,217 (2)

Cost of sales 319,043 327,558 (3)

Gross profit 44,039 43,659 1

Gross profit as % of revenue 12% 12% –

SG&A 18,029 22,311 (19)

Restructuring and other related costs 8,556 – –

Finance Charges 1,757 1,827 (4 )

Earnings before impairment and income taxes 15,697 19,521 (20)

Income tax expense 4,299 5,540 (22)

Net earnings from Discontinued Operations before impairment 11,398 13,981 (18)

Pre-tax impairment recognized on classification to held for sale 185,812 21,198 n/m

Income tax recovery on impairment (44,113) (4,871) n/m

Net loss from Discontinued Operations (130,301) (2,346) n/m

Maintenance capital 11,896 7,980 49

Growth capital 8,720 15,301 (43)

Assets employed(1)(2) 247,268 407,779 (39)

(1) Assets employed is provided to assist management and investors in determining the effectiveness of the use of the assets at a divisional level. Assets 
employed is the sum of capital assets, intangible assets and goodwill allocated to each division. Assets employed as defined does not include capital 
assets held by corporate. Corporate assets include information technology, leasehold improvements and technical development.

(2) Assets employed declined by 39% due largely to a $185.8 million impairment charge recognized in Q4 2014. This charge was based on the estimated 
Net Sale Proceeds. 

2014 Discontinued Operations revenue and gross profit was $363.1 million and $44.0 million, flat to 2013. Savings realized 
from the Rationalization Plan, gains from favourable commodity prices and increased demand for our eastern onsite services 
were offset by lower waste receipts at SCL and reduced contributions from both our processing facilities and ORS. 2014 
VSC revenue increased 7% compared to the prior year, driven by a more favourable foreign exchange rate. We realized 
approximately $9.4 million in the year in cash savings from the Rationalization Plan in Discontinued Operations. SG&A for the 
year decreased 19%, reflecting approximately one-third of the total savings associated with the Rationalization Plan. Net loss 
from Discontinued Operations of $130.3 million was driven by the $185.8 million impairment recognized in the fourth quarter 
based on the estimated Net Sale Proceeds and by restructuring costs. See Note 4 to the Financial Statements for further 
information. Restructuring and other related costs for the year were $8.6 million. Approximately 40% of these costs related 
to the Strategic Review initiated in April, with the balance related to the Rationalization Plan. In Q1 2014, we initiated the 
Rationalization Plan with the closure of four facilities, overhead reductions and initiatives to redirect certain lines of businesses.

Year ended December 31,

($000s) 2014 2013 % change

SG&A for Discontinued Operations 18,029 22,311 (19)

Deduct:

Stock-based compensation expense 1,210 1,704 (29)

Amortization 1,927 1,898 2

Adjusted SG&A(1) 14,892 18,709 (20)

Adjusted SG&A as a % of revenue 4.1% 5.0% (18)

Adjusted for:

Non-recurring items(1) – 1,083 –

Adjusted SG&A before non-recurring items for Discontinued Operations(1)(2) 14,892 17,626 (16)

Adjusted SG&A before non-recurring items as a % of revenue 4.1% 4.7% (13)

(1) Adjusted SG&A, and Adjusted SG&A before non-recurring items are Non-GAAP measures and may not be comparable to similar measures presented  
by other issuers.

(2) Non-recurring items include charges for positions eliminated during the period. 

Year ended December 31,

($000s) 2014 2013 % change

Restructuring costs(1) 4,865 – –

Other related costs 3,691 – –

Restructuring and other related costs(2) 8,556 – –

(1) For further information, see Note 4 to the Financial Statements. 
(2) Restructuring and other related costs are charges primarily attributable to the Rationalization Plan and Strategic Review. Restructuring costs may 

include: costs associated with redirecting lines of business, consolidations, closures and divestitures of certain facilities, overhead reductions, including 
amounts for employee severance, and benefits and outplacement. Other related costs include professional and other fees associated with the Strategic 
Review including audit, legal, tax and environmental consulting fees. These charges relate to initiatives outside of  
our normal course of business, and are not indicative of future results.

INDUSTRIAL METRICS
Year ended December 31,

2014 2013 % change

Base oil sales (‘000 litres) 18,400 18,500 (1)

Motiva (CDN$/litre) 1.02 1.02 –

Lead Volume (MT) 68,100 68,600 (1)

LME Lead (US$/MT) 2,112 2,151 (2)

SCL Volume Collected (‘000 MT) 545 732 (26)

RESULTS OF DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The term liquidity refers to the speed with which a company’s assets can be converted into cash, or its ability to do 
so, as well as cash on hand. Liquidity risk refers to the risk that we will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations 
associated with financial obligations that are settled by cash or another financial asset. Our liquidity risk may arise 
due to general day-to-day cash requirements and in the management of our assets, liabilities and capital resources. 
Liquidity risk is managed against our financial leverage to meet obligations and commitments in a balanced manner. 
For further information on liquidity risk management, refer to Note 20 to the Financial Statements. 

Our debt capital structure is as follows:

($000s) December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Use of Credit Facility:

Amount drawn on Credit Facility 183,104 117,136

Letters of credit(1) 19,520 16,230

Cash on hand(2) (5,414) (449)
197,210 132,917

Senior Unsecured Debentures 275,000 250,000

Total Debt 472,210 382,917

Unused Credit Facility capacity(3) 77,376 117,083

(1) Letters of credit for Continuing Operations are $19.4 million. 
(2) Cash on hand can reduce the Senior Secured Debt and Total Debt by a maximum of $10 million for covenant calculation purposes.
(3) Unused Credit Facility capacity is derived from the total amounts drawn and letters of credit and excludes cash on hand.
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We continue to focus on managing our working capital accounts while supporting our growth. Working capital  
from Continuing Operations at December 31, 2014 was negative $51.6 million (December 31, 2013: negative  
$42.3 million). Working capital reflected a decrease in accounts and other receivables due to timing of receipts, as 
well as an increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities due to the timing of capital expenditures. At current 
activity levels, working capital is expected to be sufficient to meet our ongoing commitments and operational 
requirements of the business. We continue to manage working capital well within our targets, commensurate with 
activity levels. For further information on credit risk management, refer to Note 20 to the Financial Statements. 

DEBT RATINGS
DBRS Limited (DBRS) and Moody’s Investor Service, Inc. (Moody’s) provide a corporate and Senior Unsecured 
Debentures credit rating. In December, upon the announcement of an agreement to sell the Industrial Division, 
Moody’s reaffirmed the ratings outlined below. In light of the pending sale of Industrial, DBRS placed Newalta  

“Under Review, with Developing Implications”. This reflects DBRS’s intent to revisit our ratings upon completion of  
the transaction.

Category DBRS Moody’s

Corporate Rating BB Ba3

Senior Unsecured Debentures BB B1

SOURCES OF CASH

Our liquidity needs can be sourced in several ways including: Funds from operations, borrowings against or increases 
in our Credit Facility, new debt instruments, the issuance of securities from treasury, return of letters of credit or 
replacement of letters of credit with other types of financial security and proceeds from the sale of assets. 

CREDIT FACILITY
At December 31, 2014, $77.4 million was available and undrawn to fund growth capital expenditures and for general 
corporate purposes, as well as to provide letters of credit to third parties for financial security up to a maximum 
amount of $60 million. The aggregate dollar amount of outstanding letters of credit is not categorized in the financial 
statements as long-term debt; however, the issued letters of credit reduce the amount available under the Credit 
Facility and are included in the definition of Total Debt for covenant purposes. Under the Credit Facility, surety bonds 
(including performance bonds) to a maximum of $125 million are excluded from the definition of Total Debt. As at 
December 31, 2014, surety bonds issued and outstanding related to Continuing Operations totalled $13.0 million, 
$51.0 million related to Combined Operations. 

Effective July 15, 2014, we exercised an accordion option within our existing Credit Facility to increase it from 
$250 million to $280 million. Newalta may, at its option, request an extension of the Credit Facility on an annual basis. 
If no request is made to extend the Credit Facility, the entire amount of the outstanding indebtedness would be due 
in full on July 12, 2016. 

Financial performance relative to the financial ratio covenants(1) under the Credit Facility(2) is reflected in the table below. 

December 31, 
2014

December 31, 
2013

 
Threshold

Senior Secured Debt(3) to EBITDA(4) 1.16:1 0.88:1 2.75:1 maximum

Total Debt(5) to EBITDA(4) 2.77:1 2.54:1 4.00:1 maximum

Interest Coverage 4.85:1 5.44:1 2.25:1 minimum

(1) Covenants are calculated based on Combined Operations. 
(2) We are restricted from declaring dividends if we are in breach of any covenants under our Credit Facility. 
(3) Senior Secured Debt means the Total Debt less the Senior Unsecured Debentures. 
(4) EBITDA is a non-GAAP measure, the closest measure of which is net earnings. For the purpose of calculating the covenant, EBITDA is defined as the 

trailing twelve-months consolidated net income for Newalta before the deduction of interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, and non-cash 
items (such as non-cash stock-based compensation and gains or losses on asset dispositions) and non-recurring items up to $10 million per fiscal year. 
Additionally, EBITDA is normalized for any acquisitions or dispositions as if they had occurred at the beginning of the period. 

(5) Total Debt comprises: outstanding indebtedness under the Credit Facility, including a bank surplus, to a maximum $10 million, or overdraft balance,  
and the Senior Unsecured Debentures.

Our Total Debt was $472.2 million as at December 31, 2014, which reflected an $89.3 million increase over  
December 31, 2013. The Total Debt to EBITDA ratio was 2.77 in Q4 2014, down from 2.85 in Q3 2014 (2.54 in  
Q4 2013), and above our target of 2.50. Total Debt increased to fund our growth capital program. Throughout 2014, 
our covenant ratios under the Credit Facility remained well within their thresholds. 

In 2015, we will manage within our covenants. Upon closing, the proceeds from the sale of the Industrial Division will 
immediately be used to pay down debt. Our Net Debt leverage will be under 2.0 at the close of the transaction. Net 
Debt is defined as sum of amount drawn on the Credit Facility, Letters of Credit and Senior Unsecured Debentures 
less Cash on hand (Net Debt).

SENIOR UNSECURED DEBENTURES
On April 1, 2014, we closed an offering of Series 3 Senior Unsecured Debentures due April 1, 2021 with an aggregate 
principal amount of $150 million. The debentures bear interest at the rate of 5.875% per annum, payable semi-annually 
in arrears. On May 1, 2014, the net proceeds from this issuance were used to redeem our Series 1 Senior Unsecured 
Debentures. We paid a redemption price of $129.8 million, plus $4.2 million in accrued and unpaid interest to redeem 
these debentures. The Series 1 Senior Unsecured Debentures were to mature on November 23, 2017.

Term Series 2(1)(2) Series 3(1)(2)

Principal $125.0 million $150.0 million

Interest rate 7.75% 5.875%

Maturity November 14, 2019 April 1, 2021

Interest payable (in arrears) May 14 and November 14 each year April 1 and October 1 each year

Debentures are redeemable 
at the option of Newalta:

PRIOR TO NOVEMBER 14, 2015

• Redemption price equal to 107.75% of the 
principal amount(3)(4) 

or

• In whole or in part, at a redemption price  
that is equal to the greater of:

 – the Canada Yield Price (as defined in the 
trust indenture) and 

 – 101% of the aggregate principal amount of 
Senior Unsecured Debentures redeemed(4)

AFTER NOVEMBER 14, 2015

In whole or in part, at redemption prices 
expressed as percentages of the principal(4) 
if redeemed during the twelve month period 
beginning on November 14 of the years  
as follows:

• 2015 – 103.875%;

• 2016 – 101.938%;

• 2017 and thereafter – 100%

PRIOR TO APRIL 1,  2017

• Redemption price equal to 105.875% of the 
principal amount(3)(4)

or

• In whole or in part, at a redemption price that 
is equal to the greater of:

 – the Canada Yield Price (as defined in the 
supplemental trust indenture) and 

 – 101% of the aggregate principal amount of 
Senior Unsecured Debentures redeemed (4)

AFTER APRIL 1,  2017

In whole or in part, at redemption prices 
expressed as percentages of the principal(4) 
if redeemed during the twelve month period 
beginning on April 1 of the years as follows:

• 2017 – 102.938%;

• 2018 – 101.958%;

• 2019 – 100.979%;

• 2020 and thereafter – 100%.

(1) If a change of control occurs, Newalta will be required to offer to purchase all or a portion of each debenture holder’s Senior Unsecured Debentures,  
at a purchase price in cash equal to 101% of the principal amount of the Senior Unsecured Debentures offered for repurchase plus accrued interest  
to the date of purchase.

(2) The trust indenture requires that Net Cash Proceeds (as defined in the trust indenture) from an asset sale are applied to a combination of capital 
expenditures, acquisitions of additional assets or a permanent reduction in the credit facility within 365 days following receipt of such proceeds. The 
reinvestment period also includes a period of 180 days prior to the disposition.

(3) Up to 35% of the aggregate principal amount with the net cash proceeds of one or more public equity offerings.
(4) Plus interest to the date of redemption.

The outstanding Senior Unsecured Debentures are unsecured senior obligations and rank equally with all other 
existing and future unsecured senior debt and are senior to any subordinated debt that may be issued by Newalta or 
any of its subsidiaries. The outstanding Senior Unsecured Debentures are effectively subordinated to all secured debt 
to the extent of collateral on such debt.

The trust indenture and supplemental trust indentures under which the Senior Unsecured Debentures have been 
issued contain certain annual restrictions and covenants that, subject to certain exceptions, limit our ability to incur 
additional indebtedness, pay dividends, make certain loans or investments and sell or otherwise dispose of certain 
assets subject to certain conditions, among other limitations. 

Covenants(1) under our trust indenture include: 

Ratio
December 31, 

2014
December 31, 

2013 Threshold

Senior Secured Debt including Letters of Credit 202,624 133,366 $25,000 + the greater of  
$220,000 and 1.75x EBITDA

Cumulative finance lease obligations nil nil $25,000 maximum
Consolidated Fixed Charge Coverage 4.79:1 5.20:1 2.00:1 minimum
Period end surplus for restricted payments(2) 132,622 121,385 Restricted payments cannot exceed surplus

(1) Covenants are calculated based on Combined Operations.
(2) We are restricted from declaring dividends, purchasing and redeeming Shares or making certain investments if the total of such amounts exceeds  

the period end surplus for such restricted payments.

We will manage within our covenants throughout 2015.
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USES OF CASH

Our primary uses of funds include maintenance and growth capital expenditures as well as acquisitions, payment of 
dividends, operating and SG&A expenses and the repayment of debt. 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
“Growth capital expenditures” or “growth and acquisition capital expenditures” are capital expenditures that are 
intended to improve our efficiency and productivity, allow us to access new markets and diversify our business. 
Growth capital, or growth and acquisition capital, are reported separately from maintenance capital because these 
types of expenditures are discretionary. “Maintenance capital expenditures” are capital expenditures to replace 
and maintain depreciable assets at current service levels. Maintenance capital expenditures are reported separately 
from growth activity because these types of expenditures are not discretionary and are required to maintain current 
operating levels. On an annual basis, maintenance capital, combined with repair and maintenance expense, (included 
in cost of sales), is approximately 7% of the value of property, plant and equipment. Maintenance capital and repair 
and maintenance expense combined approximate amortization expense. 

Capital expenditures from Continuing Operations for the periods indicated are as follows: 

Year ended December 31,

($000s) 2014 2013

Growth capital expenditures 146,215 126,160

Maintenance capital expenditures 25,569 21,699

Total capital expenditures from Continuing Operations 171,784 147,859

Capital expenditures for the year ended December 31, 2014, were $171.8 million. Growth capital expenditures 
primarily relate to satellite facilities, onsite contracts, onsite equipment pool, and expansion at our facilities. 
Maintenance capital expenditures relate primarily to process equipment improvements at our facilities. Total capital 
expenditures from Combined Operations were $192.4 million, with growth capital expenditures of $154.9 million. 
Capital expenditures were funded from funds from operations and our Credit Facility. 

In light of current market conditions, we have reduced our 2015 capital budget to $105 million, with $90 million in 
growth capital. Growth capital will comprise approximately $45 million for New Markets ($20 million for Heavy Oil and 
$25 million for U.S.) and $35 million for Oilfield; the remaining balance will be directed to technical development and 
corporate investments. Growth capital will be prioritized and allocated towards the $50 million in carryover projects 
initiated in 2014 as well as those capital projects supporting contract opportunities. Carryover projects include our 
new full-scale Heavy Oil facility in Fort McMurray, Alberta, new oilfield satellite facilities in both Canada and the 
U.S., and an additional drill cuttings treatment unit. All carryover projects are expected to be commissioned and 
contributing cash flow in 2015. The 2015 capital program will be funded from both funds from operations and net 
proceeds from the sale of the Industrial Division. We will remain disciplined and measured in assessing investment 
opportunities and deployment of capital in the quarters ahead. We will continue to fund contract opportunities, and 
have the financial flexibility to increase our capital spending as market conditions improve. 

In 2015, we will seek out accretive acquisition opportunities in the energy services sector that will allow us to add 
meaningful value, accelerate growth, and provide access to oil and gas waste streams where we can apply our 
technologies, people and processes to reduce waste, enhance recycling, and recover value for our customers. Our 
objective is to incorporate acquisition growth alongside our proven organic growth strategy to drive overall revenue 
and Adjusted EBITDA expansion at an accelerated pace. 

We may revise the capital budget, from time to time, in response to changes in market conditions that materially 
impact our financial performance and/or investment opportunities. Management evaluates capital projects based on 
their internal rate of return, timing of payback, fit with our corporate strategy, and the risk associated with the projects, 
among other factors. Capital spending is prioritized towards projects that provide stable cash flows and where there 
is a high degree of certainty of completing the project on time and on budget. 

Management and the Board of Directors also review corporate and divisional return on capital metrics, applying 
traditional definitions of Return on Capital Employed (ROCE), (where we apply Net earnings plus tax-adjusted interest 
as the numerator and Net Assets as the denominator), as well as ROC - Cash and Divisional ROC as one of the means 
to evaluate overall effectiveness of our growth capital program.

DIVIDENDS AND SHARE CAPITAL
In determining the dividend to be paid to our shareholders, the Board of Directors considers a number of factors, 
including: the forecasts for operating and financial results, maintenance and growth capital requirements, as well as 
market activity and conditions. After review of all factors, the Board declared $7.0 million in dividends or $0.125 per 
share, paid January 15, 2015, to shareholders on record as at December 31, 2014. 

As at February 19, 2015, Newalta had 56,193,117 Shares outstanding, and outstanding options to purchase up to 
4,852,250 Shares. 

On February 19, 2015, the Board of Directors elected to suspend the DRIP, effective with the dividends payable on 
April 15, 2015, to eliminate the dilution associated with the issuance of Shares through the DRIP, and to reflect our 
improved liquidity following the completion of the Industrial divestiture. 

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS
Our contractual obligations as at December 31, 2014 were:

($000s) Total Less than 1 year 1–3 years 4–5 years Thereafter

Office leases 59,055 10,868 20,933 17,371 9,883

Operating leases(1) 4,948 2,246 2,176 526 –

Surface leases 2,205 441 882 882 –

Senior long-term debt(2) 183,104 – 183,104 – –

Senior unsecured debentures 377,238 18,500 37,000 160,753 160,985

Other obligations(3) 184,011 180,889 3,122 – –

Total commitments 810,561 212,944 247,217 179,532 170,868

(1) Operating leases relate to our vehicle fleet, with terms ranging between 1 and 5 years. 
(2) Senior long-term debt is gross of transaction costs. Interest payments are not included.
(3) Other obligations is comprised primarily of accounts payable and accrued liability balances.

In total, we contributed $2.3 million to the Enertech Partnership Agreement. Newalta is contingently committed to 
capital contributions up to a maximum of $7.0 million over the 10-year investment period. The investment is classified as 
held-for-trading and is recorded in other long-term assets.

FOURTH QUARTER RESULTS

COMBINED OPERATIONS

Three months ended December 31,

($000s) 2014 2013 % change

Adjusted EBITDA from Continuing Operations(1) 30,192 22,398 35

Adjusted EBITDA from Discontinued Operations(1) 9,622 10,397 (7)

Combined Adjusted EBITDA(1) 39,814 32,795 21

(1) These financial measures do not have any standardized meaning prescribed by GAAP and are therefore unlikely to be comparable to similar measures 
presented by other issuers. Non-GAAP financial measures are identified and defined throughout this Management’s Discussion and Analysis.

Q4 2014 Combined Adjusted EBITDA was $39.8 million, up 21% over the prior year. Growth from Continuing Operations 
was offset by lower contributions from Discontinued Operations. Net loss from Combined Operations increased from 
$10.3 million in 2013 to $157.6 million due largely to impairment and restructuring and other related costs.

RESTRUCTURING AND OTHER RELATED COSTS 
Three months ended December 31,

($000s) 2014 2013 % change

Restructuring and other related costs from Continuing Operations(1) 6,449 – –

Restructuring and other related costs from Discontinued Operations(1) 1,685 – –
Restructuring and other related costs from Combined Operations 8,134 – –

(1) For further information, see Note 4 and Note 5 to the Financial Statements.

Restructuring and other related costs from Combined Operations for the quarter were $8.1 million and relate primarily 
to the recognition of onerous leases for Industrial properties retained by Newalta that will no longer be in use.

Capital expenditures from Combined Operations for the three months ended December 31, 2014 were $85.3 million, 
focused primarily on growth projects in New Markets and Oilfield. 

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Fourth quarter Adjusted EBITDA from Continuing Operations grew 35% to $30.2 million over the prior year. Growth was 
driven primarily by returns from our growth capital investments in New Markets. Net loss from Continuing Operations 
for the quarter was $17.9 million, down from net earnings of $2.3 million in the prior year. The decrease reflected higher 
Adjusted EBITDA offset by higher net finance charges, restructuring and other related charges, and impairment. 

Q4 2014 New Markets revenue and gross profit increased 31% and 12%, respectively, to $82.1 million and  
$19.7 million, compared to the prior year period. Performance was driven primarily by returns from our growth capital 
investments, specifically our MFT contracts and U.S. expansion, and increased drill site utilization in the U.S. Q4 2014 
Oilfield revenue and gross profit increased 7% and 4%, respectively, to $51.0 million and $17.6 million, compared to 
the prior year. Performance was driven by increased contributions from our facilities and higher drill site utilization. 

Capital expenditures from Continuing Operations for the three months ended December 31, 2014 were $78.0 million, 
focused primarily on growth projects in New Markets and Oilfield.
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SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY RESULTS FOR COMBINED OPERATIONS

2014 2013

($ millions except per share data) Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1 Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1

Combined Operations
Revenue 229.1 228.4 213.1 187.8 203.8 212.1 196.1 171.3 
Earnings (loss) before taxes (204.7) 23.5 (5.3) 7.0 (13.0) 19.1 6.7 15.1 
Net (loss) earnings (157.6) 16.6 (8.2) 6.5 (10.3) 13.2 4.9 14.2 

Earnings (loss) per share ($) (2.81) 0.30 (0.15) 0.12 (0.19) 0.24 0.09 0.26 
Diluted (loss) earnings per share ($) (2.78) 0.29 (0.14) 0.12 (0.19) 0.24 0.09 0.26 

Weighted average Shares – basic 56.0 55.9 55.8 55.5 55.2 55.7 54.9 54.5 
Weighted average Shares – diluted 56.7 57.0 56.8 56.3 55.8 55.1 55.4 55.2 
Combined EBITDA 36.7 54.6 40.9 21.6 28.7 44.4 38.3 29.1 
Combined Adjusted EBITDA 39.8 59.1 46.0 32.1 32.8 51.2 38.4 27.7 

Quarterly performance is affected by, among other things, weather conditions, timing of onsite projects, the value 
of our products, foreign exchange rates, market demand and the timing of our growth capital investments as well 
as acquisitions and the contributions from those investments. Revenue from certain business units is impacted by 
seasonality. However, due to the diversity of our business, the impact is limited on a consolidated basis. For example, 
waste volumes received at our Oilfield facilities decline in the second quarter due to road bans, which restricts drilling 
activity. This decline is offset by increased activity in our Eastern Industrial onsite business due to the aqueous nature 
of work performed, as well as potentially by fluctuations in the value of our products or event-based waste receipts at 
SCL. Quarterly results over the last eight quarters were also impacted by fluctuations in our share price, which impacts 
the stock-based compensation expense, non-cash gains or losses on the embedded derivatives, and by commodity 
prices, with weaker commodity prices having a larger impact on Q1 2013, Q4 2013, Q1 2014 and Q4 2014. 

Q1 2013 to Q2 2013 change: 

• Revenue and Combined Adjusted EBITDA improved primarily due to timing of contracts and projects in  
Continuing Operations. 

• Net earnings decreased with gains in Adjusted EBITDA offset by higher stock-based compensation expense a 
nd net finance charges related to a non-cash loss on embedded derivatives.

Q2 2013 to Q3 2013 change: 

• Strong performance continued with improved contributions from Continuing Operations and higher event-based 
business at SCL within Discontinued Operations. 

• Net earnings increased due to improved performance and a smaller non-cash loss on embedded derivatives,  
partially offset by higher stock-based compensation and deferred income taxes. 

Q3 2013 to Q4 2013 change:

• Combined Adjusted EBITDA was impacted by non-recurring charges, and decreased performance  
from Continuing Operations. 

• Net earnings decreased as a result of restructuring related impairment, non-recurring charges,  
and decreased performance from Continuing Operations. 

Q4 2013 to Q1 2014 change:

• Combined Adjusted EBITDA was impacted by commodity prices and seasonality, specifically in Discontinued 
Operations, by the unusually cold winter, and by the timing of contracts and projects.

• Net earnings and EBITDA were also impacted by $4.4 million in restructuring and other related costs due  
to the Rationalization Plan. 

Q1 2014 to Q2 2014 change:

• Combined Adjusted EBITDA improved primarily due to improved performance from Continuing Operations,  
specifically New Markets, and from Discontinued Operations due to increased activity and higher volumes at SCL.

• Net earnings decreased with gains in Adjusted EBITDA offset by an embedded derivative loss recorded  
as a result of the early redemption of the Series 1 Senior Unsecured Debentures. 

Q2 2014 to Q3 2014 change:

• Results continued to improve with increased contributions from Continuing Operations. 

Q3 2014 to Q4 2014 change:

• Q4 2014 Combined Adjusted EBITDA decreased due to lower contributions from both Continued  
and Discontinued Operations. 

• Q4 2014 net earnings were impacted by impairment charges totalling $205.2 million. 

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Q4 2014 Discontinued Operations revenue was $96.0 million, flat to the prior year, while gross profit from 
Discontinued Operations was $8.9 million, down 23%. Gains at VSC coupled with the savings realized from the 
Rationalization Plan were offset by lower contributions from our eastern processing facilities and ORS. Net loss from 
Discontinued Operations for the quarter was $139.7 million. The net loss was primarily impacted by the $185.8 million 
impairment loss recognized in the quarter based on the Net Sale Proceeds. In Q4 2014, we realized approximately 
$2.4 million in savings associated with the Rationalization Plan and $1.7 million in restructuring and other related  
costs primarily related to the Strategic Review. 

 
As at and for the three months ended December 31, 2014

New Markets Oilfield
Corporate and 

other
Total Continuing 

Operations

Discontinued 
Operations 
(Industrial) Total

Revenue 82,132 50,996 – 133,128 95,960 229,088
Cost of sales(1) 62,389 33,441 – 95,830 87,042 182,872
Gross profit 19,743 17,555 – 37,298 8,918 46,216
Selling, general and 
administrative(2)

– – 23,271 23,271 4,017 27,288

Impairment 6,369 11,908 1,125 19,402 185,812 205,214
Restructuring and other  
related costs

– – 6,449 6,449 1,685 8,134

Net financing charges – – 9,803 9,803 493 10,296
Earnings (loss) before taxes 13,374 5,647 (40,648) (21,627) (183,089) (204,716)
Property, plant and  
equipment expenditures(3) 

42,860 27,117 8,024 78,001 6,904 84,905

Goodwill 2,819 57,624 – 60,443 – 60,443
Total assets 438,482 447,020 114,321 999,823 365,262 1,365,085
Total liabilities 162,190 95,758 487,100 745,048 97,131 842,179

As at and for the three months ended December 31, 2013

New Markets Oilfield
Corporate and 

other
Total Continuing 

Operations

Discontinued 
Operations 
(Industrial) Total

Revenue 62,531 47,480 – 110,011 93,788 203,799
Cost of sales(1) (4) 44,932 30,532 – 75,464 82,240 157,704
Gross profit 17,599 16,948 – 34,547 11,548 46,095
Selling, general and 
administrative(2)

– – 28,195 28,195 5,851 34,046

Restructuring related impairment – – – – 21,198 21,198
Net financing charges – – 3,378 3,378 485 3,863
Earnings (loss) before taxes 17,599 16,948 (31,573) 2,974 (15,986) (13,012)
Property, plant and equipment 
expenditures(3)

36,908 21,692 6,340 64,940 7,278 72,218

Goodwill 2,819 57,624 – 60,443 35,724 96,167
Total assets (restated)(5) 347,592 410,040 127,691 885,323 522,918 1,408,241
Total liabilities (restated)(5) 145,471 83,266 411,851 640,588 92,491 733,079

(1) Cost of sales includes amortization of $18,620 for 2014 (New Markets $8,763, Oilfield $4,793 and Discontinued Operations $5,064) and $12,711  
for 2013 (New Markets $5,629, Oilfield $3,344 and Discontinued Operations $3,738).

(2) Selling, general and administrative includes amortization of $7,258 for 2014 (Continuing Operations $6,696 and Discontinued Operations $562)  
and $3,973 for 2013 (Continuing Operations $3,435 and Discontinued Operations $538).

(3) Includes property, plant and equipment expenditures gross of disposals, decommissioning discount rate changes and foreign currency  
exchange differences.

(4) For comparative purposes, cost of sales for the three months ended December 31, 2014 was restated for a classification of $93 from Oilfield  
to New Markets, reflecting a change in reporting structure. 

(5) For comparative purposes, total assets and liabilities as at December 31, 2013 were restated for a reclassification from Corporate and other  
to the other segments. 
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SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY RESULTS FOR CONTINUING OPERATIONS

2014 2013(1)

($ millions except per share data) Year Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1 Year Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1

Revenue from Continuing Operations 495.3 133.1 135.4 116.4 110.4 412.2 110.0 117.1 95.6 89.5 
(Loss) Earnings from Continuing 
Operations

(12.4) (17.9) 10.6 (13.8) 8.7 24.3 2.3 7.8 0.1 14.1

(Loss) earnings per share ($) (0.22) (0.32) 0.19 (0.25) 0.16 0.44 0.04 0.14 – 0.26
Diluted (loss) per share ($) (0.22) (0.32) 0.19 (0.24) 0.15 0.43 0.04 0.14 – 0.25

Adjusted net earnings 35.1 6.9 16.8 3.9 7.5 29.0 2.5 13.8 7.0 5.7
Earnings per share ($) – adjusted 0.63 0.12 0.30 0.07 0.14 0.53 0.05 0.25 0.13 0.10

EBITDA 115.5 27.8 40.4 27.6 19.7 95.7 18.8 30.4 23.8 22.7
Adjusted EBITDA 128.9 30.2 43.3 30.4 25.0 103.5 22.4 35.9 23.8 21.4

New Markets
Revenue 289.0 82.1 79.7 71.1 56.1 227.6 62.5 68.1 56.1 40.9
Gross profit 83.5 19.7 26.9 22.3 14.6 73.5 17.6 24.7 18.7 12.5
Amortization (included in  
cost of sales)

25.4 8.8 7.3 5.6 3.7 18.2 5.6 5.9 4.2 2.5

Divisional EBITDA(2) 108.9 28.5 34.2 27.9 18.3 91.7 23.2 30.6 22.9 15.0
Assets employed(3) 363.1 363.1 325.9 305.2 301.8 286.9 286.9 251.9 239.3 225.7
Recovered crude oil (‘000 bbl) 297 77 78 72 70 269 64 70 71 64

Oilfield       
Revenue 206.3 51.0 55.7 45.3 54.3 184.6 47.5 49.0 39.5 48.6
Gross profit 78.7 17.6 23.6 16.9 20.6 71.4 17.0 20.4 14.3 19.7
Amortization (included in  
cost of sales)

15.4 4.8 3.9 3.2 3.5 12.4 3.3 3.1 3.0 3.0

Divisional EBITDA(2) 94.1 22.4 27.5 20.1 24.1 83.8 20.3 23.5 17.3 22.7
Assets employed(3) 411.4 411.4 402.1 391.5 386.9 384.7 384.7 364.0 360.1 354.8
Recovered crude oil (‘000 bbl) 279 68 83 66 62 289 72 69 70 78

(1) Prior year Gross profit and Divisional EBITDA for New Markets and Oilfield has been restated to conform to current presentation.
(2) Divisional EBITDA does not have any standardized meaning prescribed by GAAP. 
(3) Assets employed is provided to assist management and investors in determining the effectiveness of the use of the assets at a divisional level.  

Assets employed is the sum of capital assets, intangible assets and goodwill allocated to each division. 

Results from our Continuing Operations are impacted by seasonality. In New Markets, results in the first half of the 
year are typically weaker than the second half. In the first quarter, cold weather impacts the demand for our heavy oil 
onsite services and in the second quarter the increased demand for heavy oil onsite services is partially offset by road 
bans, which restricts other activity. In Oilfield, results are weaker in the second quarter due to road bans. 

Q1 2013 to Q2 2013 change: 

• Revenue and Adjusted EBITDA increased primarily due to timing of contracts and projects in New Markets.

• Net earnings from Continuing Operations decreased due to higher stock-based compensation expense, net finance 
charges related to a non-cash loss on embedded derivatives and deferred income taxes.

Q2 2013 to Q3 2013 change: 

• Adjusted EBITDA improved primarily from contributions from our growth capital investments in New Markets.

• Net earnings from Continuing Operations increased due to improved performance, a smaller non-cash loss on 
embedded derivatives, partially offset by higher stock-based compensation and deferred income taxes.

Q3 2013 to Q4 2013 change:

• Performance declined as a result of non-recurring charges, weaker commodity prices, and the timing  
of Heavy Oil contracts. 

Q4 2013 to Q1 2014 change:

• Results were primarily impacted by the timing of contracts and projects in New Markets and the impact  
of the unusually cold winter on Oilfield operations.

Q1 2014 to Q2 2014 change:

• Adjusted EBITDA increased primarily due to increased contributions from New Markets driven by U.S. satellite 
contributions, favourable commodity prices and the timing of onsite contracts. These gains were partially offset by the 
impact of spring breakup on Oilfield contributions.

• Net earnings from Continuing Operations decreased with gains in Adjusted EBITDA offset by an embedded derivative 
loss recorded as a result of the early redemption of the Series 1 Senior Unsecured Debentures.

Q2 2014 to Q3 2014 change:

• Results continued to improve with increased contributions from both New Markets and Oilfield. 

Q3 2014 to Q4 2014 change:

• Adjusted EBITDA decreased due to lower contributions from both New Markets and Oilfield. The decrease was driven 
by lower crude oil prices, activity levels and the timing of onsite contracts.

• Net earnings from Continuing Operations were impacted by impairment charges totalling $19.4 million and 
restructuring and other related charges for onerous leases. 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
– NON-RECURRING CHARGES FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

($ millions)
Year ended  

December 31, 2013

Charges for positions eliminated during the year 0.5

Settlement of an out-of-period disputed account 2.1

DOL settlement(1)

DOL settlement charged to New Markets –

DOL settlement charged to SG&A 2.2

Total non-recurring charges 4.8

(1) In Q4 2013, we recognized $4.2 million as a result of the U.S. Federal Department of Labor (“DOL”) settlement. $2.2 million related to prior years and was 
charged to SG&A. $2.0 million was charged to New Markets for 2013 compensation. 

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

We do not have any material off-balance sheet arrangements.

SENSITIVITIES

Results from Continuing Operations are sensitive to changes in commodity prices for crude oil. The direct impact of 
these commodity prices is reflected in the revenue received from the sale of products such as crude oil. Approximately 
20% of our revenue is sensitive to the direct impact of commodity prices. Our results are also impacted by drilling 
activity. Drilling sensitivities are impacted by the area in which drilling occurs, compared to areas where we operate and 
the drilling techniques employed. Where possible, we actively manage these impacts by strategically geographically 
balancing mobile assets to meet demand and shifts in activity levels where necessary. 
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RISK MANAGEMENT

To effectively manage the risk associated with our business and strategic objectives, our risk management approach 
continues to evolve. Our approach provides the framework to understand and address risks faced by our organization. 
Risk categories identified include:

• Strategic – risk to earnings, capital, and strategic objectives arising due to changes in the business environment

• Operational – risk of loss due to failed internal processes and systems, human and technical errors,  
or external events

• Financial – risk associated with financial processes, obligations, and assets

• People – risk to Business Plan due to recruiting, training, labour availability, union relations, and managerial structure

• Legal/Regulatory – risk of loss due to compliance with laws, ethical standards, and contractual obligations

• Technology and Data – risk that IT systems are not adequate to support strategic and business objectives

The following table provides our estimates of fluctuations in key inputs and prices, and the direct impact on revenue 
and Adjusted EBITDA from product sales:

2014 Change in  
benchmark 

Impact on 
Annual Revenue ($)(1) 

Impact on Annual 
Adjusted EBITDA($)(1)

Canadian Light Sweet ($/bbl) 94 10 3.8 million 3.8 million
WCS ($/bbl) 81 10 4.4 million 4.4 million
Drilling activity(2)(3) 5% change 5 to 8 million 2 to 3 million

Metres drilled (million metres) 25 1 1.5 million 0.8 million
Active rigs in WCSB 370 100 rigs 4 million 1 million

(1) Based on 2014 performance and volumes.
(2) Impact from changes in drilling activity assumes a change in the key drilling metrics including metres drilled, and active rigs in the WCSB and in the U.S. 
(3) U.S. results are impacted by changes in drilling activity in the respective plays we serve, as indicated by active rigs, and to a greater extent growth in our 

market share and operations. A sensitivity for active rigs in the U.S. has not been provided because of the overriding impact of shifts in market share  
on our results.

In 2014, we began reporting Canadian Light Sweet as a benchmark price for conventional crude oil, replacing 
Edmonton Par, which was discontinued. 

Stock-based compensation expense is sensitive to changes in our share price. At December 31, 2014, a $1 change 
in our share price between $14 per share and $18 per share has approximately a $1.0 million direct impact on annual 
stock-based compensation reflected in SG&A from Continuing Operations. Stock-based compensation is also 
impacted by dividend rate changes and the effects of vesting. 

The preparation of the Financial Statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of any contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the Financial Statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the period. 
Such estimates relate to unsettled transactions and events as of the date of the Financial Statements. Accordingly, 
actual results may differ from estimated amounts as transactions are settled in the future. Amounts recorded for 
amortization, accretion, future decommissioning obligations, embedded derivatives, deferred income taxes, and 
impairment calculations are based on estimates. By their nature, these estimates are subject to measurement 
uncertainty, and the impact of the difference between the actual and the estimated costs on the Financial Statements 
of future periods could be material.

RECOVERABILITY OF ASSET CARRYING VALUES

The carrying values of all assets, including property, plant and equipment, intangibles and goodwill, are reviewed 
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be 
recoverable. Events or changes in circumstances include items such as: significant changes in the manner in which an 
asset is used, including plans to restructure the operation to which an asset belongs, or plans to dispose of an asset 
before the previously expected date. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual 
asset, the asset is tested as part of a cash generating unit (CGU), which is the smallest identifiable group of assets 
that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets. 
Judgment is applied in allocating assets into CGUs, giving consideration to the level of integration between assets, 
shared infrastructure and the way in which management monitors operations. The carrying values of our CGUs are 
tested annually for impairment. 

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

We assess all assets for impairment at the asset level and the CGU level by comparing the carrying values of the 
assets or CGUs being tested with their recoverable amounts. The recoverable amounts are the greater of the assets’ 
or CGUs’ values in use or their fair values less costs to sell.

The determination of the recoverable amount involves estimating the asset's or CGU’s fair value less costs to sell or its 
value-in-use, which is based on its discounted future cash flows using an applicable discount rate. Future cash flows 
are calculated based on our best estimate of future inflation and are discounted based on our current assessment of 
market conditions.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
In December 2014, we entered into an agreement with Revolution to sell our Industrial Division for cash proceeds 
of $300 million plus the assumption of certain decommissioning liabilities. As a result of this agreement, we have 
classified our Industrial Division and associated support functions as Discontinued Operations. Upon classification, 
all assets and liabilities were required to be measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. 
The expected sales proceeds and estimated transaction costs were used as the basis for determining fair value less 
costs to sell. These estimates are subject to customary purchase price adjustments related to balance sheet working 
capital and capital expenditure targets. The transaction is subject to the satisfaction of customary closing conditions, 
as well as the receipt of regulatory approvals. 

Based on our total estimated Net Sale Proceeds, an impairment loss of $185.8 million was recorded within 
Discontinued Operations in our Consolidated Statements of Operations. 

The pre-tax asset impairment charges are allocated as follows: 

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013(1)

Property, plant and equipment (Note 6) 132,784 7,599

Intangible assets (Note 7) 17,345 5,849

Goodwill (Note 7) 35,683 7,750
185,812 21,198

(1) Impairment loss of $21.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2013 relates to our intention to streamline resources in the Industrial Division through 
rationalization of business lines and facilities in 2014. 

CONTINUING OPERATIONS 
We determined that the upcoming Industrial Division sale and refinement in business strategy constituted potential 
impairment triggers, resulting in the need to assess other assets within Continuing Operations for potential impairment. 
We determined that the carrying value of certain assets would no longer be recoverable through future operations, 
resulting in an impairment loss of $19.4 million, with $6.4 million for New Markets assets, $11.9 million for Oilfield assets 
and $1.1 million for Corporate assets. 

DECOMMISSIONING LIABILITY

We recognize provisions for estimated future decommissioning costs, including future remediation and post-abandonment 
activities, for all of our facilities based on the estimated time until reclamation and the long-term commitments of certain 
sites. The provision is initially recorded at the net present value of the estimated future expenditures required to settle 
the obligation at the balance sheet date. The recorded liability increases over time to its future amount through accretion 
of the discount, with the associated expense included within finance charges. The measurement of the decommissioning 
liability involves the use of estimates and assumptions, including the discount and inflation rate, the expected timing of 
future expenditures and the amount of future abandonment costs. Decommissioning estimates are reviewed annually and 
estimated by management, in consultation with Newalta’s engineers and environmental, health and safety staff, on the 
basis of current regulations, costs, technology and industry standards.

Revisions to the estimated amount or timing of the obligations are reflected prospectively as increases or decreases 
to the recorded liability and the related asset. Actual decommissioning expenditures, up to the recorded liability 
at the time, are drawn against the liability as the costs are incurred. Amounts capitalized to the related assets are 
amortized to income in line with the depreciation of the underlying asset. See Note 14 to the Financial Statements for 
a summary of the key changes.

FAIR VALUE CALCULATION ON SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS AND SHARE APPRECIATION RIGHTS

We have an equity incentive plan where Newalta may grant share-based long-term incentives including stock options, 
restricted share units, performance share units, deferred share units and dividend-equivalent rights to executives, 
employees and non-executive directors (2014 Equity Incentive Plan). Under the 2014 Equity Incentive Plan, we 
may grant rights to acquire up to 10% of the issued and outstanding Shares of Newalta. Currently, the only awards 
outstanding under the 2014 Equity Incentive Plan are options to acquire Shares. The options granted under this 
plan are equity settled. The fair value of the options outstanding under 2014 Equity Incentive Plan at the grant date 
is calculated using a Black-Scholes option pricing model with the share-based compensation expense recognized 
over the vesting period of the options. There are a number of estimates used in the calculation, such as the future 
forfeiture rate, expected dividend amount, risk-free interest rates, expected option life and the future price volatility 
of the underlying security, which can vary from actual future events. The factors applied in the calculation are 
management’s best estimates based on historical information and future forecasts. 
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We may also grant share appreciation rights (SARs) to directors, officers, employees and consultants of Newalta or 
any of its affiliates. SARs entitle the holder thereof to receive cash from Newalta in an amount equal to the positive 
difference between the grant price and the trading price of our Shares on the exercise date. The grant price is 
calculated based on the five-day volume weighted average trading price of our Shares on the TSX. The fair value 
of SARs outstanding at each reporting date is calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. There are a 
number of estimates used in the calculation, such as the future forfeiture rate, expected dividend amount, risk-free 
interest rates, expected option life and the future price volatility of the underlying security, which can vary from  
actual future events. The factors applied in the calculation are management’s best estimates based on historical 
information and future forecasts.

TAXATION

The calculation of deferred income taxes is based on a number of assumptions including estimating the future periods 
in which temporary differences, tax losses and other tax credits will reverse. Tax interpretations, regulations and 
legislation in the various jurisdictions in which we operate are subject to change.

DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

The estimated fair value of derivative instruments resulting in financial assets and liabilities, by their very nature,  
is subject to measurement uncertainty.

LEASES

We make judgments in determining whether certain leases, in particular those with long contractual terms where the 
lessee is the sole user and Newalta is the lessor, are operating or finance leases. 

REVENUE

Newalta offers individual services, products and integrated solutions to meet customer needs. Integrated solutions  
may involve the delivery of multiple services and products occurring in different reporting periods. As appropriate, 
these multiple element arrangements are separated into components and consideration is allocated based upon their 
relative fair values. Significant judgment is applied in identifying, calculating and allocating fair value consideration 
between the separate components of a contract. Depending upon how such judgment is exercised, the timing and 
amount of revenue recognized could differ significantly.

FUTURE ACCOUNTING POLICY CHANGES 

The following new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning 
after January 1, 2015, and have not been applied in preparing these Financial Statements. They may result in future 
changes to our existing accounting policies and other note disclosures. We are evaluating the impact that new 
pronouncements may have on our results of operations, financial position and disclosure. See Note 2r to the Financial 
Statements for further information. 

IFRS 9 – FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (2014)
In July 2014, the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) issued IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (2014), which 
incorporates all three phases of the financial instruments projects: classification and measurement, impairment, 
and hedge accounting. The new standard is effective for periods on or after January 1, 2018 with early application 
permitted. We are currently evaluating the impact of this standard on our Financial Statements. 

IFRS 15 – REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
In May 2014, the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) issued IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with 
Customers. This standard introduces a five-step approach to the recognition of revenues from contracts with 
customers. The core principle of the approach is to recognize revenue in a manner that depicts the transfer of 
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects consideration that the entity expects to be 
entitled to in exchange for the goods or services provided. The standard is effective for fiscal years beginning on 
or after January 1, 2017 with early application permitted. Entities may choose to apply the standard retrospectively 
(with some practical expedients available) or to use a modified transition approach, which allows application of the 
standard retrospectively only to contracts that are not completed at the date of initial application. We are currently 
evaluating the impact of this standard on our Financial Statements.

BUSINESS RISKS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Our business is subject to certain risks and uncertainties. Prior to making any investment decision regarding 
Newalta, investors should carefully consider, among other things, the risks described herein (including the risks and 
uncertainties listed on the front page of this MD&A and throughout this MD&A) and the risk factors set forth in the 
most recently filed Annual Information Form of Newalta, which are incorporated by reference herein. For further 
information on our risk management framework, please refer to page 42.

The Annual Information Form is available through the Internet on the Canadian System for Electronic Document 
Analysis and Retrieval (SEDAR), which can be accessed at www.sedar.com. Copies of the Annual Information Form 
may be obtained, on request without charge, from Newalta Corporation at 211 – 11th Avenue SW, Calgary, Alberta 
T2R 0C6, or by facsimile at (403) 806-7032.

DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES  
AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Our internal audit department documented risks, controls, results of testing and reporting procedures based on 
criterion established in the Internal Control – Integrated Framework (2013) (COSO 2013) issued by the Committee  
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

The Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer (collectively the “Certifying Officers”) have evaluated the 
design and effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures and our internal controls over financial reporting 
using COSO 2013. As of December 31, 2014, the Certifying Officers have concluded that such disclosure controls 
and procedures and internal controls over financial reporting were effective. There have not been any changes in 
the internal control over financial reporting in Q4 of 2014 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to 
materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

FINANCIAL AND OTHER INSTRUMENTS

The carrying values of accounts receivable and accounts payable approximate the fair value of these financial 
instruments due to their short-term maturities. Our credit risk from our customers is mitigated by our broad customer 
base. Historically, on an annual basis, our top 25 customers generate approximately 35% of our total revenue from 
Continuing Operations, with approximately 15% of these customers having a credit rating of A or higher and 50% of 
these customers having ratings of BBB or higher. In the normal course of operations, we are exposed to movements 
in U.S. dollar exchange rates relative to the Canadian dollar. The foreign exchange risk arises primarily from U.S. dollar 
denominated long-term debt and working capital. We have not entered into any financial derivatives to manage the 
risk for the foreign currency exposure as at December 31, 2014. Management assesses our working capital foreign 
exchange exposure regularly and may draw U.S. denominated long-term debt as required, which serves as a natural 
hedge, to mitigate our balance sheet exposure. The floating interest rate profile of our long-term debt exposes us to 
interest rate risk. We do not use hedging instruments to mitigate this risk. The carrying value of the senior secured 
long-term debt approximates fair value due to its floating interest rates. For further information regarding our financial 
and other instruments, refer to Note 20 to the Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014. 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Additional information relating to Newalta, including the Annual Information Form, is available through the Internet 
on the SEDAR, which can be accessed at www.sedar.com. Copies of the Annual Information Form of Newalta may be 
obtained from Newalta Corporation on the Internet at www.newalta.com, by mail at 211 – 11th Avenue SW, Calgary, 
Alberta T2R 0C6, or by facsimile at (403) 806-7032.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NEWALTA CORPORATION
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Newalta Corporation, which comprise the 
consolidated balance sheets as at December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the consolidated statements of operations, 
consolidated statements of comprehensive income, consolidated statements of changes in equity and consolidated 
statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines 
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.  
We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and 
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis  
for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
Newalta Corporation as at December 31, 2014 and 2013, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the years 
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Chartered Accountants

February 19, 2015

Calgary, Alberta

MANAGEMENT REPORT

Management is responsible for the preparation of the accompanying consolidated financial statements in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting Standards and includes amounts based on estimates and judgments. Financial 
information included elsewhere in this report is consistent with the consolidated financial statements. 

Management maintains a system of internal controls to provide reasonable assurance that all assets are safeguarded, 
and to facilitate the preparation of relevant, reliable and timely financial and management information. As of 
December 31, 2014, management has reviewed the internal controls and has concluded that such internal controls 
over financial reporting were effective.

Deloitte LLP, independent auditors appointed by the shareholders, have examined the consolidated financial 
statements. Their opinion expressed in the Independent Auditor’s Report is included in this Annual Report. The Audit 
Committee, consisting of three non-management directors, has reviewed these statements with management and the 
auditors and has reported to the Board of Directors. The Board has approved the consolidated financial statements.

Michael A. Borys

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

February 19, 2015
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December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Assets

Current assets

Cash 4,129 –

Accounts and other receivables (Note 20) 104,945 148,998

Inventories (Note 3) 7,681 57,037

Prepaid expenses and other assets 9,150 14,441

Assets held for sale (Note 4) 365,262 2,450
491,167 222,926

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment (Note 6) 804,024 1,011,921

Permits and other intangible assets (Note 7) 498 52,595

Other long-term assets (Note 8) 8,953 24,632

Goodwill (Note 7) 60,443 96,167
TOTAL ASSETS 1,365,085 1,408,241

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Bank indebtedness – 1,321

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 9) 170,541 217,283

Dividends payable (Note 18) 7,003 6,087

Liabilities held for sale (Note 4) 97,131 –
274,675 224,691

Non-current liabilities

Senior secured debt (Note 10) 183,104 117,136

Senior unsecured debentures (Note 11) 270,837 246,970

Other liabilities (Note 9) 6,929 2,537

Deferred tax liability (Note 13) 43,180 80,646

Decommissioning liability (Note 14) 63,454 61,099
TOTAL LIABILITIES 842,179 733,079

Shareholders’ Equity 

Shareholders’ capital (Note 15) 422,991 409,894

Contributed surplus 10,916 15,251

Retained earnings 76,061 245,834

Accumulated other comprehensive income 12,938 4,183
TOTAL EQUITY 522,906 675,162
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 1,365,085 1,408,241

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral component of the financial statements.

Approved by the Board 

Barry D. Stewart R.H. (Dick) Pinder

Director Director

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(Expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars) 

For the year ended December 31,

2014 2013

Net (loss) earnings (142,673) 21,940

Other comprehensive income:

Exchange difference on translating foreign operations 8,809 7,523

Unrealized loss on available for sale financial assets (54) (286)

Other comprehensive income 8,755 7,237

Comprehensive (loss) income (133,918) 29,177

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral component of the financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(Expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, except per share data) 

For the year ended December 31,

2014 2013

Revenue 495,331 412,179

Cost of sales 333,145 267,300

Gross profit 162,186 144,879

Selling, general and administrative 97,118 92,654

Impairment 19,402 –

Restructuring and other related costs (Note 5) 6,975 –

Earnings before finance charges and income taxes 38,691 52,225

Finance charges (Note 21) 33,404 25,690

Embedded derivative loss (gain) (Note 20) 14,691 (3,036)

Net financing charges 48,095 22,654

(Loss) earnings before income taxes (9,404) 29,571

Income tax expense (Note 13) 2,968 5,285

Net (loss) earnings from continuing operations (12,372) 24,286

Net loss from discontinued operations (Note 4) (130,301) (2,346)

Net (loss) earnings for the year (142,673) 21,940

(Loss) Earnings per share:

Basic from continuing operations (Note 17) (0.22) (0.44)

Basic from discontinued operations (Note 17) (2.34) (0.04)

Basic (loss) earnings per share for the year (2.56) 0.40

Diluted from continuing operations (Note 17) (0.22) 0.43

Diluted from discontinued operations (Note 17) (2.34) (0.03)

Diluted (loss) earnings per share for the year (2.56) 0.40

Supplementary information:

Amortization included in cost of sales 40,772 30,609

Amortization included in selling, general and 
administrative

16,637 12,840

Amortization included in discontinued operations 20,872 23,548

Total amortization 78,281 66,997

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral component of the financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Shareholders’ 
capital (Note 15)

Contributed 
surplus

Retained  
earnings

Accumulated  
other 

comprehensive 
(loss) income Total

Balance, December 31, 2012 394,048 2,881 247,565 (3,054) 641,440

Changes in equity for year ended December 31, 2013

Expense related to vesting of options – 235 – – 235

Reclassification of equity settled options – 12,598 – – 12,598

Exercise of options 10,634 (463) – – 10,171

Issuance of shares 5,212 – – – 5,212

Dividends declared – – (23,671) – (23,671)

Other comprehensive income – – – 7,237 7,237

Net earnings for the year – – 21,940 – 21,940

Balance, December 31, 2013 409,894 15,251 245,834 4,183 675,162

Changes in equity for year ended December 31, 2014

Expense related to vesting of options – 2,643 – – 2,643

Exercise of options 7,449 (6,978) – – 471

Issuance of shares 5,648 – – – 5,648

Dividends declared – – (27,100) – (27,100)

Other comprehensive income – – – 8,755 8,755

Net loss for the year – – (142,673) – (142,673)

Balance, December 31, 2014 422,991 10,916 76,061 12,938 522,906

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral component of the financial statements. 

For the year ended December 31,

2014  2013

Cash provided by (used for):

Operating Activities

Net (loss) earnings from continuing operations (12,372) 24,286

Adjustments for:

Amortization 57,409 43,449

Impairment 19,402 –

Income tax provision (Note 13) 2,968 5,285

Income tax (paid) recovered (13) 11

Non-cash stock-based compensation expense (Note 12) 1,003 2,546

Net financing charges 48,095 22,654

Finance charges paid (29,820) (24,095)

Other 1,620 892
Funds from Operations 88,292 75,028

Change in non-cash working capital (Note 23) 505 18,586

Decommissioning costs incurred (Note 14) (2,854) (2,797)

Cash from continuing operations 85,943 90,817

Cash from discontinued operations 38,523 32,757
Cash from Operating Activities 124,466 123,574

Investing Activities 

Additions to property, plant and equipment (173,921) (142,075)

Change in non-cash working capital (Note 23) 8,775 19,868

Proceeds on sale of property, plant and equipment 1,497 2,011

Other (1,394) (1,240)

Cash used in continuing operations (165,043) (121,436)

Cash used in discontinued operations (20,494) (31,540)
Cash used in Investing Activities (185,537) (152,976)

Financing Activities

Issuance of shares 469 3,761

Issuance of series 3 senior unsecured debentures (Note 11) 147,069 –

Redemption of series 1 senior unsecured debentures (Note 11) (125,000) –

Increase in senior secured debt 65,968 40,636

(Decrease) increase in bank indebtedness (1,321) 1,321

Dividends paid (20,536) (17,799)
Cash from continuing operations 66,649 27,919

Cash used in discontinued operations – –
Cash from Financing Activities 66,649 27,919

Effect of foreign exchange on cash (1,449) 1,074

Change in cash 4,129 (409)

Cash, beginning of year – 409

Cash, end of year 4,129 –

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral component of the financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(Expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013.
(All tabular data in thousands of Canadian dollars except per share and ratio data)
(Except where specifically noted, all amounts refer to continuing operations)

NOTE 1. CORPORATE STRUCTURE

Newalta Corporation (the Corporation or Newalta) was incorporated on October 29, 2008, pursuant to the laws of the 
Province of Alberta. Newalta completed an internal reorganization resulting in a name change from Newalta Inc. to 
Newalta Corporation effective January 1, 2010. Newalta provides cost-effective solutions to industrial customers to 
improve their environmental performance, with a focus on recycling and recovery of products from industrial residues. 
These services are provided across Canada and the U.S.; both through our network of facilities, and at our customers’ 
facilities where we mobilize our equipment and people to process material directly onsite. Our customers operate in a 
broad range of industries including oil and gas, petrochemical, refining, lead, manufacturing and mining industries.

NOTE 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
These Consolidated Financial Statements (Financial Statements) were prepared in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and include the accounts of Newalta and its wholly owned subsidiaries 
(subsidiaries). All intercompany balances and transactions including revenue and expenses were eliminated.

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on February 19, 2015.

CRITICAL JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATE UNCERTAINTIES IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The preparation of the Financial Statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make estimates, 
assumptions and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expense for the period. 
Such estimates relate to unsettled transactions and events as of the date of the financial statements. Accordingly, 
actual results may differ from estimated amounts as transactions are settled in the future. Estimates and assumptions 
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are applied prospectively.

The following are the critical judgments that management made in applying Newalta's accounting policies and that 
have the most significant effect on amounts recognized in the financial statements. They are discussed further in the 
accounting policies that follow. 

• Determining fair value

• Determining components under multiple element revenue agreements (Note 2k)

• Determining whether agreements not in the legal form of a lease, contain a lease (Note 2k)

• Determining the aggregation of assets into cash generating units (CGUs) (Notes 2i and 7)

• Determining key assumptions for impairment testing (Notes 2i and 7)

• Determining existence of provisions including onerous contracts, constructive and restructuring  
obligations (Note 2j)

• Determining financial instrument classification (Notes 2o and 20)

• Determining allocation of costs between continuing and discontinued operations (Note 2f)

The following sections contain critical estimates and assumptions with the most significant effect on amounts 
recognized in the Financial Statements. They are discussed further in the accounting policies that follow.

• Revenue (Note 2k)

• Recoverability of asset carrying values for impairment testing purposes (Notes 2i and 7)

• Income tax (Notes 2l and 13) 

• Decommissioning and other liabilities (Notes 2j and 14)

• Estimated useful lives of assets (Note 2d)

• Derivative and embedded derivative instruments (Notes 2o and 20)

BASIS OF PREPARATION
The Financial Statements were prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain properties and financial 
instruments that are measured at revalued amounts or fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained 
in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in 
exchange for assets.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

a) Cash 
Cash is defined as cash and short-term deposits with maturities of three months or less, when purchased.

b) Offsetting financial instruments 
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported on the Consolidated Balance Sheets, when 
there is a legally enforceable right to offset recognized amounts and an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the 
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

c) Inventories
Inventories are comprised of oil and other recycled products, spare parts and supplies, and are recorded at the 
lower of cost and net realizable value. Inventories are valued using the weighted average costing method. Cost of 
finished goods includes the laid down cost of materials plus the cost of direct labour applied to the product and the 
applicable share of overhead expense. Cost of other items of inventories comprise the laid down cost.

d) Property, plant and equipment 
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated amortization and impairment. Amortization rates 
are calculated to amortize the costs, net of residual value, over the assets’ estimated useful lives. Significant parts of 
property, plant and equipment that have different depreciable lives are amortized separately. Judgment is used in 
determining the appropriate level of componentization.

Income and expenses incurred in bringing assets to the location and condition necessary to be capable of operating 
in a manner as intended by management are recognized as part of the cost of the asset. Determination of what costs 
are directly attributable and consideration of circumstances that an asset is operating as intended can be complex 
and subject to management interpretation. When significant parts of plant and equipment are replaced, costs are 
capitalized when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to Newalta. All associated carrying amounts 
of the replaced asset are also removed from the Consolidated Balance Sheets. All other repairs and maintenance 
activities are recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Operations as incurred. Distinguishing major inspections 
and overhauls from repairs and maintenance in determining which costs are capitalized are also matters of 
management judgment.

Plant and equipment is principally depreciated at rates of 5–10% of the declining balance (buildings, site 
improvements, tanks and mobile equipment) or from 5–14 years straight-line (vehicles, computer hardware and 
software and leasehold improvements), depending on the expected life of the asset. Some equipment is depreciated 
based on utilization rates (onsite equipment). The utilization rate is determined by dividing the cost of the asset by the 
estimated future hours of service. Residual values, up to 20% of original cost, may be established for buildings, site 
improvements, and onsite equipment. These residual values are not depreciated. The estimated useful lives, residual 
values and amortization methods are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in 
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits 
are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset 
(calculated as the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included as a 
gain or loss in net income (loss) in the period the item is derecognized.

Landfill assets represent the costs of landfill available space, including original acquisition cost, incurred landfill 
construction and development costs, including leachate collection systems installed during the operating life of the 
site, and capitalized landfill closure and post-closure costs. The cost of landfill assets, together with projected landfill 
construction and development costs for permitted capacity plus unpermitted capacity that management believes is 
probable of ultimately being permitted, is amortized on a per-unit basis as landfill space is consumed. The impact on 
annual amortization expense of changes in estimated capacity and construction costs is accounted for prospectively.

e) Permits and other intangible assets
Permits and other intangible assets are stated at cost, less accumulated amortization and impairment, and consist 
of certain production processes, trademarks, permits and agreements that are amortized over the period of the 
contractual benefit of 5 years on a straight-line basis. There are nominal fees to renew these permits, provided that 
Newalta remains in good standing with regulatory authorities. 

f) Assets and liabilities held for sale and discontinued operations
Discontinued operations are a component of an entity, comprising operations and cash flows that are clearly 
distinguished, operationally and financially. A discontinued operation is a component that either has been disposed  
of or is classified as held for sale, and:

• Represents a separate major line of business or geographic area of operations

• Is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographic area  
of operations, or

• Is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale
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In the Consolidated Statements of Operations, income (loss) from discontinued operations and any impairment 
loss on initial classification to held for sale as well as subsequent fair value gains or losses on remeasurement are 
combined and presented as a single amount separately from continuing operations. In addition when assets are sold, 
gains or losses on sale are also included. Comparative periods are restated to reflect discontinued operations.

In the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, the cash flows from discontinued operations are presented separately 
from cash flows from continuing operations. Comparative periods are restated to reflect discontinued operations.

Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are reported separately on the Consolidated Balance Sheets when their 
carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use, and a sale 
is considered highly probable. Judgment is used in determining what events and circumstances exist to support the 
determination of highly probable. Immediately prior to held for sale classification, assets and liabilities are remeasured 
at lower of net book value and fair value less costs to sell. Impairment losses on initial classification and subsequent 
gains or losses on remeasurment are recognized in net income (loss). Once classified as held for sale, amortization 
is no longer recorded on the assets. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale, are presented separately from 
Newalta’s other assets and liabilities. The comparative period within the Consolidated Balance Sheets is not restated.

g) Leases

Lessee
All of Newalta’s leases are classified as operating leases, therefore the leased assets are not recognized in Newalta’s 
Consolidated Balance Sheets. Payments made under operating leases are recognized in the Consolidated Statements 
of Operations on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative 
of the time pattern of Newalta’s benefit, including any rent-free periods. Lease incentives are recognized as an 
integral part of the total lease expense, over the term of the lease.

Leases may include additional payments for real estate taxes, maintenance and insurance. These amounts are 
expensed in the period to which they relate.

Lessor
Assets subject to operating leases are recognized and classified according to the nature of the leased asset. Initial 
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased 
asset and expensed over the lease term on the same basis as the lease income. The depreciation policy for leased 
assets is consistent with the depreciation policy for similar owned assets.

h) Goodwill 
Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net identifiable assets of acquired 
businesses.

i) Impairment
Impairment testing compares the carrying values of the assets or CGUs being tested with their recoverable amounts. 
An asset's or CGU's recoverable amount is based on the greater of its value in use or fair value less costs to sell. Value 
in use is assessed using the present value of the expected future cash flows of the relevant asset. The key assumptions 
for the value in use calculation include discount and growth rate estimates of the risks associated with the projected 
cash flows, based on the best information available as of the date of the impairment test. The weighted average 
growth rates are calculated over the remaining useful life of each asset or CGU. 

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the asset is tested as part of a CGU, 
which is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash 
inflows from other assets or groups of assets. Judgment is applied in allocating assets into CGUs, giving consideration 
to the level of integration between assets, shared infrastructure and the way in which management monitors 
operations. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, management also uses judgment 
in allocating corporate assets to individual CGUs. 

Impairment losses are immediately recognized to the extent that the asset or CGU carrying values exceed their 
recoverable amounts. Should the recoverable amounts for previously impaired assets or CGUs subsequently increase, 
the impairment losses previously recognized (other than in respect of goodwill) may be reversed to the extent that the 
reversal is not a result of accretion and that the resulting carrying value does not exceed the carrying value that would 
have been the result if no impairment losses had been previously recognized. 

CGU impairment
The carrying values of Newalta’s CGUs are tested annually for impairment. For the purpose of impairment testing, 
goodwill is allocated to CGUs expected to benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill arose. To the 
extent that the carrying amount of a CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the excess would first reduce the carrying 
value of goodwill and any remainder would reduce the carrying values of the non-current assets of the CGUs on a 
pro-rated basis. 

Asset impairment
The carrying values of all assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate 
that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Events or changes in circumstances include items such as: 
significant changes in the manner in which an asset is used, including plans to restructure the operation to which an 
asset belongs, or plans to dispose of an asset before the previously expected date. 

j) Provisions
Provisions are recognized when Newalta has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is 
probable that Newalta will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of that 
obligation. The determination of when to record provisions, including onerous contracts, restructuring related charges, 
and constructive obligations is a complex process that involves management judgment about outcomes of future events, 
interpretation of laws and regulations and estimates concerning the nature, extent and timing of expected future cash flows 
and discount rates.

Decommissioning liabilities
Newalta provides for estimated future decommissioning costs for all its facilities based on the estimated time until 
reclamation and the long-term commitments of certain sites. Over this period, Newalta recognizes the liability for 
the future decommissioning liabilities associated with property, plant and equipment. These obligations are initially 
measured at the discounted future value of the liability. This value is capitalized as part of the cost of the related 
asset and amortized over the asset’s useful life. The balance of the liability is adjusted each period for the accretion, 
with the associated expense included within finance charges. Decommissioning costs and timing are estimated by 
management, in consultation with Newalta’s engineers and environmental, health and safety staff, on the basis of 
current regulations, costs, technology and industry standards. Other key estimates include discount and inflation 
rates. Actual decommissioning costs are charged against the provision as incurred.

Onerous contracts
Provisions are made for any contracts, including lease arrangements that are deemed onerous. A contract is 
considered onerous if the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic 
benefits expected to be received under it. Provisions for onerous contracts are measured at the present value of the 
lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract.  
The balance of the liability is adjusted each period for the accretion, with the associated expense included within 
finance charges.

k) Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognized when significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods and/or delivery of services have 
transferred to the buyer, recoverability of consideration is probable, the amount of revenue can be measured reliably, 
Newalta retains no continuing managerial involvement with the goods, and the costs required to complete the 
contract can be estimated reliably. Revenue is measured net of returns and trade discounts.

Newalta offers individual services, products and integrated solutions to meet customer needs. Integrated solutions 
may involve the delivery of multiple services and products occurring in different reporting periods. As appropriate, 
these multiple element arrangements are separated into components and consideration is allocated based upon their 
relative fair values. Significant judgment is applied in identifying, calculating and allocating fair value consideration 
between the separate components of a contract. 

Individual and integrated solutions may include one or more of the following: 

Sale of services
Newalta’s waste processing services are generally sold based upon service orders or contracts with a customer that 
include fixed or determinable prices based upon hourly, daily or throughput rates. Revenue is recognized when 
services are rendered. 

Sale of products
Revenue from Newalta’s sale of recycled and recovered waste products is recognized when products are delivered  
to customers or pipelines. 

Construction contracts
Construction contract revenue results from certain Newalta’s onsite projects. Construction revenue includes the initial 
amount negotiated in the contract plus any change in terms of scope of work performed. If costs can be measured 
reliably, revenue is recognized based on the stage of completion of the contract, determined by the physical portion 
of work performed. Otherwise, construction revenue will be recognized to the extent contract costs are likely to  
be recovered. 

Operating leases 
Operating lease revenue is derived from certain Newalta’s onsite projects. Lease accounting is applied to a 
component of a contract if it conveys the right of use of a specific asset to a customer, but does not convey the risks 
and/or benefits of ownership. Revenue from operating leases is recognized over the processing period.

l) Income tax
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Operations, 
except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this 
case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively. Management 
reviews tax positions that involve judgment and could be subject to differing interpretations or application of  
tax legislation. 

Newalta and its subsidiaries follow the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Current income tax is 
calculated on the basis of tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred income 
tax assets and liabilities are measured based upon temporary differences between the carrying values of assets 
and liabilities and their tax base. Deferred income tax expense is computed based on the change during the year 
in the deferred income tax assets and liabilities. Effects of changes in tax laws and tax rates are recognized when 
substantively enacted.
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Deferred tax assets are also recognized for the benefits from tax losses and deductions with no accounting basis, 
provided those benefits are probable to be realized. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined based 
on the tax laws and rates that are anticipated to apply in the period of estimated realization. The amount of deferred 
assets and liabilities recorded is subject to judgment about likelihood of future cash flow and estimated settlement 
amounts, and timing of reversal. 

m) Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated using the weighted average number of common shares (Shares) outstanding 
during the year. Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adding the weighted average number of Shares 
outstanding during the year to the additional Shares that would have been outstanding if potentially dilutive Shares 
had been issued, using the “treasury stock” method.

n) Incentive plans
The Corporation’s incentive plans consist of:

(i) an equity incentive plan pursuant to which the Corporation may grant share-based long-term incentives including 
stock options, restricted share units, performance share units, deferred share units and dividend-equivalent rights  
to executives, employees and non-executive directors (the 2014 Equity Incentive Plan); and 

(ii) stock appreciation rights, deferred share units and performance share units granted to eligible executives, 
employees and non-executive directors which are settled in cash. 

2014 Equity Incentive Plan
Under the 2014 Equity Incentive Plan, the Corporation may grant rights to acquire up to 10% of the issued and 
outstanding Shares of the Corporation. The only awards currently outstanding under the 2014 Equity Incentive Plan 
are options to acquire Shares.

The options granted under the 2014 Equity Incentive Plan are equity settled. The fair value of options at the date of 
grant is calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model method with the stock-based compensation expense 
recorded as a selling, general and administrative expense (SG&A) that is recognized over the vesting period of the 
options, with a corresponding increase to contributed surplus. When options are exercised, the proceeds, together 
with the amount recorded in contributed surplus, are transferred to shareholders’ capital. Forfeitures are estimated 
and accounted for at the grant date and adjusted, if necessary, in subsequent periods.

The use of an option pricing model requires making assumptions about volatility of the company’s stock price, 
expected dividend amount, risk-free interest rates, the expected life of the options and number of awards expected 
to be forfeited. 

Share Units
Newalta has a cash-settled Deferred Share Unit (DSU) plan for non-executive directors. Under this plan, notional 
DSUs are granted annually and vest immediately. The measurement of the compensation expense and corresponding 
liability for these awards is based on the fair value of the award, and is recognized as a stock-based compensation 
expense, which is recorded as SG&A with a corresponding increase in accrued liabilities. Dividend equivalent 
grants, if any, are recorded as stock-based compensation expense in the period the dividend is paid. The liability is 
remeasured at each reporting date and at settlement date. Any changes in the fair value of the liability are recognized 
in SG&A. Each DSU entitles the holder to receive a cash payment equal to the five-day volume weighted average 
trading price of the Shares preceding the date of redemption. The DSUs may only be redeemed within the period 
beginning on the date a holder ceases to be a participant under the plan and ending on December 31 of the following 
calendar year.

A cash-settled Performance Share Unit (PSU) plan has been established for officers and other eligible employees. 
Under this plan, notional PSUs are granted based on corporate performance criterion and vest no later than 
December 31 of the third year after the year to which the relevant PSU was granted. Each vested PSU entitles 
the holder to receive a cash payment equal to the five-day volume weighted average trading price of the Shares 
preceding the date of redemption multiplied by a vesting factor. The vesting factor is based on performance 
conditions established by the Board of Directors prior to the date of grant of the PSU. The stock-based compensation 
expense of the PSUs is recorded as SG&A on a straight-line basis over the vesting period with a corresponding entry 
to either accrued liabilities or other liabilities. This estimated value is adjusted each period based on the period-end 
trading price of the Shares and an estimated vesting factor, with any changes in the fair value of the liability being 
recognized in earnings. Dividend equivalent grants, if any, are recorded as stock-based compensation expense in the 
period the dividend is paid.

Stock appreciation rights (SARs)
SARs entitle the holder to receive cash from Newalta in an amount equal to the positive difference between the grant 
price and the trading price of the Shares on the exercise date. The grant price is calculated based on the five-day 
volume weighted average trading price of the Shares on the Toronto Stock Exchange. SARs generally expire five years 
after they are granted and the vesting period is determined by the Board of Directors. The fair value at the date of 
grant is calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model method with the stock-based compensation expense 
recognized over the vesting period of the SARs and recorded as SG&A with a corresponding entry to accrued 
liabilities or other liabilities. The fair value is subsequently remeasured at the end of each reporting period. Forfeitures 
are estimated and accounted for at the grant date and adjusted, if necessary, in subsequent periods.

o) Financial instruments

Classification
Newalta’s financial instruments are classified into one of four categories and are initially recognized at fair value  
and subsequently measured as noted in the table below.

Category Subsequent Measurement

Financial assets at fair value through 
profit and loss (FVTPL) and held-for-
trading investments (HFT)

Fair value and changes in fair value are recognized in net earnings

Loans and receivables Amortized cost, using the effective interest method

Financial liabilities Amortized cost, using the effective interest method

Cash and accounts and other receivables are classified as loans and receivables. Senior secured debt, senior 
unsecured debentures, bank indebtedness, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, dividends payable and other 
liabilities are classified as financial liabilities.

Transaction costs incurred with respect to the credit facility are deferred and amortized using the straight-line method 
over the term of the facility. The asset is recognized in prepaid expenses and other assets on the Consolidated 
Balance Sheets, while the amortization is included in financing charges within net income. Transaction costs 
associated with other financial liabilities are netted against the related liability.

Newalta categorizes its financial instruments carried at fair value into one of three different levels, depending on the 
significance of inputs employed in their measurement. Several models exist for determining fair value and whenever 
possible, Newalta maximizes the use of observable market data. When not available, assumptions underlying the 
valuation models include estimated costs/prices over time, discount and inflation rates and other related variables 
that result in an estimated fair value. Estimated fair value may not be representative of amounts that could be realized 
or settled in the market. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1 includes assets and liabilities measured at fair value based on quoted prices for identical assets and liabilities 
in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date. An active market for an asset or liability is considered 
to be a market where transactions occur with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an 
ongoing basis. Newalta’s cash and senior unsecured debentures are classified as Level 1 financial instruments.

Level 2 includes instruments with a fair value that is determined by quoted prices in an inactive market, prices with 
observable inputs, or prices with non-observable inputs. Financial instruments in this category are valued using 
models or other industry standard valuation techniques derived from observable market data. Such valuation 
techniques include inputs such as quoted forward prices, time value, volatility factors and broker quotes that can be 
observed or corroborated in the market for the entire duration of the derivative instrument. Instruments valued using 
Level 2 inputs include the embedded derivative within Series 2 of the senior unsecured debentures, HFT investments, 
and senior secured debt.

Level 3 includes valuations based on inputs that are less observable, unavailable or where the observable data 
does not support a significant portion of the instruments’ fair value. Generally, Level 3 valuations are longer dated 
transactions, occur in less active markets, occur at locations where pricing information is not available or have no 
binding broker quote to support Level 2 classification. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, Newalta did not have any 
Level 3 financial assets or liabilities. 

Derivative and embedded derivative instruments
In determining whether a contract meets the definition of derivative instrument or contains an embedded derivative, 
the most significant area where judgment is applied is determining whether an embedded derivative is closely  
related to the host contract; if the contract is determined to be closely related, bifurcation and separate accounting  
is not required. 

Newalta’s embedded derivative is classified as FVTPL (Level 2). It was valued using the option adjusted spread model, 
which requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions. It is valued at fair value upon initial 
recognition and at the end of each reporting period, with gains and losses recognized through finance charges in the 
Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting 
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or 
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the 
investment were affected.
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Category Impairment Methodology Indicators of Impairment

Available for sale equity investments Cumulative gains or losses previously 
recognized in other comprehensive 
income are reclassified to Consolidated 
Statements of Operations in the period

Significant or prolonged decline in the 
fair value of the security below its cost

Financial assets carried at  
amortized cost

Difference between the asset’s carrying 
amount and the present value of 
estimated future cash flows, discounted 
at the financial asset’s original effective 
interest rate

The following indicators apply to the 
remaining two categories:

• Significant financial difficulty of the 
issuer or counterparty

• Breach of contract, such as default  
or delinquency in interest of  
principal payments

• It becomes probable that the borrower 
will enter bankruptcy or financial 
reorganization

• Disappearance of an active market 
for that asset because of financial 
difficulties

Other financial assets Carrying amount of the financial asset is 
reduced by the impairment loss directly 
for all financial assets with the exception 
of trade receivables, where the carrying 
amount is reduced through the use of an 
allowance account

p) Functional and presentation currency
Each of the Corporation’s wholly owned subsidiaries are measured using the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the entity operates (the functional currency). The Financial Statements are presented in 
Canadian dollars, which is the Corporation’s functional currency. 

Upon consolidation, the Financial Statements of the subsidiary that have a functional currency different from that of the 
Corporation are translated into Canadian dollars, whereby assets and liabilities are translated at the rate of exchange 
at the balance sheet date, and revenues and expenses are translated using the exchange rate prevailing at the dates of 
the transactions. Gains and losses in translation are recognized in the shareholders’ equity section as accumulated other 
comprehensive income.

If the Corporation were to dispose of its entire interest in a foreign operation, or to lose control, joint control, or 
significant influence over a foreign operation, the foreign currency gains or losses accumulated in other comprehensive 
income related to the foreign operation would be recognized in net earnings (loss). If the Corporation were to dispose of 
part of an interest in a foreign operation that remains a subsidiary, a proportionate amount of foreign currency gains or 
losses accumulated in other comprehensive income related to the subsidiary would be reallocated between controlling 
and non-controlling interests.

q) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset 
form part of the cost of that asset. A qualifying asset requires a period of six months or greater to be prepared for its 
intended use or sale.

r) Recent pronouncements issued
The following new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning 
after January 1, 2015, and have not been applied in preparing these Financial Statements. They may result in future 
changes to our existing accounting policies and other note disclosures. We are evaluating the impact that new 
pronouncements may have on our results of operations, financial position and disclosure.

A number of amendments to standards and interpretations came into effect on January 1, 2014, and are applied in 
preparing these financial statements. 

Effective January 1, 2014, Newalta adopted IFRIC 21 Levies. The retrospective adoption of this interpretation did not 
have an impact on Newalta’s financial statements. 

IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments (2014)
In July 2014, the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) issued IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (2014) which 
incorporates all three phases of the financial instruments projects: classification and measurement, impairment 
and hedge accounting. The new standard is effective for periods on or after January 1, 2018 with early application 
permitted.

IFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mixed measurement model and establishes three primary measurement categories 
for financial assets: amortized cost, fair value through Statement of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI), fair value 
through Consolidated Statements of Operations. The basis for classification depends on the entity’s business model 
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. For financial liabilities, the new standard retains 
most of the IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement requirements; however, when a financial 
liability is carried at fair value through profit or loss, the portion of the fair value change related to the company’s own 
credit risk is recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income rather than net income.

The impairment model reflects expected credit losses, rather than incurred credit losses and it is no longer necessary 
for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are recognized. IFRS 9 also includes new regulations regarding 
the application of hedge accounting to better reflect an entity’s risk management activities especially with regard to 
managing non-financial risks. Newalta is currently evaluating the impact of this standard on its Financial Statements.

IFRS 15 – Revenue from Contracts with Customers
In May 2014, the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) issued IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with 
Customers. This standard introduces a five-step approach to the recognition of revenues from contracts with 
customers. The core principle of the approach is to recognize revenue in a manner that depicts the transfer of 
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects consideration the entity expects to be entitled to 
in exchange for the goods or services provided.

The standard is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2017 with early application permitted. Entities 
may choose to apply the standard retrospectively (with some practical expedients available) or to use a modified 
transition approach, which allows application of the standard retrospectively only to contracts that are not completed 
at the date of initial application. Newalta is currently evaluating the impact of this standard on its Financial Statements.

NOTE 3. INVENTORIES 

Inventories consist of the following:

December 31, 2014 (1)  December 31, 2013

Lead – 34,106

Recycled and processed products 404 7,678

Recovered crude oil 5,770 6,526

Parts and supplies 1,507 8,727

Total inventories 7,681 57,037

(1) Inventories of $43.3 million were reclassified to assets held for sale at December 31, 2014 (Note 4).

The cost of inventories expensed in cost of sales for the year ended December 31, 2014, was $0.5 million  
(December 31, 2013 –$0.3 million). 

NOTE 4. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HELD FOR SALE 

On December 23, 2014, Newalta entered into an agreement with Revolution Acquisition LP, a Birch Hill Equity Partners 
company, to sell its Industrial Division for estimated sale proceeds of $300 million plus the assumption of certain 
decommissioning liabilities. We will retain the land at VSC and the associated decommissioning liability. The present 
value of the obligation is $12.1 million. The estimated sale proceeds subject to customary purchase price adjustments 
related to balance sheet working capital and capital expenditure targets. This division features the industrial facilities 
network, industrial-related onsite services, the lead-acid battery recycling facility located at Ville Ste-Catherine, Québec, 
an engineered non-hazardous solid waste landfill located at Stoney Creek, Ontario, a used oil collection network, and a 
used oil refining facility in North Vancouver, British Columbia.

The Industrial Division represents a major line of business for Newalta, and is classified as discontinued operations at 
December 31, 2014.

Impairment of Industrial Assets
In classifying Newalta’s operations as discontinued, all assets and liabilities are measured at the lower of carrying 
amount and fair value less costs to sell. The expected sale proceeds and estimated transaction costs (Net Sale 
Proceeds) were used as the basis for determining fair value less costs to sell. This is a Level 2 valuation, as it is based 
on a quoted price in an inactive market. The transaction is expected to close in the first quarter of 2015 upon the 
satisfaction of customary closing conditions, and receipt of regulatory approvals. 

Based on Newalta’s total estimated Net Sale Proceeds, an impairment loss of $185.8 million was recorded within 
discontinued operations in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. The pre-tax asset impairment is allocated  
as follows: 

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013(1)

Property, plant and equipment 132,784 7,599

Intangible assets (Note 7) 17,345 5,849

Goodwill (Note 7) 35,683 7,750
185,812 21,198

(1) Impairment loss of $21.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2013 relates to Newalta’s rationalization of business lines and facilities in 2014.
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The results of the discontinued operations and the remeasurement of assets and liabilities classified as held for sale 
are presented below:

For the year ended December 31,

2014  2013

Revenue 363,082 371,217

Cost of sales 319,043 327,558

Gross profit 44,039 43,659

Selling, general and administrative 18,029 22,311

Restructuring and other related costs(1) 8,556 –

Finance charges 1,757 1,827

Earnings before impairment and income taxes 15,697 19,521

Income tax expense 4,299 5,540

Net earnings from discontinued operations before impairment 11,398 13,981

Pre-tax impairment loss recognized on classification to 
held for sale

185,812 21,198

Income tax recovery on impairment (44,113) (4,871)

After tax impairment loss recognized on classification  
to held for sale 141,699 16,327

Net loss from discontinued operations (130,301) (2,346)

Supplementary information:

Amortization included in cost of sales 18,945 21,650

Amortization included in selling, general and administrative 1,927 1,898

Total amortization 20,872 23,548

(1)The restructuring and other related costs within discontinued operations for the year ended December 31, 2014 are summarized as follows:

Employee 
termination costs

Facility closure 
costs Other Total

Restructuring costs paid 2,916 1,949 – 4,865

Other related costs paid – – 3,691 3,691
Total restructuring and other related 
costs at December 31, 2014 2,916 1,949 3,691 8,556

Assets and liabilities held for sale are comprised of the following:

December 31,  
2014

December 31, 
2013

Assets

Accounts and other receivables 59,437 –

Inventories 43,342 –

Prepaid expenses and other assets 5,261 –

Property, plant and equipment (Note 6) 222,180 2,270

Permits and other intangible assets (Note 7) 35,042 120

Goodwill (Note 7) – 60
TOTAL ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 365,262 2,450

Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 61,024 –

Decommissioning liability (Note 14) 36,107 –
TOTAL LIABILITIES HELD FOR SALE 97,131 –

NOTE 5. RESTRUCTURING AND OTHER RELATED COSTS 

Restructuring and other related costs consist of expenditures reflecting Newalta’s ongoing strategy to improve 
productivity and profitability, and reduce SG&A costs.

The restructuring and other related costs for the year ended December 31, 2014 are summarized as follows:   

Onerous Leases(1) Other Total

Restructuring costs accrued 5,864 – 5,864

Restructuring costs paid – 1,111 1,111
Total restructuring and other related costs at December 31, 2014 5,864 1,111 6,975

(1) An onerous lease obligation arose as a result of the Industrial sale and relates to properties retained by Newalta that will no longer be in use.

NOTE 6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment consist of the following:

Land
Plant and 

equipment Landfill Total

Cost 
Balance, December 31, 2012 14,693 1,188,588 144,068 1,347,349
Additions during the year 218 167,143 3,779 171,140
Disposals during the year (139) (6,285) – (6,424)
Transfers to assets held for sale (95) (4,923) – (5,018)
Effect of change in decommissioning estimate – (14,600) – (14,600)
Effect of foreign currency exchange differences – 5,619 – 5,619
Balance, December 31, 2013 14,677 1,335,542 147,847 1,498,066
Additions during the year 867 216,622 3,572 221,061
Disposals during the year (92) (9,975) – (10,067)
Transfers to assets held for sale (7,360) (330,070) (87,573) (425,003)
Effect of change in decommissioning estimate – 13,145 – 13,145
Effect of foreign currency exchange differences – 10,365 – 10,365
Balance, December 31, 2014 8,092 1,235,629 63,846 1,307,567

Accumulated Amortization 
Balance, December 31, 2012 – (345,318) (72,451) (417,769)
Amortization for the year – (58,359) (7,906) (66,265)
Disposals during the year – 3,277 – 3,277
Transfers to assets held for sale – 2,748 – 2,748
Restructuring related impairment (481) (7,118) – (7,599)
Effect of foreign currency exchange differences – (537) – (537)
Balance, December 31, 2013 (481) (405,307) (80,357) (486,145)
Amortization for the year – (71,983) (4,545) (76,528)
Disposals during the year – 6,553 – 6,553
Transfers to assets held for sale – 139,315 65,777 205,092
Impairment (3,842) (136,239)  (10,260) (150,341)
Effect of foreign currency exchange differences – (2,174) – (2,174)
Balance, December 31, 2014 (4,323) (469,835) (29,385) (503,543)

Carrying amounts
As at December 31, 2013 14,196 930,235 67,490 1,011,921
As at December 31, 2014 3,769 765,794 34,461 804,024

a) Borrowing Costs
For the year ended December 31, 2014, Newalta capitalized $2.7 million (December 31, 2013 – $2.8 million) of 
borrowing costs to qualifying assets using a capitalization rate of 5.31% (December 31, 2013 – 5.96%).

b) Impairment
In the fourth quarter of 2014, Newalta entered into an agreement to sell its Industrial Division (Note 4). Newalta determined 
that upcoming sale and refinement in business strategy constituted potential impairment triggers, resulting in the need to 
assess other assets within continuing divisions for potential impairment. Newalta determined the carrying value of certain 
equipment would no longer be recoverable through future operations, resulting in an impairment of $17.4 million.  
The non-cash impairment is comprised of $11.9 million in the Oilfield segment, $4.4 million in the New Markets segment, 
and $1.1 million in Corporate assets (Note 24).
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NOTE 7. PERMITS, INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL

Permits, intangible assets and good will consist of the following:

Indefinite  
permits

Definite life 
permits/rights

Total  
Intangibles Goodwill

Cost 

Balance, December 31, 2012 53,037 11,656 64,693 102,615

Change during the year(1) 741 (514) 227 1,362

Transfers to assets held for sale (120) – (120) (60)

Balance, December 31, 2013 53,658 11,142 64,800 103,917

Change during the year(1) – 519 519 (41)

Transfers to assets held for sale (37,626) (9,329) (46,955) –
Balance, December 31, 2014 16,032 2,332 18,364 103,876

Accumulated Amortization

Balance, December 31, 2012 – (6,079) (6,079) –

Amortization for the year – (732) (732) –

Amortization related to disposals – 455 455 –

Restructuring related impairment (5,849) – (5,849) (7,750)

Balance, December 31, 2013 (5,849) (6,356) (12,205) (7,750)

Amortization for the year – (349) (349) –

Transfers to assets held for sale 5,800 6,233 12,033 –

Impairment (15,983) (1,362) (17,345) (35,683)
Balance, December 31, 2014 (16,032) (1,834) (17,866) (43,433)

Carrying amounts

As at December 31, 2013 47,809 4,786 52,595 96,167
As at December 31, 2014 – 498 498 60,443

(1) Changes are comprised of additions and/or disposals in the year.

 

Intangibles have been allocated to the following CGUs:

December 31, 2014 (1)  December 31, 2013

West Industrial – 479

East Industrial – 36,216

VSC – 15,900

Oilfield 498 –
498 52,595

(1) As a result of the West Industrial, East Industrial and VSC CGUs being classified as held for sale as discontinued operations at December 31, 2014, the 
Industrial operations were required to be measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell. This resulted in intangible impairment 
of $17.3 million within the West Industrial, East Industrial and VSC CGUs (Note 4).

 

Goodwill has been allocated to the following CGUs:

December 31, 2014 (1)  December 31, 2013

West Industrial – 1,130

East Industrial – 34,594

Oilfield 57,624 57,624

Heavy Oil 2,819 2,819
60,443 96,167

(1) As a result of the West Industrial, East Industrial and VSC CGUs being classified as held for sale as discontinued operations at December 31, 2014, the 
Industrial operations were required to be measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell. This resulted in goodwill impairment 
of $35.7 million, which represented the total amount of goodwill contained within West Industrial and East Industrial CGUs (Note 4).

CGU impairment 
In assessing goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets for impairment at December 31, 2014 and 2013, Newalta 
compared the aggregate recoverable amount of the assets included in CGUs to their respective carrying amounts. The 
expected Net Sale Proceeds were used as the basis for determining fair value less costs to sell for the Industrial Division. 

Goodwill impairment of $35.7 million was recorded within the West Industrial and East Industrial CGUs as at 
December 31, 2014. There was no impairment recorded at the CGU level as at December 31, 2013. 

For all CGUs outside the disposal group, the recoverable amount was determined based on the value in use of the 
CGUs, based on expected growth excluding future growth capital spending and associated revenues. There was no 
impairment recorded at the CGU level outside measurement to assets held for sale as at December 31, 2014 and 2013.

Key assumptions included the following:

Year ended December 31, 2014 Periods Oilfield Heavy Oil U.S.

Weighted average growth rate 2019 and beyond 2.9% 3.1% 3.6%

Pre-tax discount rate 2015 and beyond 14.1% 14.4% 12.4%

Year ended December 31, 2013  Periods Oilfield Heavy Oil U.S.

Weighted average growth rate 2018 and beyond 3.6% 3.1% 3.6%

Pre-tax discount rate 2014 and beyond 14.9% 15.8% 12.9%

In all CGUs, reasonably possible changes to key assumptions would not cause the recoverable amount of goodwill  
to fall below the carrying value. 

NOTE 8. OTHER LONG-TERM ASSETS

Other long-term assets consist of the following:

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Embedded derivative (Note 20) 2,013 17,050

Other long-term investments(1) 6,940 7,582
8,953 24,632

(1) Included in other long-term investments is Newalta’s 50% interest in TerraAqua Resource Management LLC (TARM). Newalta’s interest in TARM is accounted 
for under the equity method and these financial statements include Newalta’s share of net earnings from the date that joint control commenced, based  
on the present 50% ownership interest in TARM. Newalta’s share of earnings for the year ended December 31, 2014, as well as the assets and liabilities as at 
December 31, 2014, are not significant.

NOTE 9. SUPPLEMENTAL BALANCE SHEET INFORMATION

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities consist of the following:

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Accounts payable 76,887 106,615

Accrued liabilities 72,111 89,427

Deferred revenue 13,554 13,328

Short-term stock-based compensation 7,078 7,913

Onerous leases 911 –
170,541 217,283

Other liabilities consist of the following:

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Long-term stock-based compensation 1,973 2,537

Onerous leases 4,956 –
6,929 2,537

NOTE 10. SENIOR SECURED DEBT

December 31, 2014  December 31, 2013

Senior secured debt 183,104 117,136

Effective July 15, 2014, Newalta exercised an accordion option within the existing Credit Facility (Credit Facility) 
to increase it from $250 million to $280 million. There were no other significant changes to the terms of the Credit 
Facility. Newalta may, at its option, request an extension of the Credit Facility on an annual basis. If no request to 
extend the Credit Facility is made by Newalta, the entire amount of the outstanding indebtedness would be due 
in full on July 12, 2016. All assets are pledged as security under the Credit Facility. The Credit Facility also requires 
Newalta to be in compliance with certain covenants. As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, Newalta was in compliance 
with all covenants (Note 16).

For the year ended December 31, 2014, the weighted average interest rate on senior secured debt was 2.90%, 
(December 31, 2013 – 3.12%).
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NOTE 11. SENIOR UNSECURED DEBENTURES

The trust indenture under which the senior unsecured debentures were issued requires Newalta to be in compliance 
with certain covenants as at December 31 of each year. As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, Newalta was in 
compliance with all covenants (Note 16).

December 31, 2014  December 31, 2013

Senior unsecured debentures series 1 (Note 20) – 125,299

Net series 1 unamortized costs – (1,684)

Senior unsecured debentures series 2 (Note 20) 125,228 125,275

Net series 2 unamortized costs (1,593) (1,920)

Senior unsecured debentures series 3 (Note 20) 150,000 –

Net series 3 unamortized issue costs (2,798) –

Senior unsecured debentures 270,837 246,970

Series 1
On May 1, 2014, Newalta used the net proceeds from the series 3 unsecured debentures (series 3) to redeem all 
of the $125 million outstanding series 1, 7.625% senior unsecured debentures (series 1) maturing on November 23, 
2017. The Corporation paid a redemption price of $129.8 million, plus $4.2 million in accrued and unpaid interest to 
redeem the series 1 debentures. The premium of $4.8 million between the redemption price and the carrying value 
of the debt was expensed as finance charges in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. The related unamortized 
financing charges of $1.5 million were also expensed upon redemption. 

Series 2
On November 14, 2011, Newalta issued $125.0 million of 7.75% series 2 senior unsecured debentures (series 2) that 
mature on November 14, 2019. Interest is payable semi-annually in arrears on May 14 and November 14 in each year, 
commencing on May 14, 2012. The series 2 debentures rank equally with all other existing and future unsecured senior 
debt and is senior to any subordinated debt that may be issued by Newalta or any of its subsidiaries. The series 2 
debentures are effectively subordinated to all secured debt to the extent of collateral on such debt. 

After November 14, 2015, the series 2 debentures are redeemable at the option of Newalta, in whole or in part, at 
redemption prices expressed as percentages of the principal amount, plus in each case accrued interest to the 
redemption date, if redeemed during the twelve month period beginning on November 14 of the years as follows: 
Year 2015 – 103.875%; Year 2016 – 101.938%; Year 2017 and thereafter – 100%. 

If a change of control occurs, Newalta will be required to offer to purchase all or a portion of each debenture holder’s 
series 2 debentures, at a purchase price in cash equal to 101% of the principal amount of the series 2 debentures 
offered for repurchase plus accrued interest to the date of purchase.

Series 3
On April 1, 2014, Newalta issued $150 million of 5.875% series 3 unsecured debentures that mature on April 1, 2021. 
Interest is payable semi-annually in arrears on April 1 and October 1 in each year, commencing in October 2014. The 
series 3 rank equally with all other existing and future unsecured senior debt and is senior to any subordinated debt 
that may be issued by Newalta or any of its subsidiaries. The series 3 debentures are effectively subordinate to all 
secured debt to the extent of collateral on such debt. 

After April 1, 2017, the series 3 debentures are redeemable at the option of Newalta, in whole or in part, at redemption 
prices expressed as percentages of the principal amount, plus in each case accrued interest to the redemption date, if 
redeemed during the twelve month period beginning on April 1, 2017 of the years as follows: Year 2017 – 102.938%,  
Year 2018 – 101.958%, Year 2019 – 100.979%, Year 2020 and thereafter – 100%. 

If a change of control occurs, Newalta will be required to offer to purchase all or a portion of each debenture holder’s 
series 3 debentures, at a purchase price of 101% of the principal amount offered for repurchase plus accrued interest 
to the date of purchase.

NOTE 12. INCENTIVE PLANS

a) Option Plan
For the year ended December 31, 2014, the weighted average price of our Shares at the date of exercise of the 
options was $19.33 (December 31, 2013 – $15.02).

A summary of the status of Newalta’s option plan as of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 and changes 
during the period are presented as follows:

Option plan  
(000s)

Weighted average 
exercise price ($/share)

At December 31, 2012 3,696 11.30

Granted 965 15.57

Exercised (826) 6.95

Forfeited (695) 16.62

At December 31, 2013 3,140 12.58

Granted(1) 1,071 17.56

Exercised (724) 9.68

Forfeited (95) 15.62
At December 31, 2014(2) 3,392 14.69

Exercisable 

At December 31, 2013 1,351 10.46
At December 31, 2014 1,498 12.66

(1) Each tranche of the options vest over a three-year period (with a five-year life). 
(2) The fair value was calculated using the Black-Scholes method of valuation, using inputs applicable at the option’s grant date. 

Range of exercise prices 
($/share)

Options outstanding 
December 31, 2014

Weighted average 
remaining life

Weighted average 
exercise price

Options exercisable 
December 31, 2014

Weighted average 
exercise price

8.07 – 14.00 1,413 1.4 12.00 1,173 11.86

14.01 – 20.42 1,979 3.6 16.61 325 15.53
3,392 2.7 14.69 1,498 12.66

 

b) Share Appreciation Rights (SARs)
For the year ended December 31, 2014, the weighted average price of our Shares at the date of exercise of the SARs 
was $18.83 (December 31, 2013 – $15.50).

Changes in the number of outstanding SARs were as follows: 

SARs (000s)
Weighted average 

exercise price ($/right)

At December 31, 2012 2,348 11.04

Granted 1,018 15.59

Exercised (697) 8.41

Forfeited (365) 14.76

At December 31, 2013 2,304 13.26

Granted(1) 1,004 17.23

Exercised (778) 11.91

Forfeited (277) 15.70
At December 31, 2014(2) 2,253 15.19

Exercisable 

At December 31, 2013 722 10.95
At December 31, 2014 680 12.89

(1) Each tranche of the SARs vest over a three-year period (with a five-year life).
(2) The fair value was calculated using the Black-Scholes method of valuation, assuming 26.32% volatility (December 31, 2013 – 25.50%), a weighted average 

expected annual dividend yield of 2.69% (December 31, 2013 – 2.95%), a risk-free rate of 1.00% (December 31, 2013 – 1.10%) and a 15% forfeiture rate 
(December 31, 2013 – 12%) by period.
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Range of exercise prices 
($/share)

SARs outstanding 
December 31, 2014

Weighted average 
remaining life

Weighted average 
exercise price

SARs exercisable 
December 31, 2014

Weighted average 
exercise price

8.07 – 12.62 509 1.5 11.87 359 11.56

12.63 – 19.56 1,744 3.5 16.16 321 14.37
2,253 3.0 15.19 680 12.89

 

c) Share Unit Plans
Changes in the number of outstanding share units under our Deferred Share Unit and Performance Share Unit plans 
were as follows:

Units (000s)

At December 31, 2012 232

Granted 65

Exercised (111)

At December 31, 2013 186

Granted 75

Exercised (80)
At December 31, 2014 181

Exercisable 

At December 31, 2013 –
At December 31, 2014 –

d) Stock-Based Compensation Expense
The following table summarizes the stock-based compensation recorded for all plans within SG&A on the 
Consolidated Statements of Operations: 

For the year ended December 31,

2014 2013

Stock option plans – non-cash expense 2,168 3,214

SARs and share unit plans – cash expense 5,450 5,244

SARs and share unit plans – non-cash recovery (1,165) (668)

Total expense – SARs and share unit plans 4,285 4,576

Total stock-based compensation expense 6,453 7,790

e) Incentive Plan Liabilities
As at December 31, 2014, the total liability related to the Corporation’s incentive plans was $9.1 million, with  
$7.1 million classified as current and $2.0 million classified as non-current (December 31, 2013 total incentive  
plan liabilities of $10.4 million, with $7.9 million classified as current and $2.5 million classified as non-current).  
The current liability associated with the Corporation’s incentive plans is included in accounts payable and accrued 
liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Non-current liability is recorded in other liabilities on the  
Consolidated Balance Sheets.

NOTE 13. INCOME TAX

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Significant components 
of Newalta’s deferred income tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Deferred income tax liabilities:

Property, plant and equipment (113,473) (130,955)

Goodwill and intangible assets (7,275) (16,966)
(120,748) (147,921)

Deferred income tax assets:

Non-capital loss carry forwards and other credits 38,004 41,714

Decommissioning liabilities 25,847 15,835

Deferred revenue 4,602 3,473

Deferred expense 6,991 4,567

Other comprehensive income 268 266

Other 1,856 1,420
77,568 67,275

Net deferred income tax liability (43,180) (80,646)

Non-capital loss carry forwards of $73.9 million relate to Canadian operations and $72.7 million relate to U.S. 
operations. The losses relating to Canadian operations begin to expire in 2027 and losses relating to U.S. operations 
begin to expire in 2029.

The income tax expense differs from the amount computed by applying Canadian statutory rates to operating income 
for the following reasons:

For the year ended December 31,

2014 2013

Consolidated earnings of Newalta Corporation before taxes and  
distributions to shareholders

(9,404) 29,571

Current statutory income tax rate 25.74% 25.75%

Computed tax expense at statutory rate (2,421) 7,615

Increase (decrease) in taxes resulting from:

Impact of changes in tax rates and income taxed at different rates 948 (587)

Loss (gain) on embedded derivatives 3,782 (782)

Stock-based compensation expense and non-deductible costs 826 621

Tax impact of changes in estimate for prior year tax pools 110 (1,460)

Other (277) (122)
Reported income tax expense 2,968 5,285
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NOTE 14. RECONCILIATION OF DECOMMISSIONING LIABILITY

The future decommissioning liability was estimated by management based on anticipated costs to abandon and 
reclaim facilities and wells, and the projected timing of these expenditures. The net present value of this amount, 
$63.4 million (December 31, 2013 – $61.1 million) was accrued and recorded in decommissioning liability on the 
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2014. The estimated future cost for decommissioning liability at 
December 31, 2014 was $630.4 million over an expected range up to 75 years. Newalta used risk-free discount rates 
between 2.33% to 4.17% as at December 31, 2014 [December 31, 2013 – 3.20% to 6% (see footnote 1 below)] and  
an inflation rate of 2% (December 31, 2013 – 2%) to calculate the present value of the decommissioning liability.  
The reconciliation of estimated and actual expenditures for the period is provided below:

Decommissioning liability as at January 1, 2013 78,941

Actual expenditures incurred to fulfill obligations (5,287)

Accretion 2,599

Change in discount rate (15,154)

Decommissioning liability as at December 31, 2013 61,099

Additions(1) 22,623

Decommissioning liabilities held for sale(2) (Note 4) (36,107)

Actual expenditures incurred to fulfill obligations (4,856)

Accretion 2,716

Change in discount rate 17,979
Decommissioning liability as at December 31, 2014 63,454

(1) Additions is comprised of new liabilities in the year as well as changes in cost estimates.
(2) Included in decommissioning liabilities held for sale are estimated reclamation costs associated with Stoney Creek Landfill for which we used a discount 

rate of 6% (December 31, 2013 – 6%). 

NOTE 15. SHAREHOLDERS’ CAPITAL

Authorized capital of the Corporation consists of an unlimited number of common shares and an unlimited number of 
preferred shares issuable in series. The following table is a summary of the changes in shareholders’ capital during  
the periods:

Common Shares Shares (#) Amount ($)

Shares outstanding as at January 1, 2013 54,263 394,048

Shares issued on exercise of options 704 10,634

Shares issued under dividend reinvestment plan 369 5,212

Shares outstanding as at December 31, 2013 55,336 409,894

Shares issued on exercise of options 385 7,449

Shares issued under dividend reinvestment plan 305 5,648
Shares outstanding as at December 31, 2014 56,026 422,991

Newalta’s dividend reinvestment plan (DRIP) allows eligible shareholders to elect to reinvest their cash dividends in 
additional Shares at a 5% discount to average market price. 

NOTE 16. CAPITAL DISCLOSURES

Newalta’s capital structure consists of:

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Senior secured debt 183,104 117,136

Letters of credit issued as financial security to third parties (Note 19)(1) 19,350 15,488

Senior unsecured debentures(2) 275,228 250,574

Shareholders’ equity 522,906 675,162
1,000,588 1,058,360

(1) As at December 31, 2014, letters of credit for continuing and discontinued operations are $19.5 million ($16.2 million as at December 31, 2013).
(2) Excludes issue costs.

The objectives in managing the capital structure are to:

• Align our debt structure with our asset structure

• Utilize an appropriate amount of leverage to maximize return on shareholders’ equity

• Provide for borrowing capacity and financial flexibility to support Newalta’s operations

Management and the Board of Directors review and assess Newalta’s capital structure and dividend policy at least 
at each regularly scheduled board meeting, which are held at a minimum four times annually. The financial strategy 
may be adjusted based on the current outlook of the underlying business, the capital requirements to fund growth 
initiatives, and the state of the debt and equity capital markets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, 
Newalta may:

• Issue Shares from treasury

• Issue new debt securities

• Cause the return of letters of credit with no additional financial security requirements

• Replace outstanding letters of credit with bonds or other types of financial security

• Amend, revise, renew or extend the terms of its then existing long-term debt facilities

• Draw on existing credit facility and/or enter into new agreements establishing new credit facilities

• Adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders

• Sell idle, redundant or non-core assets

Management monitors the capital structure based on covenants required pursuant to the Credit Facility. 

Covenants(1) under our Credit Facility(2) include:

Ratio
December 31, 

2014
December 31, 

2013 Threshold

Senior secured debt(3) to EBITDA(4) 1.16:1 0.88:1 2.75:1 maximum

Total debt(5) to EBITDA(4) 2.77:1 2.54:1 4.00:1 maximum

Interest coverage 4.85:1 5.44:1 2.25:1 minimum

(1) Covenants are calculated based on continuing and discontinued operations. 
(2) We are restricted from declaring dividends if we are in breach of any covenants under our credit facility.
(3) Senior secured debt means the total debt less the senior unsecured debentures.
(4) EBITDA is a non-IFRS measure, the closest measure of which is net earnings. For the purpose of calculating the covenant, EBITDA is defined as the 

trailing twelve months consolidated net income for Newalta before the deduction of interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, non-cash items (such 
as non-cash stock-based compensation and gains or losses on asset dispositions) and non-recurring items up to $10 million per fiscal year. Additionally, 
EBITDA is normalized for any acquisitions or dispositions as if they had occurred at the beginning of the period.

(5) Total debt comprises: outstanding indebtedness under the credit facility, including our bank surplus, to a maximum $10 million, or overdraft balance;  
and the senior unsecured debentures.

The trust indenture under which the senior unsecured debentures were issued also contains certain annual restrictions 
and covenants that, subject to certain exceptions, limit our ability to incur additional indebtedness, pay dividends, 
make certain loans or investments and sell or otherwise dispose of certain assets subject to certain conditions, among 
other limitations.

Covenants(1) under the trust indenture include: 

Ratio
December 31, 

2014
December 31, 

2013 Threshold

Senior Secured Debt including Letters of Credit 202,624 133,366 $25,000 + the greater of 
$220,000 and  
1.75x EBITDA

Cumulative Finance Lease Obligations nil nil $25,000 maximum

Consolidated Fixed Charge Coverage 4.79:1 5.20:1 2.00:1 minimum

Period End Surplus for Restricted Payments(2) 132,622 121,385 Restricted payments  
cannot exceed surplus

(1) Covenants are calculated based on continuing and discontinued operations. 
(2) We are restricted from declaring dividends, purchasing and redeeming Shares or making certain investments if the total of such amounts exceeds the 

period end surplus for such restricted payments.
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NOTE 17. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share calculations for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 were based on the weighted 
average number of Shares outstanding for the respective years. Diluted earnings per share include the potential 
dilution of outstanding options under incentive plans to acquire Shares.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share does not include anti-dilutive options. These options would not be 
exercised during the period because their exercise price is higher than the average market price for the period.  
The inclusion of these options would cause the diluted earnings per share to be overstated. The number of excluded 
options for the year ended December 31, 2014 was 140,000 (952,500 for the year ended December 31, 2013).

 For the year ended December 31,

2014 2013

Net (loss) earnings from continuing operations (12,372) 24,286

Net (loss) from discontinued operations (130,301) (2,346)

Net (loss) earnings for the year (142,673) 21,940

Weighted average number of Shares 55,802 54,938

Net additional Shares if options exercised 837 577

Diluted weighted average number of Shares 56,639 55,515

NOTE 18. DIVIDENDS DECLARED

For the year ended December 31,

2014 2013

Total dividends declared per share 0.485 0.430

On December 15, 2014 Newalta declared a dividend of $0.125 per share to all shareholders of record on  
December 31, 2014. This dividend was paid on January 15, 2015.

NOTE 19. COMMITMENTS

a) Debt and Lease Commitments
Newalta has annual commitments for senior long-term debt, senior unsecured debentures, and leased property and 
equipment as follows:

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Thereafter Total

Amount drawn on credit facility(1) (Note 10) – 183,104 – – – – 183,104

Senior unsecured debentures 18,500 18,500 18,500 18,500 142,253 160,985 377,238

Total debt commitments 18,500 201,604 18,500 18,500 142,253 160,985 560,342

Office leases 10,868 10,751 10,182 9,412 7,959 9,883 59,055

Operating leases 2,246 1,391 785 436 90 – 4,948

Surface leases 441 441 441 441 441 – 2,205

Purchase commitments 8,912 3,122 – – – – 12,034

Total debt and other commitments 40,967 217,309 29,908 28,789 150,743 170,868 638,584

(1) Gross of transaction costs. Interest payments are not reflected.

b) Enertech Partnership Agreement
Newalta has contributed a total of $2.3 million to the Enertech Partnership Agreement since the inception of the 
agreement in 2013. Newalta is contingently committed to capital contributions up to a maximum of $7.0 million over the 
10-year investment period. The investment is classified as held-for-trading and is recorded in other long-term assets.

c) Letters of Credit and Surety Bonds
As at December 31, 2014, Newalta had issued letters of credit and surety bonds in the amount of $19.4 million and 
$13.0 million, respectively ($15.5 million and $6.9 million as at December 31, 2013).

NOTE 20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities
Newalta’s financial instruments include cash, bank indebtedness, accounts and other receivables, other long-term 
assets, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, dividends payable, senior secured debt and senior unsecured 
debentures. The fair values of Newalta’s financial instruments that are included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets, 
with the exception of the senior unsecured debentures, approximate their recorded amount due to the short-
term nature of those instruments for cash, bank indebtedness, accounts and other receivables, accounts payable 
and accrued liabilities, dividends payable and senior secured debt, due to the floating nature of the interest rate 
applicable to these instruments. The fair values incorporate an assessment of credit risk. The carrying values of 
Newalta’s financial instruments at December 31, 2014 are as follows:

FVTPL
Loans and 

receivables Other liabilities
Total carrying 

value

Accounts and other receivables – 104,945 – 104,945

Embedded derivative(1) 2,013 – – 2,013

Held-for-trading investment(1) 2,299 – – 2,299

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities – – 170,541 170,541

Dividends payable – – 7,003 7,003

Senior secured debt(1) – – 183,104 183,104

(1) Assessed as Level 2.

All carrying values in the above table are equal to fair value, with the exception of embedded derivatives as  
noted below. 

The fair value of the unsecured senior debentures is based on open market quotation as follows:

As at December 31, 2014 Carrying value Quoted fair value

7.75% series 2 senior unsecured debentures due November 14, 2019 125,228 128,750

5.875% series 3 senior unsecured debentures due April 1, 2021 150,000 145,125

Embedded Derivatives
The senior unsecured debentures have early redemption features at values based on percentages of the principal 
amount plus accrued and unpaid interest. Due to the redemption rates being fixed, an embedded derivative exists 
when compared to current market rates. Newalta estimates the fair value of the embedded derivatives using a 
valuation model that considers the current bond prices and spreads associated with the senior unsecured debentures. 

i Series 1
Newalta recognized a gain on the series 1 debentures of $3.4 million in the first quarter of 2014. During the second 
quarter, Newalta redeemed all of its series 1 debentures outstanding. Upon redemption, the fair value of the 
embedded derivative related to these debentures was extinguished and a non-recurring loss of $17.5 million was 
recognized within embedded derivative loss on the Consolidated Statements of Operations. 

ii Series 2
Newalta recognized a loss on the series 2 debentures of $0.6 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2014 
(gain of $0.2 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2013) and determined the fair value of the embedded 
derivative for the series 2 debentures to be $2.0 million as at December 31, 2014. A corresponding embedded 
derivative asset is included within other long-term assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Subsequent changes in 
fair value will be included in finance charges on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Offsetting Financial Instruments
Certain waste processing revenue sources entitle customers to credits on the sale of recovered products. The 
following table presents the recognized financial instruments that are offset as at December 31, 2014 and 2013:

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Gross trade receivables 102,304 139,088

Gross liabilities offset (14,604) (18,538)

Net trade receivables 87,700 120,550
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Credit Risk and Economic Dependence
Newalta is subject to credit risk on its trade accounts receivable balances. No single customer exceeded 10% of total 
accounts receivable at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013. Newalta views the credit risks on these amounts 
as normal for the industry. Credit risk is minimized by Newalta’s broad customer base and diverse product lines, and is 
mitigated by the ongoing assessment of the credit worthiness of its customers as well as monitoring the amount and 
age of balances outstanding. Newalta’s assessment of credit risk has remained unchanged from the prior year.

For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, no customer accounted for more than 10% of total revenues.

Based on the nature of operations, established collection history and industry norms, receivables are not considered 
past due until 90 days after invoice date, although standard payment terms require payment within 30 to 90 days. 
Depending on the nature of the service and/or product, customers may be provided with extended payment terms 
while Newalta gathers certain processing or disposal data. Included in the Corporation’s trade receivable balance, are 
receivables totalling $3.9 million (December 31, 2013 – $5.7 million), which are considered to be outstanding beyond 
normal repayment terms at December 31, 2014. A provision of $0.3 million (December 31, 2013 – $1.1 million) has 
been established as an allowance for doubtful accounts. No additional provision has been made as there has not 
been a significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still considered collectible. Newalta does not hold 
any collateral over these balances but may hold credit insurance for specific non-domestic customer accounts. Total 
accounts receivable of $104.9 million is comprised of $87.7 million of trade receivables, accrued receivables of  
$10.5 million and other receivables of $6.7 million.  

Aging Trade receivables aged by invoice date Allowance for doubtful accounts Net receivables

Dec 31, 2014 Dec 31, 2013 Dec 31, 2014 Dec 31, 2013 Dec 31, 2014(1) Dec 31, 2013

Current 70,627 88,008 27 5 70,600 88,003

31–60 days 9,574 21,301 21 2 9,553 21,299

61–90 days 3,579 5,565 41 54 3,538 5,511

91 days + 3,920 5,676 196 1,035 3,724 4,641

Total 87,700 120,550 285 1,096 87,415 119,454

(1) Net receivables of $52.0 million were reclassified to assets held for sale at December 31, 2014.

To determine the recoverability of a trade receivable, management analyzes accounts receivable, first identifying 
customer groups that represent minimal risk (large oil and gas and other low-risk large companies, governments and 
municipalities). Impairment of the remaining accounts is determined by identifying specific accounts that are at risk, 
and then by applying a formula based on aging to the remaining amounts receivable. All amounts identified as at risk 
are provided for in an allowance for doubtful accounts. The changes in this account for the years ended  
December 31, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

Allowance for doubtful accounts December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Balance, beginning of year 1,096 480

Net increase in provision 162 784

Net amounts recovered (written off as uncollectible) (418) (168)

Transfers to assets held for sale (555) –

Balance, end of year 285 1,096

Liquidity Risk
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors, which has built an appropriate 
liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Corporation’s short-, medium- and long-term 
funding and liquidity management requirements. Management mitigates liquidity risk by maintaining adequate 
reserves, banking facilities and other borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash 
flows, and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. Newalta’s assessment of liquidity risk has 
remained unchanged from the prior year.

Interest Rate Risk
Newalta is exposed to interest rate risk to the extent that its Credit Facility has a variable interest rate. Management 
does not enter into any derivative contracts to manage the exposure to variable interest rates. The senior unsecured 
debentures have fixed interest rates until their maturity dates, at which point, any remaining amounts owing under 
these debentures will need to be repaid or refinanced. Newalta’s assessment of interest rate risk has remained 
unchanged from the prior year. The table below provides an interest rate sensitivity analysis to net earnings as at 
period end:

For the year ended December 31,

2014 2013

If interest rates increased by 1% with 
all other values held constant  (1,421) (1,081)

Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of Newalta’s financial instruments will fluctuate because of 
changes in market prices. Newalta is exposed to foreign exchange market risk. Foreign exchange risk refers to the risk 
that the value of a financial commitment, recognized asset or liability will fluctuate due to changes in foreign currency 
exchange rates. The risk arises primarily from U.S. dollar denominated long-term debt and working capital. As at 
December 31, 2014, Newalta had $51.3 million in net working capital from continuing and discontinued operations 
(excluding long-term assets and liabilities classified as held for sale) and $49.0 million (within continuing operations) 
in long-term debt, both denominated in U.S. dollars. Management has not entered into any financial derivatives to 
manage the risk for the foreign currency exposure as at December 31, 2014. Newalta’s assessment of market risk has 
remained unchanged from the prior year.

The table below provides a foreign currency sensitivity analysis to net earnings on long-term debt and working capital 
outstanding as at period end:

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

If the value of the U.S. dollar in relation to the CDN dollar  
increased by $0.01 with all other variables held constant

23 5

NOTE 21. FINANCE CHARGES

For the year ended December 31,

2014 2013

Interest:

Senior secured debt 5,943 5,359

Senior unsecured debentures 19,474 19,219

Other 1,463 1,173

Debenture call premium 4,766 –

Amortization of issue costs 3,044 1,376

Accretion 1,412 1,361

Capitalized interest (2,698) (2,798)

Finance charges 33,404 25,690

NOTE 22. RELATED PARTIES

Significant Subsidiaries 
The Financial Statements include the financial statements of Newalta and our wholly owned subsidiaries as at 
December 31, 2014 and 2013. Transactions between each subsidiary and the subsidiaries and parent are eliminated 
on consolidation. Newalta did not have any material related party transactions with entities outside the consolidated 
group in the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013. The following is a list of the major subsidiary and related  
party of our operations:

Ownership interest

Country of Incorporation 2014 2013

Newalta Environmental Services Inc. Subsidiary United States 100% 100%

TerraAqua Resource Management LLC Joint venture United States 50% 50%

Key Management Personnel
Key management personnel are comprised of Newalta’s Board of Directors and Executive Committee.  
The remuneration of key management personnel during the year was as follows: 

Year ended December 31,

2014 2013

Short-term benefits 6,604 4,359

Stock-based payments(1) 1,376 2,103

Termination benefits – 997

Total remuneration 7,980 7,459

(1) Prior year stock-based payments has been restated.
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NOTE 23. CASH FLOW STATEMENT SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

Changes in non-cash working capital is comprised of:

For the year ended December 31,

2014 2013

Source (use) of cash:

Accounts and other receivables (17,266) (1,046)

Prepaid expenses and other assets 1,824 (3,567)

Inventories 1,216 (1,482)

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 23,506 44,549
Changes in non-cash working capital 9,280 38,454

Relating to operating activities 505 18,586

Relating to investing activities 8,775 19,868

NOTE 24. SEGMENTED INFORMATION

Newalta’s reportable segments are distinct strategic business units whose operating results are regularly reviewed by 
the Corporation’s executive officers in order to assess financial performance and make resource allocation decisions. 
The reportable segments have separate operating management and operate in distinct competitive and regulatory 
environments. 

• The New Markets segment includes mobilization of equipment and staff to process waste at our customer sites,  
the processing of oilfield-generated wastes including treatment, water disposal, landfilling, and the sale of recovered 
crude oil; site remediation, centrifugation, dredging and dewatering, and the supply and operation of drill site 
processing equipment, including solids control and drill cuttings management. 

• The Oilfield segment includes the processing of oilfield-generated wastes including treatment and disposal, water 
disposal, clean oil terminalling, custom treating, the sale of recovered crude oil and the supply and operation of drill 
site processing equipment, including solids control and drill cuttings management.

• Discontinued operations reflects the Industrial segment. This segment includes oil recycling services, lead battery 
recycling, landfilling of non-hazardous solid waste and the processing of industrial wastes including collection, 
treatment and disposal. 

As at and for the year ended December 31, 2014

New Markets Oilfield
Corporate  
and other

Total  
continuing 
operations

Discontinued 
operations 
(Industrial) Total

Revenue 289,008 206,323 – 495,331 363,082 858,413

Cost of sales(1) 205,480 127,665 – 333,145 319,043 652,188

Gross profit 83,528 78,658 – 162,186 44,039 206,225

Selling, general and administrative(2) – – 97,118 97,118 18,029 115,147

Impairment 6,369 11,908 1,125 19,402 185,812 205,214

Restructuring and other related costs – – 6,975 6,975 8,556 15,531

Net financing charges – – 48,095 48,095 1,757 49,852

Earnings (loss) before taxes 77,159 66,750 (153,313) (9,404) (170,115) (179,519)

Property, plant and equipment 
expenditures(3) 

94,423 56,701 20,660 171,784 20,616 192,400

Goodwill 2,819 57,624 – 60,443 – 60,443

Total assets 438,482 447,020 114,321 999,823 365,262 1,365,085

Total liabilities 162,190 95,758 487,100 745,048 97,131 842,179

As at and for the year ended December 31, 2013

New Markets Oilfield
Corporate and 

other
Total continuing 

operations

Discontinued 
operations 
(Industrial) Total

Revenue 227,572 184,607 – 412,179 371,217 783,396

Cost of sales(1) (4) 154,057 113,243 – 267,300 327,558 594,858

Gross profit 73,515 71,364 – 144,879 43,659 188,538

Selling, general and administrative(2) – – 92,654 92,654 22,311 114,965

Restructuring related impairment – – – – 21,198 21,198

Net financing charges – – 22,654 22,654 1,827 24,481

Earnings (loss) before taxes 73,515 71,364 (115,308) 29,571 (1,677) 27,894

Property, plant and equipment 
expenditures(3) 

78,702 46,552 22,605 147,859 23,281 171,140

Goodwill 2,819 57,624 – 60,443 35,724 96,167

Total assets (restated)(5) 347,592 410,040 127,691 885,323 522,918 1,408,241

Total liabilities (restated)(5) 145,471 83,266 411,851 640,588 92,491 733,079

(1) Cost of sales includes amortization of $59,717 for 2014 (New Markets $25,378, Oilfield $15,394 and discontinued operations $18,945) and $52,259 for 
2013 (New Markets $18,200, Oilfield $12,409 and discontinued operations $21,650).

(2) Selling, general and administrative includes amortization of $18,564 for 2014 (continuing operations $16,637 and discontinued operations $1,927) and 
$14,738 for 2013 (continuing operations $12,840 and discontinued operations $1,898).

(3) Includes property, plant and equipment expenditures gross of disposals, decommissioning discount rate changes and foreign currency exchange differences.
(4) For comparative purposes, cost of sales for the twelve months ended December 31, 2014 was restated for a classification of $1,651 from Oilfield to  

New Markets, reflecting a change in reporting structure. 
(5) For comparative purposes, total assets and liabilities as at December 31, 2013 were restated for a reclassification from Corporate and other to the  

other segments. 

Geographic information
Canada and the U.S. represent two distinct geographic areas in which all of Newalta’s operations occur. 

For the year ended December 31,

2014 2013

Revenue by location of services: 

Canada 409,608 352,471

U.S. 85,723 59,708
Total 495,331 412,179

December 31, 
2014

December 31, 
2013

Non-current assets(1): 

Canada 745,902 1,069,168

U.S. 119,063 91,515
Total 864,965 1,160,683

(1) Non-current assets are comprised of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, and goodwill.

NOTE 25. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

In the first quarter of 2015, Newalta announced a number of cost reduction and rationalization initiatives to maximize 
business efficiencies, post Industrial divestiture, with a view to improve productivity and profitability within the 
remaining operating segments, as well as align the business with market conditions in 2015. 
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Newalta’s Board of Directors  
brings a diverse perspective to 
matters affecting the company.  
Their guidance is based on 
successful careers in a broad  
range of industries. 

John Barkhouse   
Mr. Barkhouse joined Newalta as President 
and Chief Executive Officer in 2014. He 
was formerly President of Bredero Shaw, a 
ShawCor company based in Houston, Texas, 
where he led the development of corporate 
strategy and their global expansion. He 
brings deep engineering, planning and 
operational expertise to Newalta along with 
a strong focus on customer relationships 
and safety. He has a Bachelor of Mechanical 
Engineering from Dalhousie University and 
an MBA from Bradley University. 

Harvey Doerr   
Mr. Doerr joined the Board in 2014 with 
30 years of experience in the oil and 
gas industry, most recently as Executive 
Vice President of U.S.-based Murphy Oil 
Corporation where he was responsible 
for worldwide refining and marketing 
operations and strategic planning. He 
has a Bachelor of Science in Mechanical 
Engineering from the University of Alberta. 

Robert Gemmell   
Mr. Gemmell joined Newalta’s Board in 
2014 with 25 years of experience as an 
investment banker in the U.S. and Canada. 
Most recently, he was President and  
Chief Executive Officer of Citigroup Global 
Markets Canada and its predecessor 
companies (Salomon Brothers Canada and 
Salomon Smith Barney Canada). He has  
a Bachelor of Arts from Cornell University, 
a Bachelor of Laws from Osgoode Hall 
Law School and an MBA from the Schulich 
School of Business. 

R. Vance Milligan, Q.C.   
Mr. Milligan was a lawyer with the Canadian 
law firm Bennett Jones LLP for 30 years. 
His practice focused on representing public 
and private companies in various industry 
sectors, with an emphasis on mergers and 
acquisitions, public and private financings, 
and corporate governance. He has a 
Bachelor of Arts from the University of 
Lethbridge and a Bachelor of Laws from  
the University of Alberta. 

Gordon Pridham  
Mr. Pridham has more than 35 years of 
experience in investment banking, capital 
markets, and corporate banking and has 
financed and advised companies in public 
and private markets. He has managed 
the investment banking groups of Merrill 
Lynch Canada, Midland Doherty, Deutsche 
Morgan Grenfell, Research Capital and 
Raymond James. He has a Bachelor of Arts 
from the University of Toronto. 

Susan Riddell Rose   
Ms. Riddell Rose is the President and Chief 
Executive Officer of Perpetual Energy Inc. 
She has worked in the oil and gas industry 
for almost 30 years and is a member of 
the Association of Professional Engineers, 
Geologists and Geophysicists of Alberta; 
the Canadian Society of Petroleum 
Geologists; and the American Association 
of Petroleum Geologists. She has a 
Bachelor of Applied Science in Geological 
Engineering from Queen's University.

Tom Ryley   
Mr. Ryley is Chairman of Benefuel Inc., 
a U.S. based company active in the 
commercialization of a next-generation 
biodiesel technology. Previously, he was 
the Managing Partner of Beacon Head 
Energy Ltd., an advisory and investment 
management firm, and also held progressively 
senior positions with Suncor Energy Inc. over 
a 25-year period. He has a Bachelor of Arts 
from York University and a Master of Public 
Administration from Carleton University. 

Michael Starzer  
Mr. Starzer has 30 years of experience  
in the U.S. energy industry. He is Executive 
Chairman and Managing Partner of Fifth 
Creek Energy, a private exploration and 
production company. Previously, he was 
President and Chief Executive Officer  
of Bonanza Creek Energy, Inc., a company he 
co-founded. He has a degree in Petroleum 
Engineering from the Colorado School of 
Mines and a Master of Science in Engineering 
Management from the University of Alaska.

Laurie Tugman  
Mr. Tugman is the former President and 
Chief Executive Officer of Marsulex Inc. 
and has more than 30 years of experience 
in financial and operational management 
in the environmental compliance, industrial 
waste management, chemical and oil 
and gas industries. He has substantial 
experience on boards as a Director and 
a Chair. He has a Bachelor of Arts from 
Western University and has been elected a 
Fellow Chartered Professional Accountant. 

RETIRING DIRECTORS 

Four long-standing Directors are 
retiring from Newalta’s Board at 
the Annual General Meeting in 
May 2015. Each one has made 
a significant and deep impact 
during their time with us, and we 
thank them for their service and 
contributions.

Alan P. Cadotte  
Mr. Cadotte joined the Board in 1992.  
He provided the vision and strategy  
and guided the dynamic growth of the 
company until 2014 as President and  
Chief Executive Officer. He established  
the high operating standards, focus on 
safety, strong business ethic, innovative 
mindset and core values that are truly  
the cornerstones of Newalta today. 

Robert M. MacDonald   
Mr. MacDonald provided expertise to the 
Board based on his 30 years of experience 
as an oil and gas banking professional.  
His in-depth knowledge of finance was 
highly valued by the organization during his 
12 years on the Board. Mr. MacDonald led 
the EH&S Committee during expansion  
of the company’s network. 

R.H. (Dick) Pinder   
Mr. Pinder has served on the Board since 
1994, including a key role as Chair of  
the Audit Committee. His 30-year business 
career has been focused on managing  
or advising growth businesses such  
as Newalta in a variety of key sectors in 
Western Canada. 

Barry D. Stewart  
Mr. Stewart has been a Director since  
2002 and Chair of the Board since 2008.  
He drew on his 40 years of industry 
experience, including a decade with 
Suncor Energy Inc., to make a significant 
contribution to Newalta’s strategic 
direction and organizational structure.
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AUDITORS

Deloitte LLP 
Calgary, AB

LEGAL COUNSEL

Bennett Jones LLP 
Calgary, AB

BANKERS

Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce
The Bank of Nova Scotia
Royal Bank of Canada
The Toronto-Dominion Bank
National Bank of Canada
Bank of America, N.A. (Canada Branch)

TRANSFER AGENT & REGISTRAR

Valiant Trust Company 
Calgary, AB

2015 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

May 7, 2015 at 11:00 am (MT) 
Newalta’s corporate office 
220 12th Avenue SW 
Calgary, AB 

OFFICERS

John Barkhouse 
President & CEO 

Michael Borys 
Executive Vice President & CFO

Peter Dugandzic 
Executive Vice President, 
Corporate Services

Troy McElgunn 
Senior Vice President, Oilfield

Doug Pecharsky 
Senior Vice President, New Markets

Took Whiteley (6) 
Senior Vice President, Business 
Development & General Counsel

Chris Barnes 
Vice President,  
Business Development 

Linda Dietsche 
Vice President, Finance

Basil El-Borno 
Vice President,  
Innovation & Process Development

Bryne Gramlich 
Vice President, Heavy Oil

Colin Merrick 
Vice President, Human Resources

Mike Nerbas 
Vice President, U.S.

DIRECTORS

John Barkhouse 

Alan P. Cadotte

Harvey Doerr (2)(4)

Robert Gemmell (1)(4)

Robert M. MacDonald (1)(4)

R. Vance Milligan, Q.C. (1)(3)

R.H. (Dick) Pinder (1)(3)

Gordon Pridham (2)(3)(5)

Susan Riddell Rose (2)(3)

Tom Ryley (2)(4)

Michael Starzer (3)(4)

Barry D. Stewart

Laurie Tugman (1)(2)

(1) Audit Committee
(2) Compensation Committee
(3) Corporate Governance & Nominating Committee
(4) Environment, Health & Safety Committee
(5) Chairman of the Board
(6) Corporate Secretary

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Anne Plasterer 
Executive Director, Investor Relations 
T 403 806 7019 
E aplasterer@newalta.com

STOCK EXCHANGE

Toronto Stock Exchange 
Symbol: NAL

Newalta is committed to reducing impacts to the environment in every way we can, including the production of this 
publication. This report was printed on FSC® certified paper and is manufactured partially with wind energy and contains 
100 percent post-consumer recycled fibre.
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